Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Wednesday, 27th April, 2016 at 7.00 pm

To:
VOTING MEMBERS

Clir G.B. Lyon (Chairman)
Clir B.A. Thomas (Vice-Chairman)

Clir Mrs. D.B. Bedford Clir P.1.C. Crerar Clir D.S. Gladstone
Clir D.M.T. Bell Clir Sue Dibble Clir C.P. Grattan
ClIr R. Cooper CliIr Jennifer Evans Clir J.H. Marsh

NON-VOTING MEMBERS
Clir R.L.G. Dibbs (ex-officio)
STANDING DEPUTIES

Clir P.F. Rust
Clir S.J. Masterson

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to Lauren Harvey,
Democratic and Customer Services, 01252 398827 lauren.harvey@rushmoor.gov.uk




AGENDA

DECLARATION OF INTEREST -
All Members who believe they have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to
be considered at the meeting may not participate in any discussion or vote taken on

the matter and if the interest is not registered, it must be disclosed to the meeting. In
addition, Members are required to leave the meeting while the matter is discussed.

MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 156)

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 30th March, 2016 (copy attached).
Items for decision

PLANNING APPLICATIONS -

To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1613 on planning applications

recently submitted to the Council (copy attached with a copy of the index appended
to the agenda).

Items for information

PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT) SUMMARY REPORT FOR THE
QUARTER JANUARY - MARCH 2016 AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015 -
2016. -

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1615 (copy attached) which
updates on the Performance Indicators for the Development Management Section of
Planning, and the overall workload of the Section for the period 1st January to 31st
March 2016 and 1st April to 31st March 2016.

APPEALS PROGRESS REPORT -

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1616 (copy attached) on the
progress of recent planning appeals.

MEETING REPRESENTATION

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the
agenda by writing to the Panel Administrator at the Council Offices, Farnborough by
5.00 pm three working days prior to the meeting.

Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in
writing to the Panel Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting.







This page is intentionally left blank



82.

83.

Agenda Item 2

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Wednesday, 30 March 2016 at the Concorde Room, Council
Offices, Farnborough at 7.00 pm.

Voting Members

Clir G.B. Lyon (Chairman)
Clir B.A. Thomas (Vice-Chairman)

Clir Mrs. D.B. Bedford Clir P.1.C. Crerar Clir D.S. Gladstone
Clir D.M.T. Bell CliIr Sue Dibble Clir J.H. Marsh
Clir R. Cooper Clir Jennifer Evans

Non-Voting Members

Councillor Roland Dibbs (ex-officio)

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Clive Grattan.

Clir P.F. Rust attended as standing deputy in place of Councillor Clive Grattan.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Having regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct, the following declaration of interest

was made. The Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest left the meeting during the
debate on the relevant agenda item:

Member Application No. Interest Reason
and Address

Cr. B.A. Thomas 15/00049/FULPP Prejudicial Ran a public
(The Queen’s house close to
Head, 97 North the application
Lane, Aldershot) premises.

Cr. B.A. Thomas 16/00097/FUL Prejudicial Proximity of
(St Joseph’s home to the site.

Roman Catholic
Primary School,
Bridge Road,
Aldershot)

MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 2nd March, 2016 were approved and signed by the
Chairman.

Pack Page 1



84. TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1990 (AS AMENDED) - TOWN AND
COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURE)
ORDER, 1995 - DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS GENERALLY

RESOLVED: That

Pack Page 2

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Permission be given to the following application set out in Appendix
“A” attached hereto, subject to the conditions, restrictions and
prohibitions (if any) mentioned therein:

16/00097/FUL (St Joseph’s Roman Catholic Primary School,
Bridge Road, Aldershot);

the applications dealt with by the Head of Planning, where
necessary in consultation with the Chairman, in accordance with
the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, more particularly specified in
Section “D” of the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610, be
noted,;

the following application be determined by the Head of Planning,
in consultation with the Chairman:

16/00049/FULPP (The Queen’s Head, 97 North Lane, Aldershot);

15/00925/FULPP (Land Off Sarah Way, To The Rear Of 49-51
Victoria Road, Farnborough); and

the current position with regard to the following applications be
noted pending consideration at a future meeting:

15/00897/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00898/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00930/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00931/LBC2PP (Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

16/00007/FULPP (Land at Dingley Way, Farnborough); and
16/00027/FUL (Asda, Westmead, Farnborough);

16/00133/REMPP (Zone E — Gunhill, Aldershot Urban Extension,
Alisons Road, Aldershot).

The Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610 in respect of these
applications was amended at the meeting.



85.

86.

REPRESENTATIONS BY THE PUBLIC

In accordance with the guidelines for public participation at meetings, the following
representation was made to the Committee and was duly considered before a decision
was reached:

Application No. Address Representation In support of
or against the
application

16/00049/FULPP (The Queen’s Mr. J. Coll Against

Head, 97 North
Lane, Aldershot)
Ms. R. Haines In support

APPLICATION NO. 16/00049/FULPP — THE QUEEN’S HEAD, 97 NORTH LANE,
ALDERSHOT

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610 (as amended at
the meeting) regarding the demolition of the existing public house and re-development of
the site with two pairs of 2-bedroom semi-detached houses on road frontage with new
access between leading to a pair of 3-bedroom semi-detached houses at the rear of the
site (6 new dwellings in total), together with detached garages, parking spaces, turning
area and associated landscaping.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning permission, subject to the
completing of a satisfactory agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i) subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 by 4th April, 2016 to secure
appropriate financial contributions towards open space and Special
Protection Area mitigation, the Head of Planning, in consultation with the
Chairman, be authorised to grant planning permission, subject to the
conditions and informatives, as amended at the meeting, set out in the
Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610; however

(i) in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 agreement is not received by
4th April, 2016, the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman,
be authorised to refuse planning permission on the grounds that the
proposal does not make satisfactory provision for public open space in
accordance with Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP11 and CP12 and saved
Local Plan Policy OR4; and a financial contribution to mitigate the effect of
the development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in
accordance with the Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and Core Policies CP11
and CP13.

Pack Page 3



87.

88.

APPLICATION NO. 15/00925/FULPP — LAND OFF SARAH WAY, TO THE REAR
OF 49-51 VICTORIA ROAD, FARNBOROUGH

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610 regarding the
redevelopment of an existing ‘surplus’ car park to provide 1- apartments (4 one bed and
6 two bedroom) with associated car and cycle parking, landscaping, amenity space, bin
storage and vehicular access from Sarah Way.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning permission, subject to the
completion of a satisfactory agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i) subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by 18th April, 2016 to secure financial
contributions towards Special Protection Area mitigation and open space, the
Head of Planning in consultation with the Chairman be authorised to grant
planning permission subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the
Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610; however;

(i) in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 Agreement is not received by 18th
April, 2016, the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be
authorised to refuse planning permission on the grounds that the proposal
fails to make provision for open space contrary to the provisions of policy
CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and “saved” policy OR4 of the
Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011 and to provide mitigation for the
impact of the development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area in accordance with the Council’s Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy contrary to Policy
CP13 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

APPEALS PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1611 concerning the
following appeal updates:

Application No. Description

-- Against the Council’s decision to serve an
Enforcement Notice alleging the unauthorised
change of use of the first floor to a 7 bedroom
house in multiple occupation and 6 self-
contained studio flats in the rear part of the
building at The former Beehive Public House,
264 High Street, Aldershot. The appeal was
set to be dealt with by means of the Public
Inquiry procedure as the submitted grounds of
appeal included Ground (d), this being a ‘legal’
ground of appeal requiring witnesses to be
cross-examined under oath. Subsequently,
notification was received from The Planning

Pack Page 4



Inspectorate that ground (d) had been
withdrawn by the appellant and that the appeal
will now proceed by way of the written
procedure.

-- Against the Council’s decision to serve an
Enforcement Notice alleging the change of use
from storage and distribution to an 18-
bedroom house in multiple occupation
comprised of 12 bed-sitting rooms and six
rooms with shared facilities at The Old
Warehouse, Star Yard, Victoria Road,
Aldershot. This appeal is also to be dealt with
by means of written procedure.

RESOLVED: That

(i) the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1609 be noted; and

(i) the Solicitor to the Council be authorised to enter into bilateral agreements under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, in respect of the
appeal developments at the former Beehive Public House, 264 High Street,

Aldershot and The Old Warehouse, Star Yard, Victoria Road, Aldershot.

The meeting closed at 7.49 pm.

CLLR G.B.LYON
CHAIRMAN

Pack Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



RUSHMOOR BOROUGH
COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 27th April, 2016,
at 7.00 p.m.

To:

VOTING MEMBERS

Cr. G.B. Lyon (Chairman)
Cr. B.A. Thomas (Vice-Chairman)

Cr. D.B. Bedford Cr. P.1.C. Crerar Cr. D. Gladstone
Cr. D.M.T. Bell Cr. Sue Dibble Cr. C.P. Grattan
Cr. R. Cooper Cr. Jennifer Evans Cr. J.H. Marsh

NON-VOTING MEMBER

Cr. R.L.G. Dibbs - Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery
(ex officio)

STANDING DEPUTIES

Cr. S.J. Masterson
Cr. P.F. Rust
Pack Page 7




Pack Page 8



Council Offices, Farnborough Road,
Farnborough, Hants. GU14 7JU
Tel: (01252) 398 399

Website: www.rushmoor.gov.uk

Mr. Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen,

You are hereby summoned to a Meeting of the Development
Management Committee which will be held in the Concorde Room at the
Council Offices, Farnborough on Wednesday, 27th April, 2016 at 7.00 p.m. for
the transaction of the business set out below.

Yours faithfully,

A.E. COLVER
Head of Democratic Services

Council Offices
Farnborough

19th April, 2016

Enquiries regarding this Agenda should be referred to Lauren Harvey,
Administrative Assistant, Democratic Services (Tel: (01252) 398827 or e-mail:
lauren.harvey@rushmoor.gov.uk)

A full copy of this agenda can be found at the following website:
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/8921

Agenda
1. Declarations of interest —

All Members who believe they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
in any matter to be considered at the meeting may not participate in any
discussion or vote taken on the matter and if the interest is not registered,
it must be disclosed to the meeting. In addition, Members are required to
leave the meeting while the matter is discussed.

Pack Page 9


http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/8921

2. Minutes —

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 30th March, 2016
(copy attached).

Items for decision

3. Planning applications —

To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1613 on
planning applications recently submitted to the Council (copy attached with
a copy of the index appended to the agenda).

Iltems for information

4. Planning (Development Management) summary report for the quarter
January — March 2016 and for the financial year 2015 - 2016.

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1615 (copy
attached) which updates on the Performance Indicators for the
Development Management Section of Planning, and the overall workload
of the Section for the period 1st January to 31st March 2016 and 1st April
to 31st March 2016.

5. Appeals progress report —

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1616 (copy
attached) on the progress of recent planning appeals.

Pack Page 10



Item
No.

1

Index to Development Management Committee Agenda

Reference
Number

15/00897/REMPP

15/00898/REMPP

15/00930/LBC2PP

15/00931/LBC2PP

16/00027/FUL

16/00133/REMPP

16/00007/FULPP

16/00165/FULPP

15/00925/FUL

27th April 2016
Report No. PLN1613

Address

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

ASDA Westmead Farnborough

Zone E - Gunhill Aldershot Urban
Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Land At Dingley Way Farnborough
10 Queens Road Farnborough

Sarah Way, Farnborough

Recommendation

For Information

For Information

For Information

For Information

For Information

Grant

Grant

Refuse

Grant

Page No.

25

25

26

26

26

28

58
87

100

Pack Page 11



Pack Page 12



Development Management Committee

27th April 2016

Name: Clir

Declarations of interest

Agenda item 1

Head of Planning

N.B. A declaration is not required for items that appear either in Section D of the
Planning Report or the Appeals Progress Report as such items are for noting only.

Agenda
Item No.

Planning
Application No.

Application
Address

Reason

Pack Page 13




Pack Page 14



82.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Wednesday, 30th March, 2016 at the Council Offices,
Farnborough at 7.00 p.m.

Voting Members
Cr. G.B. Lyon (Chairman)
Cr. B.A. Thomas (Vice-Chairman)

Cr. Mrs. D.B. Bedford Cr. P.I1.C. Crerar Cr. D.S. Gladstone
Cr. D.M.T. Bell Cr. Sue Dibble aCr. C.P. Grattan
Cr. R. Cooper Cr. Jennifer Evans Cr. J.H. Marsh

Non-Voting Member

Cr. R.L.G. Dibbs (Cabinet Member for Environment and Service
Delivery) (ex officio)

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Cr. C.P. Grattan.

Cr. P.F. Rust attended as standing deputy in place of Cr. C.P. Grattan.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST —

Having regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct, the following

declaration of interest was made. The Member with a disclosable pecuniary
interest left the meeting during the debate on the relevant agenda item:

Member Application No. and Interest Reason
Address
Cr. B.A. 15/00049/FULPP Prejudicial Ran a public house
Thomas (The Queen’s Head, close to the
97 North Lane, application
Aldershot) premises.
Cr. B.A. 16/00097/FUL Prejudicial  Proximity of home
Thomas (St Joseph’s Roman to the site.

Catholic Primary
School, Bridge Road,
Aldershot)

Pack Page 15



83. MINUTES -

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 2nd March, 2016 were approved
and signed by the Chairman.

84. TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1990 (AS AMENDED) -
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAL DEVELOPMENT
PROCEDURE) ORDER, 1995 -
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS GENERALLY -

RESOLVED: That

(i) Permission be given to the following application set out in
Appendix “A” attached hereto, subject to the conditions,
restrictions and prohibitions (if any) mentioned therein:

*16/00097/FUL (St Joseph’s Roman Catholic Primary
School, Bridge Road, Aldershot);

(i) the applications dealt with by the Head of Planning, where
necessary in consultation with the Chairman, in accordance with
the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, more particularly specified
in Section “D” of the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610,
be noted;

(i)  the following application be determined by the Head of Planning,
in consultation with the Chairman:

*  16/00049/FULPP (The Queen’s Head, 97 North Lane,
Aldershot);
15/00925/FULPP (Land Off Sarah Way, To The Rear Of
49-51 Victoria Road, Farnborough);
and

(iv)  the current position with regard to the following applications be
noted pending consideration at a future meeting:

15/00897/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00898/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00930/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00931/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

Pack Page 16



85.

86.

16/00007/FULPP (Land at Dingley Way, Farnborough);
and

16/00027/FUL (Asda, Westmead, Farnborough);

16/00133/REMPP (Zone E - Gunhill, Aldershot Urban
Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot).

*  The Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610 in respect of these
applications was amended at the meeting.

REPRESENTATIONS BY THE PUBLIC -
In accordance with the guidelines for public participation at meetings,

the following representation was made to the Committee and was duly
considered before a decision was reached:

Application No. Address Representation In support of
or against the
application

16/00049/FULPP  (The Queen’s Mr. J. Coll Against

Head, 97 North
Lane, Aldershot)
Ms. R. Haines In support

APPLICATION NO. 16/00049/FULPP — THE QUEEN’S HEAD, 97 NORTH
LANE, ALDERSHOT -

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610
(as amended at the meeting) regarding the demolition of the existing public
house and re-development of the site with two pairs of 2-bedroom semi-
detached houses on road frontage with new access between leading to a pair
of 3-bedroom semi-detached houses at the rear of the site (6 new dwellings in
total), together with detached garages, parking spaces, turning area and
associated landscaping.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning
permission, subject to the completing of a satisfactory agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i) subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 by 4th
April, 2016 to secure appropriate financial contributions towards
open space and Special Protection Area mitigation, the Head of
Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to
grant planning permission, subject to the conditions and
informatives, as amended at the meeting, set out in the Head of
Planning’s Report No. PLN1610; however

Pack Page 17



(i)  in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 agreement is not
received by 4th April, 2016, the Head of Planning, in
consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to refuse planning
permission on the grounds that the proposal does not make
satisfactory provision for public open space in accordance with
Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP11 and CP12 and saved Local
Plan Policy OR4; and a financial contribution to mitigate the
effect of the development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area in accordance with the Rushmoor Thames
Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy and Core Policies CP11 and CP13.

87. APPLICATION NO. 15/00925/FULPP — LAND OFF SARAH WAY, TO THE
REAR OF 49-51 VICTORIA ROAD, FARNBOROUGH -

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1610
regarding the redevelopment of an existing ‘surplus’ car park to provide 1-
apartments (4 one bed and 6 two bedroom) with associated car and cycle
parking, landscaping, amenity space, bin storage and vehicular access from
Sarah Way.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning
permission, subject to the completion of a satisfactory agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i) subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by 18th
April, 2016 to secure financial contributions towards Special
Protection Area mitigation and open space, the Head of
Planning in consultation with the Chairman be authorised to
grant planning permission subject to the conditions and
informatives set out in the Head of Planning’s Report No.
PLN1610; however;

(i) in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 Agreement is not
received by 18th April, 2016, the Head of Planning, in
consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to refuse planning
permission on the grounds that the proposal fails to make
provision for open space contrary to the provisions of policy
CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and “saved” policy OR4 of
the Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011 and to provide
mitigation for the impact of the development on the Thames
Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in accordance with the
Council’'s Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy contrary to Policy CP13 of
the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

88. APPEALS PROGRESS REPORT -

Pack Page 18



The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1611
concerning the following appeal updates:

Application No. Description

- Against the Council’'s decision to serve an
Enforcement Notice alleging the unauthorised
change of use of the first floor to a 7 bedroom house
in multiple occupation and 6 self-contained studio
flats in the rear part of the building at The former
Beehive Public House, 264 High Street, Aldershot.
The appeal was set to be dealt with by means of the
Public Inquiry procedure as the submitted grounds of
appeal included Ground (d), this being a ‘legal
ground of appeal requiring witnesses to be cross-
examined under oath. Subsequently, notification was
received from The Planning Inspectorate that ground
(d) had been withdrawn by the appellant and that the
appeal will now proceed by way of the written
procedure.

- Against the Council’'s decision to serve an
Enforcement Notice alleging the change of use from
storage and distribution to an 18-bedroom house in
multiple occupation comprised of 12 bed-sitting
rooms and six rooms with shared facilities at The Old
Warehouse, Star Yard, Victoria Road, Aldershot. This
appeal is also to be dealt with by means of written
procedure.

RESOLVED: That

(i) the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1609 be noted; and

(i) the Solicitor to the Council be authorised to enter into bilateral
agreements under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act, 1990, in respect of the appeal developments at

the former Beehive Public House, 264 High Street, Aldershot
and The Old Warehouse, Star Yard, Victoria Road, Aldershot.

The Meeting closed at 7.49 p.m.

G.B.LYON
CHAIRMAN

Pack Page 19



Application No.

& Date Valid:

Proposal:

Applicant:

Conditions:

Pack Page 20

Development Management Committee
30th March 2016

Appendix “A”

16/00049/FULPP 20th January 2016

Demolition of existing public house and re-development of site
with two pairs of 2-bedroom semi-detached houses on road
frontage with new access between leading to a pair of 3-
bedroom semi-detached houses at rear of site (6 new
dwellings in total), together with detached garages, parking
spaces, turning area and associated landscaping (re-
submission of planning application 15/00475/FULPP refused
18 September 2015) at The Queens Head 97 North Lane
Aldershot Hampshire

Mr G J & Mrs A Boulden

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun
before the expiration of one year from the date of this
permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section
51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004, to reflect the objectives of the Council's
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as amended
July 2014 and to accord with the resolution of
Rushmoor's Cabinet on 17 June 2014 in respect of
Planning Report no PLN1420.

2 Unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, the permission hereby granted shall be
carried out in accordance with the following approved
drawings — LJS Architects Drawing Nos.A546/501A, -
I510A, -/511A, -/512, -/515A, -/516A, -/517A, and
-/518A; Martin J Harvey Drawing Nos.L6-02-01 and
L6-02-02; and lan Keen Ltd. Drawing Nos.8784/01
and 8784/02 Rev.A.

Reason - To ensure the development is
implemented in accordance with the permission
granted.

3 No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or

10



samples of the external materials to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance.”

No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or
samples of surfacing materials, including those to
access driveways/forecourts to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance
and drainage arrangements.*

The development hereby approved shall be
undertaken in accordance with the details of the
existing and proposed ground levels shown on
approved plan Martin J Harvey Drawing No.L6-02-01.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory form of
development in relation to neighbouring property.

No works shall start on site until details of all
screen and boundary walls, fences, hedges or other
means of enclosure have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall be completed and retained in
accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring
property.*

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development
Order) 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order), no development falling within
Classes, A, B, and C of Part 1 of Schedule 2 shall
be carried out without the prior permission of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development
Order) 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order), no additional windows, doors or
openings of any kind shall be inserted in the side
elevations or roofspace of the development hereby

Pack Page 21
11



10

11

12

Pack Page 22

permitted without the prior permission of the Local
Planning Authority. Furthermore, there shall be no
alteration of the size and positions of the windows
shown to be provided on the plans hereby
approved.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring
properties.

Construction or demolition work of any sort within the
area covered by the application shall only take place
between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to
Fridays and 0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at
all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of
neighbouring residential properties and to prevent
adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the
vicinity.

No works shall start on site until a fully detailed
landscape and planting scheme (to include, where
appropriate, both landscape planting and ecological
enhancement) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure the development makes an
adequate contribution to visual amenity.”

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out
in the first planting and seeding season following the
occupation of the buildings or the practical completion
of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years
from the completion of the development die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of similar size and species, unless otherwise
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to help
achieve a satisfactory standard of landscaping.

The development hereby approved shall not be
occupied until the off-street parking facilities shown
on the approved plans (including the garage parking
spaces) have been completed and made ready for
use by the occupiers. The parking facilities shall be

12



13

14

15

16

thereafter retained solely for parking purposes to be
used by the occupiers of, and visitors to, the
development as indicated on the approved plans. For
the avoidance of doubt the parking spaces shall
not be used for the parking or storage of boats,
caravans or trailers.

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of
adequate off-street parking.

Provision shall be made for services to be placed
underground. No overhead wire or cables or other
form of overhead servicing shall be placed over or
used in the development of the application site.

Reason - In the interests of visual amenity.

The cycle parking facilities and refuse bin
storage/collection area(s) hereby approved shall
thereafter be implemented in full before any part of
the development is occupied and retained thereafter
for their respective purposes as approved.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to
ensure a more satisfactory form of development.

No other construction works shall be commenced
on site until the proposed improvements to the
vehicular access to the site and unobstructed sight-
lines have been implemented in full as shown on
the plans hereby approved. The works so
undertaken and sight-lines provided shall be retained
thereafter at all times.

Reason — In the interests of the safety and convenience
of highway users.

No works shall start on site until existing trees to be
retained on and/or adjoining the site have been
adequately protected from damage during site
clearance and works, in accordance with the details
that are hereby approved with the application.
Furthermore, no materials or plant shall be stored and
no buildings erected within the protective fencing
without the prior consent in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that existing trees are adequately
protected in the interests of the visual amenities of the
site and the locality in general.

Pack Page 23

13



Pack Page 24

17

18

19

20

In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or
materials which suggest potential or actual
contamination are revealed at any time during
implementation of the approved development it must
be reported, in writing, immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. A competent person must
undertake a risk assessment and assess the level
and extent of the problem and, where necessary,
prepare a report identifying remedial action which
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before the measures
are implemented. Following completion of measures
identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared and is subject to
approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the
development permitted and in the interests of
amenity and pollution prevention.

Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings
hereby permitted, details of measures to achieve
the energy performance standards in accordance
with Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable
Homes or equivalent for each of the dwellings
hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details as may be approved shall be implemented in
full prior to the first occupation of the dwelling(s) to
which they relate and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP3 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy.

The proposed windows located in the upper floor
side elevations of the dwellings hereby permitted
shall be fitted with fixed obscure glass which shall be
installed prior to the first occupation of the
development and retained thereafter at all times.

Reason — To accord with the proposals as submitted
and in the interests of amenity and privacy of
neighbouring properties.

Measures to incorporate Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SUDS) into the new built development
hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance
with the measures set out in the submitted Martin J
Harvey Surface Water Drainage Strategy Report dated

14



Application No.

& Date Valid:

Proposal:

Applicant:

Conditions:

June 2015 hereby approved. These works shall be
implemented in full prior to the first occupation of the
newly built residential units and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy. *

21 No works shall start on site until details of provision
for the parking and turning on site of operatives and
construction vehicles during the construction and
fitting out works have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and the measures so approved shall be implemented
throughout the construction period.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring

residential properties and to prevent adverse impact
on highway conditions in the vicinity.*

16/00097/FUL 3rd February 2016

Erection of detached early years classroom building with toilets
and group rooms at St Josephs Roman Catholic Primary
School Bridge Road Aldershot Hampshire

Mr Bill James

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun
before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in
accordance with the following approved drawings -

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in
accordance with the permission granted

3 Construction or demolition work of any sort within the
area covered by the application shall only take place
between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays
and 0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take
place on Sundays and Bank or Statutory Holidays.

Pack Page 25
15



Pack Page 26

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties and to prevent adverse impact on
traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

No development, including demolition works, shall start
on site until an Arboricultural Method Statement
(AMS)/and scheme of arboricultural supervision
detailing low impact methods of construction and other
tree protection measures within any tree protection area
has been submitted to and approved in writing by The
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved.

Reason - To ensure the amenity value of the tree(s)
and shrubs in the vicinity of the development is
maintained.”

No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or
samples of the external materials to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
Development shall be completed and retained in
accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance.*

Prior to the commencement of development details of
measures to incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SUDS) into the development or suitable alternative
drainage strategy shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as
may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to
the first occupation of the dwelling and retained in
perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy

16



Application No.

& Date Valid:

Proposal:

Applicant:

Conditions:

15/00925/FULPP 28th November 2015

Redevelopment of existing 'surplus' car park to provide 10
apartments ( 4 one bed and 6 two bedroom) with associated
car and cycle parking, landscaping, amenity space, bin storage
and vehicular access from Sarah Way at Land Off Sarah Way,
To The Rear Of 49-51 Victoria Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Farnborough JV LP

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun
before the expiration of one year from the date of this
permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section
51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004, to reflect the objectives of the Council's
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as amended
July 2014 and to accord with the resolution of
Rushmoor's Cabinet on 17 June 2014 in respect of
Planning Report no PLN1420.

2 Notwithstanding any details submitted with the
application, no works shall start on site until a
schedule and/or samples of the external materials to
be used in the development have been submitted to,
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The Development shall be completed and
retained in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance.*

3 No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or
samples of surfacing materials, including those to
access driveways/parking areas to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed and retained in
accordance with the details so approved

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance
and drainage arrangements.”

4 The development shall be completed and retained

Pack Page 27
17



Pack Page 28

in accordance with the levels shown on the
approved plans.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory form of
development in relation to neighbouring property.*

The building shall not be occupied until details of
all screen and boundary walls, fences, hedges or
other means of enclosure have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall be completed prior to first
occupation and thereafter retained in accordance with
the details so approved.

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring
property.*

Construction or demolition work of any sort within the
area covered by the application shall only take place
between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to
Fridays and 0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at
all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of
neighbouring residential properties and to prevent
adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the
vicinity.

No works shall start on site until a construction
method statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
which shall include:

i) a programme of construction work;

ii) the provision of facilities for contractor parking;

iii) the arrangements for deliveries associated with
all construction works;

iv) access and egress for plant and deliveries;

V) protection of pedestrian routes and
boundaries with adjoining land/buildings
during construction;

vii)  location of temporary site buildings, site
compounds, construction materials and plant
storage areas;

vii)  controls over dust, noise and vibration during the
construction period; and

viii)  provision for storage, collection and disposal
of rubbish from the development during the
construction period

18



10

11

Construction shall only take place in accordance with
the approved method statement.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring, to
prevent pollution and to prevent adverse impact on
highway conditions in the vicinity.*

The landscaping scheme as shown on drawing
number L800 rev P3 shall be implemented in full
prior to the first occupation of any part of the
development or the first available planting season
whichever is the sooner. Any tree/shrub removed,
dying or becoming seriously diseased within five years
of planting shall be replaced by trees/shrubs of similar
size and species to those originally required to be
planted.

Reason - To ensure the development makes an
adequate contribution to visual amenity and in the
interests of biodiversity

No dwelling shall be occupied until the off-street
parking facilities shown on the approved plans
relevant to that dwelling have been completed and
made ready for use by the occupiers. The parking
facilities shall be thereafter retained solely for
parking purposes (to be used by the occupiers of,
and visitors to, the development) and, in the interests
of clarity, not used for the storage of caravans, boats
or trailers .

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of
adequate off-street parking

No part of the development hereby approved shall
be used or occupied until the means of vehicular
access onto Sarah Way has been made available for
use.

Reason - To ensure adequate means of access is
available to the development.

In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or
materials which suggest potential or actual
contamination are revealed at any time during
implementation of the approved development it
must be reported, in writing, immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. A competent person must
undertake a risk assessment and assess the level and

Pack Page 29

19



Pack Page 30

12

13

14

extent of the problem and, where necessary, prepare a
report identifying remedial action which shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the measures are
implemented. Following completion of measures
identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared and is subject to
approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the
development permitted and in the interests of
amenity and pollution prevention

Prior to the commencement of development, and
notwithstanding any details submitted with the
application, a detailed Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SUDS) strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be
implemented in full prior to the first occupation of that
part of the development to which they relate and
retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy

Prior to the commencement of development, and
notwithstanding any details submitted with the
application, details of measures to achieve the energy
performance standards in accordance with Code
Level 4 for Sustainable Homes or equivalent shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such details as may be approved
shall be implemented in full prior to the first occupation
of the plot to which they relate and retained in
perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP3 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy

Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 9 above,
the parking spaces shown on the approved plans
shall be provided in accordance with a plan which
shows car parking spaces allocated to individual
properties which shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval prior to first
occupation of the development and once approved
shall be retained as such.

20



15

16

17

18

Reason - To safeguard residential amenity and ensure
the provision and availability of adequate off-street
parking.

No works shall start on site until details of
communal aerial/satellite facilities for the
development have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved system shall then be installed and made
operational before the relevant dwellings are
occupied. *

Reason - In the interests of the visual amenity of the
area.

The refuse and cycle storage areas as shown on the
approved plans shall be provided prior to the
occupation of any part of the development and
thereafter retained for their designated purpose.

Reason - To promote sustainable transport choices
and to meet the functional requirements of the
development.

The secondary bedroom windows in the side
elevation serving flats 6 and 7 shall be completed in
obscure glazing and thereafter retained.

Reason — To safeguard an appropriate level of privacy
to adjoining residents at Pipers Patch

The permission hereby granted shall be carried out
in accordance with the following approved drawings -
4401_A L522 P4, L1523 P3, L530 _P6, L531_P5,
L100 rev P5, L800 rev P3 and A368 rev A

Reason - To ensure the development is
implemented in accordance with the permission
granted

Pack Page 31

21



Agenda Item 3

Development Management Committee Head of Planning
27th April 2016 Report No.PLN1613

Planning Applications
1. Introduction

1.1 This report considers recent planning applications submitted to the Council,
as the Local Planning Authority, for determination.

2. Sections In The Report
2.1 The report is divided into a number of sections:
Section A - FUTURE Items for Committee — Pages 25 to 26

Applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not
ready for consideration or are recently received applications that have been
received too early to be considered by Committee. The background papers
for all the applications are the application details contained in the Part 1
Planning Register.

Section B — For the NOTING of any Petitions — Page 26 to 27
Section C - Items for DETERMINATION — Pages 28 to 117

These applications are on the Agenda for a decision to be made. Each item
contains a full description of the proposed development, details of the
consultations undertaken and a summary of the responses received, an
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and
concludes with a recommendation. A short presentation with slides will be
made to Committee.

Section D — Applications ALREADY DETERMINED under the Council’s
adopted scheme of Delegation — Pages 118 to 138

This lists planning applications that have already been determined by the
Head of Planning, and where necessary with the Chairman, under the
Scheme of Delegation that was approved by the Development Management
Committee on 17 November 2004. These applications are not for decision
and are FOR INFORMATION only.

2.2  All information, advice and recommendations contained in this report are
understood to be correct at the time of publication. Any change in
circumstances will be verbally updated at the Committee meeting. Where a
recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between preparing
the report and the Committee meeting, a separate sheet will be circulated at
the meeting to assist Members in following the modifications proposed. This
sheet will be available to members of the public.

Pack Page 32
22



3. Planning Policy

3.1 Section 38(6) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (As amended)
requires regard to be had to the provisions of the development plan in the
determination of planning applications. This comprises the Rushmoor Plan
Core Strategy (October 2011), the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
adopted October 2013, saved policies of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(1996-2011) and saved policy NRM6 of the South East Plan.

3.2  Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the
relevant development plan will have been used as a background document
and the relevant policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on
each item. Where a development does not accord with the development plan
and it is proposed to recommend that planning permission be granted, the
application will be advertised as a departure and this will be highlighted in the
Committee report.

4. Human Rights

4.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 (the Act) has incorporated part of the European
Convention on Human Rights into English law. All planning applications are
assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the development
proposal is compatible with the Act. If there is a potential conflict, this will be
highlighted in the report on the relevant item.

5. Public Speaking

5.1  The Committee has agreed a scheme for the public to speak on cases due to
be determined at the meeting (Planning Services report PLN0327 refers).
Members of the public wishing to speak must have contacted the Meeting Co-
ordinator in Democratic Services by 5pm on the Tuesday immediately
preceding the Committee meeting. It is not possible to arrange to speak to
the Committee at the Committee meeting itself.

6. Late Representations

6.1  The Council has adopted the following procedures with respect to the receipt
of late representations on planning applications (Planning report PLN 0113
refers):

a) All properly made representations received before the expiry of the final
closing date for comment will be summarised in the Committee report. Where
such representations are received after the agenda has been published, the
receipt of such representations will be reported orally and the contents
summarised on the amendment sheet that is circulated at the Committee
meeting. Where the final closing date for comment falls after the date of the
Committee meeting, this will be highlighted in the report and the
recommendation caveated accordingly.

Pack Page 33
23



b) Representations from both applicants and others made after the expiry of the
final closing date for comment and received after the report has been
published will not be accepted unless they raise a new material consideration
which has not been taken into account in the preparation of the report or
draws attention to an error in the report.

c) Representations that are sent to Members should not accepted or allowed to
influence Members in the determination of any planning application unless
those representations have first been submitted to the Council in the proper
manner (but see (b) above).

d) Copies of individual representations will not be circulated to members but
where the requisite number of copies are provided, copies of individual
representation will be placed in Members’ pigeonholes.

e) All letters of representation will be made readily available in the Committee
room an hour before the Committee meeting.

7. Financial Implications

7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, in
the event of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the
Council’'s decision. Rarely, and in certain circumstances, decisions on
planning applications may result in the Council facing an application for costs
arising from a planning appeal. Officers will aim to alert Members where this
may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such circumstances.

Keith Holland
Head of Planning

Background Papers

- The individual planning application file (reference no. quoted in each case)

- Rushmoor Core Strategy (2011)

- Rushmoor Local Plan Review (1996-2011)[Saved policies]

- Current government advice and guidance contained in circulars, ministerial
statements and the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

- Any other document specifically referred to in the report.

- Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East, policy NRM6: Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area.

- The National Planning Policy Framework.

- Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013).

Pack Page 34
24



Development Management Committee Report No. PLN1613
27th April 2016

Section A

Future items for Committee

Section A items are for INFORMATION purposes only. It comprises applications that
have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for consideration or
are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by the
Committee. The background papers for all the applications are the application details
contained in the Part 1 Planning Register.

Item | Reference Description and address

1 | 15/00897/REMPP PART APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS: for
the conversion of the Cambridge Military Hospital
(including part demolition, extensions and external
alterations) to provide 74 dwellings (Use Class C3)
and 943m2 of mixed commercial and community
uses (Use Classes A3, B1, D1 and D2); with
associated landscaping, access and parking, in
Development Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital),
pursuant to Condition 4 (1 to 21), attached to Outline
Planning Permission 12/00958/OUT dated 10th
March 2014.

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Revised submissions from the applicants are under
discussion.

2 | 15/00898/REMPP PART APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS: for
the redevelopment of the Louise Margaret Hospital
and Nurses Residence (including part demolition,
external alterations, extensions and new build) to
provide 42 dwellings (Use Class C3) with associated
landscaping, access and parking, in Development
Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital), pursuant to
Condition 4 (1 to 21), attached to Outline Planning
Permission 12/00958/OUT dated 10th March 2014.

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Revised submissions from the applicants are under
discussion.

RPackPage 35

25



Pac

15/00930/LBC2PP

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT: for internal and
external alterations, including part demolition, to
facilitate the conversion of the Cambridge Military
Hospital to provide 74 dwellings and 943m2 of mixed
commercial and community uses in Development
Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital).(PLEASE SEE
APPLICATION REFERENCE 15/00897/REMPP
FOR DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS)

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Revised submissions from the applicants are under
discussion.

15/00931/LBC2PP

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT: for internal and
external alterations, including part demolition, to
facilitate the redevelopment of the Louise Margaret
Hospital and Nurses Residence site to provide 42
dwellings, in Development Zone C (Cambridge
Military Hospital). (PLEASE SEE APPLICATION
REFERENCE 15/00898/REMPP FOR DRAWINGS
AND DOCUMENTS)

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Revised submissions from the applicants are under
discussion.

16/00027/FUL

Construction of a 'Home Shopping' link canopy and
van loading canopy and other associated works.

ASDA Westmead Farnborough Hampshire

Revised submissions from the applicants are under
discussion.

Petitions

Section B

Item

Reference

Description and address

K Pag

16/00165/FULPP

e 36

Demolition of existing shop and erection of new
building comprising 1 x studio flat, 2 x one bedroom
flats and 1 x two bedroom flat with associated car
parking

26




10 Queens Road, Farnborough

A petition containing 57 signatures has been received
objecting to the proposal on the grounds that it would
have an adverse impact upon the vitality and viability of
North Camp by resulting in the loss of a commercial
premises and would adversely affect residential
amenity, highway safety and environmental conditions.

Pack Page 37
27



[tem 6

Development Management Committee Directorate of Community and
27th April 2016 Environment
Planning report No.PLN1613

Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Maggie Perry
Application No. 16/00133/REMPP
Date Valid 17th February 2016
Expiry date of 18th March 2016

consultations

Proposal APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS: for 107 Dwellings (87
Flats and 20 houses) in Gunhill (Zone E), pursuant to Condition 4
(1 to 21), attached to Outline Planning Permission 12/00958/OUT
dated 10th March 2014 on Land at Wellesley, Aldershot Urban
Extension, centred on Queen's Avenue and Alison’s Road,
Aldershot, Hampshire

Address Zone E — Gunhill, Aldershot Urban Extension, Alison’s Road,
Aldershot, Hampshire

Ward Wellington

Applicant Grainger Limited And Secretary Of State For Defence

Agent Savills

Recommendation GRANT subject to s106 legal agreement

Description

Background & Site

On the 10th March 2014 hybrid outline planning permission (ref: 12/00958/OUT) was granted
for the redevelopment of land at the Ministry of Defence's former Aldershot Garrison for up to
3,850 no. dwellings together with associated infrastructure, including a neighbourhood
centre, employment provision, schools and a suite of Suitable Alternative Natural
Greenspace (SANG). The development is referred to as the Aldershot Urban Extension
(AUE) or Wellesley.

The Wellesley Masterplan is divided into a series of Development Zones. The application site
is Development Zone E — Gunhill (3.68 hectares). Zone E lies to the south of Hospital Road
between Middle Hill and Gun Hill and contains the Grade Il Listed Royal Medical Corps Boer
War Memorial (hereafter referred to as the South African War Memorial). The zone is located

Pack Page 38
28



along the wooded ridge that runs along the southern edge of the Aldershot Urban Extension
and falls within the Aldershot Military Conservation Area.

Gunhill Zone E is bounded to the north, east and west by highways. No existing residential
properties directly adjoin it. Aldershot Centre for Health and the Queen Mary nursery are
located further to the west. To the east lies the listed Gunhill House, Water Tower and
Cambridge Military Hospital buildings. Talavera Infant School adjoins the southern boundary
of the site further down the escarpment.

A reserved matters application for 108 units (82 Flats and 26 houses) was approved in
relation to this zone on 24th March 2015 (ref: 14/00900/REMPP). The permission was
subject to a s106 legal agreement (deed of variation) to secure appropriate changes to the
legal agreement attached to the original outline planning permission for Wellesley. An
associated Listed Building Consent application for detailed landscaping works around the
South African War Memorial was approved in connection with the proposals (ref:
15/00006/LBC2PP).

On the 23rd December 2014 a Screening Opinion was issued which concluded that the
Environmental Statement (ES) which accompanied the outline permission is robust and did
not require updating in relation to the previous proposed reserved matters scheme for
Development Zone E — Gunhill. In respect of the current application, it is considered that the
application has been prepared in line with the parameters approved through the outline
permission, and there has been no significant change to the environment since the outline
application was approved.

Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application, a Design Code Document 3
was approved for Gunhill Zone E (ref: 00568/CONPP dated 23/09/2014). Approval was also
granted for demolition of existing buildings (14/00421/CONDPP, 29/07/2014) and for tree
works within the Gunhill Development Zone (14/00567/CATPP, 08/12/2014).

Reserved Matters

Condition 4 of the outline planning permission sets out the ‘reserved matters’ that require
approval prior to the commencement of each Development Zone, as follows:

1 Scale and external appearance;
2 Landscaping (hard and soft);

3 Ecology;

4 Remediation;

5 Air quality (if required);

6 Heritage Trail Details;

7 Infrastructure and Drainage ;

8 Trees;

9 Levels;

10 Construction Environmental Management Plan;

11 Construction Traffic Management Plan;

12 Statement of Compliance with Design Code 3;

13 The layout of the development, including the positions and widths of roads and
footpaths;

14 Landscaping, including a landscaping design showing the planting proposed to be
undertaken, the means of forming enclosures, the materials to be used for paved
and hard surfaces and the finished levels in relation to existing levels;

15 The design and external appearance of all buildings, plant and tanks, including

Pack Page 39
29



details of the colour and texture of external materials to be used, together with
samples of all external facing and roofing materials;

16 The layout of foul sewers and surface water drains;

17 The measures to be taken to protect adjacent areas from excessive noise;

18 Measures to protect the occupiers of residential property from external noise;

19 The provision to be made for street lighting including measures to prevent spillage
and light pollution;

20 The provision to be made for the storage and removal of refuse from the premises,
and;

21 Archaeological watching brief.

The Planning Statement submitted with the current application sets out a list of the relevant
documents to be considered in relation to each of the reserved matters. The planning
application (including drawings) is accompanied by the following supporting documents:

Planning Statement (Savills, February 2016)

Gunhill Compliance Schedule

Arboricultural Development Statement CBA9004 v3 (CBA Trees, February 2016 )

Tree Survey (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, October 2014)

Phase 1 Bat Survey (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, November 2014)

Reptile Habitat Suitability Assessment (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd,

October 2014)

Archaeological Watching Brief ref: 79182.01 (Wessex Archaeology, January 2016)

e Construction Traffic Management Plan ref: ZGTASHOT.2 (Mayer Brown, February
2016)

e Construction Environmental Management Plan ref: WGTASHOT.9 (Mayer Brown,
March 2016)

e Design & Access Statement (Omega Partnership, February 2016)

e Phase 1 Desk Study Site Reconnaissance Report ref: LP00846 (Leap Environmental,
04/12/2014)

e Landscape Management and Maintenance Proposals ref: 2519-GH-RE-01 P4 (Allen

Pyke Associates, February 2016)

Lighting Assessment ref: A088927 (WYG, February 2016)

Outdoor Lighting Report (Mayer Brown, 12th February 2016)

Noise Assessment ref: A088927 (WYG, February 2016)

Drainage Statement (Mayer Brown, April 2016)

Proposals for Gunhill Development Zone (Current/ Revised Scheme)

The reserved matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E comprises 107 residential dwellings with
associated parking, access and amenity space, and a central area of communal open space.
The development would provide 87 Flats and 20 houses. The design and layout of the
development is described in more detail in the commentary section of this report.

The proposals relate to the entire zone and represent a single phase of development. As with
the previously approved scheme, the developer proposes that Gunhill is initially developed
as a Build to Rent scheme (private rented accommodation). As such, the Gunhill
Development Zone would not provide any affordable housing until after a period of ten years
from first occupation of the development. At this point, a proportion of the development
(34.58%) would be transferred in agreed phases to a Registered Provider to provide
affordable housing in accordance with the provisions agreed within the Affordable Housing
Development Zone Strategy (required by the outline s106 legal agreement, as amended).

Pack Page 40
30



The Applicant’s Planning Statement explains why a revised scheme has been submitted:

“Following the grant of permission and more detailed technical assessment, it was
established that the construction works required to implement the scheme, particularly the
required ground works at the southern side of the site, would impact on the viability and
deliverability of the development as approved. This has resulted in the need for a more
efficient design for the buildings and a revised layout, which includes a reduction
development on the southern side of the site. The revised scheme continues to follow the
principles of form and layout previously approved, but with some revisions...”

The key changes to the scheme are:

¢ Reduction in total number of dwellings from 108 to 107.

e Revised detailed design for the dwellings and flat blocks.

e Revisions to the layout across the site, including a reduction on the number of
dwellings on the southern side of the site — the land in the south-eastern corner is now
proposed to provide informal amenity space.

e Revised parking layout.

The dwellings would be arranged around the existing woodland, forming three distinct areas
of residential development. A total of 220 parking spaces and 195 cycle parking spaces is
proposed.

Consultee Responses

Housing Team: No objection subject to s106 legal agreement to secure the
phased delivery of affordable housing and to ensure the
house type and the balance of tenure (intermediate and
rented) is redressed by the Corunna phase of
development, through adjustments to the Affordable
Housing Development Zone Strategy.

Response: These matters will be addressed by the
proposed legal agreement/deed of variation.

Transportation Strategy Officer No objection subject to further consideration of the

(on behalf of HCC Highways):  design of the cycle shelters and associated structures
in terms of weatherproofing and durability.
Response: Revised drawings have been submitted,
(clarifying the detailed design of the roofs) together
with further information relating to the management of
the structures in question. The details are acceptable.

Community — Contracts Team: No objection

Environmental Health Officer: No objection

Ecologist Officer: No objection

Arboricultural Officer: No objection

Pack Page 41
31



Conservation Design Officer: No objection

English Heritage: Confirmed do not wish to comment.
Environment Agency: No objection
Natural England: No objection

HCC Surface Water Drainage: No objection

HCC County Archaeologist: No objection
Crime Prevention Design No objection raised in principle but raised concerns over
Officer: public access to the back of specific dwellings and a lack of

natural surveillance in certain parts of the development,
particularly in respect of the carparks proposed on the
eastern and western sides of the development. Advised
that an appropriate level of lighting should be provided
throughout the development.

Response: These comments were forwarded to the
applicant’s planning agent for consideration. Amended
plans and a supporting statement have been received
which address some of the matters raised.

Hampshire Fire & Rescue No objection raised. Provided general guidance and
Services: advice.

Response: These comments have been forwarded to the
applicant’s planning agent for consideration.

Aspire Defence Services Ltd: No comments received.

Seven Trent Services Ltd: No comments received.

Neighbours notified

In addition to displaying two (2) site notices and a press advertisement, nine (9) individual
letters of notification were sent to the occupiers of neighbouring properties, including those
properties physically adjoining the application site. The consultation period expired 18"
March 2016.

Neighbour comments

No representations received.

Policy and determining issues

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF March 2012) provides the Government’s
planning policies for England and sets out a presumption in favour of “sustainable
development”. The context for sustainable development is set by twelve core planning

principles. Annex 1 of the NPPF notes that applications for planning permission should be
determined in accordance with the local plan unless material considerations indicate

Pack Page 42
32



otherwise.

The Rushmoor Core Strategy was adopted by the Council in October 2011. This site is
identified on the proposals map as falling within the Aldershot Urban Extension and
Aldershot Military Town Conservation Area.

The following policies of the Core Strategy are relevant:

SP1 (Aldershot Urban Extension)

CP1 (Sustainable Development Principles)

CP2 (Design and Heritage)

CP3 (Renewable Energy and Sustainable Construction)
CP4 (Surface Water Flooding)

CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and Housing Mix)

CP6 (Affordable Housing)

CP13 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area)
CP15 (Biodiversity)

CP16 (Reducing and Managing Travel Demand)

Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policies (August 2007):

ENV13 (Trees

ENV16 (Major Sites)

ENV19 (Comprehensive Landscape Plans)

ENV23 (Works to Listed Buildings)

ENV26 (Adjoining Development)

ENV30 (Archaeology)

ENV31 (Recording of Remains)

ENV34 (Preserve or Enhance Character)

ENV36 (Materials)

ENV42 (Flood Risk Protection Measures)

ENV48 (Damage to the Environment — noise, smoke gases etc.)
ENV49 (Development on Contaminated Land)

ENV50 (Amenities of Local Residents While Sites Are Being Developed)
ENV51 (Development of Sites Affected by Air Pollution or Noise)
ENV52 (Light Pollution)

ORA4 (Public Open Space Required for New Development)

H14 (Amenity Space)

In addition, the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) "Housing
Density and Design" adopted in April 2006, “Parking Standards” adopted in 2012 and the
Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation
Strategy as updated February 2011 are applicable.

The main determining issues in the assessment of the Reserved Matters Application are:

The principle of development

Housing tenure & mix

Layout, design and scale

Heritage & conservation

Transport, parking & access

Living environment created for future residents

Pack Page 43
33



Impact on neighbours

Nature conservation and trees
Flood risk & drainage
Sustainable development
Archaeology

Commentary
The principle of development —

The Wellesley Master Plan, approved as part of hybrid outline planning permission ref:
12/00958/0OUT is divided into a series of manageable areas called Development Zones.
Condition 4 of the outline planning permission sets out the reserved matters that require
approval prior to the commencement of each development zone. The current application is
for the submission of reserved matters in relation to Development Zone E — Gunhill. This
zone was identified in the outline planning application’s lllustrative Delivery Plan as providing
105 residential units, 35% of which would be affordable housing.

A set of Design Codes was approved as part of the outline planning application. Design
Code Document 1 sets out general design code principles and Design Code Document 2
provides definitions and technical specifications. These documents apply to the entire AUE
site whereas a Design Code Document 3, providing zone-specific requirements, is required
for each Development Zone (secured by Condition 3 of the outline permission). A Design
Code Document 3 was approved for Gunhill - Zone E on the 23rd September 2014 (ref:
00568/CONPP).

The revised Reserved Matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E comprises 107 residential
dwellings with associated parking, access and amenity space, and a central area of
communal open space. The application supersedes planning application ref:
14/00900/REMPP which was approved on the 24™ March 2015. The Reserved Matters
Application applies to the entire Development Zone and no subsequent applications would
therefore be required.

As with the previously approved scheme, the developer proposes that Gunhill is initially
developed as a Build to Rent scheme (private rented accommodation). The Gunhill
Development Zone would not provide any affordable housing for a period of ten years from
first occupation of the development. At this point, a proportion of the development (34.58%
based on unit numbers) would be transferred to a Registered Provider to provide affordable
housing in accordance with the provisions agreed within the Affordable Housing
Development Zone Strategy (required by the outline s106 legal agreement). These changes
are reflected in the recommendation and proposed legal agreement heads of terms.

In summary, it is considered that the Reserved Matters proposals sufficiently reflect the
terms the outline planning permission, parameter plans and the principles of the Design
Code 3 document as approved. The proposals are acceptable in principle, subject to detailed
assessment against relevant national and local planning policies and guidance.

Housing tenure & mix —

The s106 legal agreement attached to the outline planning permission for Wellesley requires
35% of the housing units within the Aldershot Urban Extension to be affordable housing, of
which 60% shall be affordable/social rented and 40% intermediate. To allow a degree of
flexibility, the Affordable Housing Strategy (AHS) contained within Schedule 16 of the s106

Pack Page 44
34



permits a variance of 5% of affordable housing between individual Development Zones, i.e.
each Development Zone should provide between 30% and 40% affordable housing. This is
to allow for site specific constraints. Further, the AHS acknowledges (page 7) that “in special
circumstances, e.g. The Cambridge Military Hospital, no affordable housing may be delivered
within a particular reserved matters application, however the overall target of 35% will still

apply”.

Paragraphs 2.11, 2.12 and 2.13 of the legal agreement require an Affordable Housing
Development Zone Strategy (AHDZS) to be submitted to the Council for approval with the
first Reserved Matters Application in any Development Zone. The strategy should set out the
number of estimated Reserved Matters Applications within the Development Zone and the
proposed quantum of affordable housing units provided for each application to be applied
within that Development Zone. Each subsequent Reserved Matters should be accompanied
by a statement confirming the proposals for affordable housing within the reserved matters
application area are in compliance with the Affordable Housing Strategy.

An AHDZS was approved for Gunhill Development Zone as part of the previous Reserved
Matters application (ref: 14/00900/REMPP). A Deed of Variation was also secured to vary
the terms of the legal agreement in relation to the time triggers for providing affordable
housing within the Gunhill Zone and to provide an updated Affordable Housing Strategy for
the whole of the Wellesley development. A similar Deed of Variation would be required in
relation to the current (revised) Reserved Matters application.

The revised Reserved Matters proposals for Gunhill would provide a total of 107 dwellings:

Dwelling type 1 bed 2-bed 3-bed 4-bed Total
Affordable Flats 6 9
(Affordable/ Social

Rented)

Affordable Flats 8 14 22

(Intermediate)

Affordable Houses 6 6
(Affordable/ Social

Rented

Private Flats 20 36 56
Private Houses 14 14
Total 31 56 6 14 107

Table 1: Accommodation schedule

The principle that Gunhill Development Zone will initially be developed as a Build to Rent
scheme (private rented accommodation) was established by the previous Reserved Matters
application ref: 14/00900/REMPP, as set out in the approved AHDZS. As with the previous
scheme it is proposed that Gunhill will not provide any affordable housing until ten years from

Pack Page 45
35



first occupation of the development.

The level of affordable housing previously approved for Gunhill represented 32.4% with a
percentage spilt between affordable/social rented and intermediate housing of 57:43 (based
on number of units). The revised application now proposes that at ten years from first
occupation of the development, 34.58% of the units will be transferred to a Registered
Provider to provide affordable housing, with a percentage spilt between affordable/social
rented and intermediate of 51:49. The transfer of the properties would be phased.

Whilst the percentage of affordable housing now proposed is slightly higher, the split
between affordable/social rented and intermediate is now skewed towards a higher
proportion of intermediate housing. The balance will therefore need to be redressed at the
next appropriate phase of the Wellesley development in order to achieve the required 60/40
split across the development as a whole. These adjustments will be accommodated by way
of an updated Affordable Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing Development Zone
Strategy, which will be secured by deed of variation to the Wellesley legal agreement.

The justification for the delay in providing affordable housing at Gunhill is that the proposal
would take advantage of low cost financing from the Homes and Communities Agency
(HCA). The previously approved AHDZS stated that there is “a unique opportunity to secure
one-off funding to develop private rented sector (PRS) homes that complement the overall
development and provide a critical mass of homes earlier than would development following
phased land sales. This critical mass of homes will help deliver the wider regeneration
benefits of the Wellesley development by increasing local demand for services provided by
the town. The proposal also provides a private rented option for local people and people
moving to the area for jobs, managed by a specialist residential landlord, Grainger, who
provide high quality housing management services.”

Grainger plc is eager to develop Cambridge Military Hospital (CMH) as early as possible
within the development given that the hospital is such an important landmark building for
Wellesley. However, taking into consideration the heritage status of the buildings and their
state of disrepair, considerable costs will be associated with the implementation of the CMH
Development Zone, costs that are likely to affect the return from that phase of the
development. In this regard, the previously approved AHDZS states, “the conditions of
funding require start on site and scheme delivery within set timescales. Grainger is also
looking to use Homes and Communities Agency Build to Rent (HCA B2R) funding to support
the Cambridge Military Hospital (CMH) phase of Wellesley to help address some of the
negative financial return expected with the CMH. The delivery of the two phases under B2R
is expected to provide additional economies of scale and greater critical mass with which to
deliver the two projects.

The AHDZS as amended will set out the adjustments to the proposed quantum, mix and
tenure of affordable housing with the Gunhill Development Zone and across the wider
development in the context of the delivery plan. The original Wellesley masterplan indicated
that Gunhill would provide 105 dwellings, whereas the Reserved Matters application now
proposes 107 units at Gunhill.

37 of the proposed units for Gunhill have been designed to the appropriate standard to
enable them to be transferred to affordable housing in phases after a 10-year period. All of
the affordable units identified would meet the Lifetime Homes Standards and the minimum
standards set out in the Affordable Housing Strategy (AHS). 10% (2 units) of the affordable
rented units would meet wheelchair-housing standards in accordance with the specific
requirements of the legal agreement.

Pack Page 46
36



It is considered that the delay in providing affordable housing at Gunhill will assist the
delivery of housing at Wellesley at a faster rate and enable the redevelopment of CMH to be
brought forward sooner. Taking this into account, the Council’'s Housing Strategy and
Enabling Team have confirmed that there is no objection to the delay in affordable housing
provision on this Development Zone, provided there are robust measures in place to ensure
that the affordable housing will be delivered at Gun Hill, in the following phases:

e The transfer of 12 units within 10 years of first occupation within Gunhill or occupation
of 3200 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever is earlier.

e The transfer of 14 units within 11 years of first occupation within Gunhill or occupation
of 3350 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever is earlier.

e The transfer of 9 units within 13 years of first occupation within Gunhill or occupation
of 3500 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever is earlier.

The Applicant has agreed to the phased transfer of units based on the current build out
prediction. A deed of variation to the original section 106 legal agreement for Wellesley will
be necessary in order to secure a sufficient mechanism to ensure that the units in question
become affordable housing within the timescales described above in accordance with Core
Strategy Policy CP6. A supplemental deed will also be required to secure the Affordable
Housing Development Zone Strategy for Gunhill Development Zone and to update the
schedule contained within the Affordable Housing Strategy appended to the s106 agreement,
which demonstrates how affordable housing is to be provided across the site. These heads
of terms are described in the planning officer's recommendation.

Layout, design and scale -
Design Codes

A set of Design Codes was approved as part of the hybrid outline planning application.
Design Code Document 1 sets out general design code principles and Design Code
Document 2 provides definitions and technical specifications. These documents apply to the
entire site whereas Condition 3 of the outline planning permission requires a Design Code
Document 3 to be submitted and approved for each Development Zone, establishing detailed
design principles for the relevant zone.

A Design Code Document 3 was approved for Gunhill Zone E on the 23/09/2014 (ref:
00568/CONPP). This document identifies the key issues and priorities relevant to Gunhill and
has informed the design of the Reserved Matters Application. The Planning Statement
submitted with the Reserved Matters application incorporates a ‘Statement of Compliance
with Design Code 3’, in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the outline
permission.

The Design and Access Statement identifies the key elements of the Gunhill development
zone:

Residential

Maximum storey height -5
Character Area - F

Level of Code Control- Warm

Pack Page 47
37



Conservation Area (Aldershot Military Town)
Listed Monuments (South African War Memorial)
Demolition of existing Buildings

Woodland Areas

The Reserved Matters Scheme

The revised Reserved Matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E comprises 107 residential
dwellings arranged over three distinct areas of the site.

The maijority of the development would occupy the northern part of the Development Zone
fronting onto Hospital Road. This area would accommodate 92 dwellings together with
associated internal access roads, parking and amenity space, and, an area of public open
space. The development would be constructed predominantly in red brick with grey slate
roofs.

The accommodation on the northern part of the site would comprise a mix of flats and
houses of between 3 and 5 storeys, in accordance with the approved parameter plans of the
outline permission. Vehicular access would be via Hospital Road at the northwest corner of
the site. Three apartment blocks of up to 5 storeys would be arranged to address Hospital
Road, the easternmost block would be smaller in scale at four storeys in height, stepping
down on the north-east corner of the site as it returns adjacent to the Memorial. A series of
three-storey semi-detached four-bedroom houses would be set further back within the site,
arranged along the southern side of the crescent shaped internal access road.

The existing Grade |l Listed South African War Memorial near the junction of Gun Hill and
Hospital Road is to be retained as an important feature within this part of the Development
Zone and has influenced the layout of the development. A separate application for Listed
Building Consent for detailed landscaping works around the monument has been approved
under planning ref 15/00006/LBC2PP.

A three-storey block of eight flats is proposed on the eastern side of the site with associated
parking and separate vehicular entrance from Gun Hill.

Two terraces of three x two-storey, three-bedroom houses are proposed in the southwest
corner of the site, with an associated parking area and vehicular access from Middle Hill
(total of 6 dwellings). This part of the site is located on the lower slopes of the Development
Zone, separated by a substantial strip of woodland and a retaining wall. An existing open
lawn to the east of the proposed houses would be retained as informal amenity space.

It is considered that the scale and layout of the development would accord with the approved
Outline Planning Permission parameter plans and the principles set by the approved Design
Code 1, 2 and 3 documents. The application provides detailed proposals for hard and soft
landscaping (including details of landscape management) and site levels in accordance with
the requirements of Condition 4 of the Outline Planning Permission. The detailed design
accords with the palettes described within the Design Codes, dictated by the variable levels
of design code control and the designated character areas.

The proposals are consistent with Core Strategy Policy CP2 and Rushmoor Local Plan
Review saved policies ENV19, ENV23, ENV26, ENV34 and ENV36.

Pack Page 48
38



Heritage & Conservation —
Impact on Heritage Assets

The Council’s Conservation Officer and Historic England have been consulted in relation to
the Reserved Matters application for Gunhill and have not raised any objections to the
proposals.

The Gunhill Development Zone is located in the Aldershot Military Town Conservation Area
and the future development of the zone will affect the setting of various heritage assets
including the Cambridge Military Hospital (and curtilage buildings) to the east, Maida
Gymnasium and Smith Dorrien Building to the northwest and the South African War
Memorial located in the northeast corner of the development zone (all Grade Il Listed).

The South African War Memorial has influenced the design and layout of the development
with the memorial and new amenity area providing a focal point at the eastern end of the
central access road. The setting of the memorial would be enhanced by landscaping
proposals and through the use of high quality materials (see Listed Building Consent ref:
15/00006/LBC).

The Design and Access Statement describes the proposed scheme for Gunhill as an
intention to ‘combine the historical mass, proportion and scale with a more contemporary
interpretation of materials, detailing and elevation elements’. In this regard, the three
apartment blocks facing Hospital Road (up to five-storeys) would be seen as a continuation
of the scale of the Cambridge Military Hospital. These apartment buildings would be
constructed in red brick, accented by strong gable feature towers. Further, the revised
scheme sees the replacement of a flat contemporary stepped roofline originally proposed,
with more traditional pitched roofs tiled in grey slate. This is viewed as a significant
improvement on the previous design.

The proposed development would reduce in height and scale as the site extends to the
south, where ground levels fall away towards Aldershot Town Centre. A crescent of smaller
scale three-storey semi-detached townhouses is proposed centrally within the zone. The
Design and Access Statement describes the buildings as presenting “traditional proportions
and massing with contemporary detailing”. The pairs of semi-detached properties would
feature alternate gable fronted and pitched roof designs and would be constructed in red
brick with tiled slate roofs.

The two-storey terraced houses proposed in the southwest corner of the site, accessed off
Middle Hill and the three-storey apartment block fronting Gun Hill to the east would be of a
more traditional design and character than originally proposed in the first Reserved Matters
application. These buildings would be constructed in matching red brick and would feature
pitched and gable roofs, hung in grey slate.

Condition 4 of the Outline Planning Permission and the s106 legal agreement require any
Reserved Matters proposals to demonstrate enhancement of the existing Heritage Trail in
relation to the relevant Development Zone in accordance with the approved Conservation
and Heritage Strategy and Design Code Document 3 (DCD3). The route of the heritage trail
follows the Hospital Road frontage of the Gunhill Development Zone and the DCD3 has
identified the South African War Memorial as an on-site heritage feature to be incorporated
into this section of the trail together with other off-site landmarks and features, including
Gordon’s Oak, CMH clock tower and distant views towards the church spires. It is envisaged
that the open amenity space adjacent to the site will provide opportunities for way-finding,

Pack Page 49
39



interpretation boards (or equivalent) and seating areas to enhance the route.

Notwithstanding the information provided in the application, given the sensitive heritage
setting of the site, a condition is proposed to secure further details of the proposed materials
to be used on the external surfaces of the buildings, including samples where appropriate. As
such, it is considered that the proposals would safeguard the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area and adjoining heritage assets, in accordance with Core Strategy
Policy CP2 and Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policies ENV19, ENV23, ENV26,
ENV34 and ENV36.

Highways Considerations -

Details of the site layout, roads and footpaths, refuse and recycling storage and a
Construction Traffic Management Plan have been submitted with the Reserved Matters
Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4. A Transport Assessment
(including Travel Plans and Public Transport Strategy) was approved as part of the outline
planning permission for Wellesley. Road hierarchy principles for the AUE site as a whole
were established with the approval of the Design Codes.

Access and parking

Three new vehicular access points and a secondary emergency access of Hospital Road
would serve the development. The largest parcel of the development, comprising three
apartment blocks and seven pairs of semi-detached houses, would be accessed from the
north via Hospital Road. The proposed development of six terraced houses adjacent to the
southern boundary of the site would be accessed from Middle Hill (west), via Hospital Road.
The apartment building on the eastern side of the site would be accessed from Gun Hill.

The Council’s Transportation Strategy Officer has raised no objection to the detailed road
layout drawings of the development in relation to sight lines and access and manoeuvring for
vehicles, including service vehicles. A total of 220 car parking spaces, including 5% designed
to disabled parking standards, is proposed in accordance with the Council’s adopted parking
standards, which require 1 space per 1-bed dwelling (plus 1/3 visitor spaces), 2 spaces per
2/3-bed dwelling (plus 1/5 visitor spaces) and 3 spaces per 4+ bed dwellings.

The Council’s standards require cycle parking provision of 1 space per 1-bed dwelling and 2
spaces per 2, 3 and 4-bed dwelling. The Council’s Transport Strategy Officer has raised no
objection to the level of cycle parking provided, of which 72 of the spaces would be provided
in pergola style shelters arranged around the central landscaped amenity area of the site.
This area would also accommodate visitors’ cycle parking. A pergola style shelter is also
proposed for the apartment building fronting Gunhill. None of the apartment buildings would
feature integral cycle stores. Houses could either accommodate cycle parking within their
garages or the curtilage of their private gardens.

No objection is raised to the proposal in relation to servicing, parking or highway safety
grounds. The proposals are consistent with Core Strategy Policies CP1, CP16 and the
Council’s ‘Parking Standards’ SPD. Conditions are proposed to ensure that the parking
spaces and cycle parking areas are allocated as shown on the revised site layout drawings.

Refuse and Recycling Storage

The proposed development at Gunhill would be serviced by the Council's Community
Contracts Team and the team has been consulted in relation to the detail of the proposals.

Pack Page 50
40



The development would provide communal external bin stores for the apartment blocks
which would be distributed throughout the development and housed beneath timber pergola
structures. The pergolas would also house visitors’ bicycle storage and would be set within
landscaped amenity areas. Bin storage for the individual houses would be provided
discretely within the private rear gardens of these properties. It is intended that refuse
vehicles would enter both the southern and northern parts of the development, and leave in
forward gear. For the eastern flats, the refuse vehicle would service the development directly
from Gun Hill. The Council’s Transportation Strategy Officer has confirmed that tracking
diagrams provided with the application demonstrate that a refuse freighter could adequately
service the site and the location of the refuse collection points for the communal bins is within
the maximum haul distance of 25m, which is satisfactory.

Construction Traffic Management Plan

A Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) was submitted with the Reserved Matters
Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the Outline Planning
Permission. The Council’s Transportation Officer has confirmed the CTMP and associated
drawings make adequate provision for construction contractors’ staff parking on site and
arrangements for servicing, delivery and storage of materials. Wheel washing of delivery
vehicles to reduce the likelihood of mud and debris onto the highway and surrounding roads
is also proposed. The CTMP indicates the routes for construction traffic to access the site
from the major road network which also specifically precludes North Lane (as required by the
outline permission for the AUE development).

It is considered that subject to an appropriate safeguarding condition to secure a programme
of construction works prior to the commencement of the development, the proposals are
acceptable in relation to access, servicing and highway safety, in accordance with the aims
and objectives of Core Strategy Policy CP16 and Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved
policies ENV16 and ENV50.

Impact on neighbours -

The Gunhill Development Zone is bounded to the north, east and west by highways and no
existing residential properties directly adjoin the site. The site has been cleared from
previous buildings and uses. Talavera Infant School adjoins the southern boundary,
positioned further down the escarpment, separated by a substantial retaining structure.

No neighbouring occupiers or uses to the north, east or west of the site have been identified
as being likely to be materially affected by the proposals, now or in future phases. The new
development is unlikely to have any material impact on Talavera Infant School to the south,
given the sufficient distance and relative position between these uses and the scale, design
and orientation of the proposed dwellings adjacent to this boundary. It is not considered that
there would be any unacceptable increase in activity along this elevated school boundary,
given the existing public footpath and right of way. A condition is proposed in relation to
appropriate hours of construction to safeguard neighbouring amenity.

As such, it is not considered that the proposals would result in any demonstrable harm to the
amenities of neighbouring occupiers and uses, in accordance with Rushmoor Local Plan
Review saved policies ENV16 and ENV50.

Living environment created for future residents —

The proposed development would provide new dwellings of an acceptable size and layout

Pack Page 51
41



with sufficient natural light, ventilation and access to adequate private and communal
amenity space. Sufficient spacing would be provided between dwellings and habitable room
windows in order to safeguard against loss of privacy and outlook.

The Design and Access Statement confirms that the provision of open space across the site
would comply with the Green Infrastructure Strategy approved with the outline application.
The masterplan does not require any formal equipped play space to be provided within
Gunhill Zone.

All of the units identified for affordable housing would meet the Lifetime Homes Standards
and the minimum standards set out in the Affordable Housing Strategy (AHS). 10% (2 units)
of the affordable rented units would meet wheelchair-housing standards (with sufficient
space for disabled parking) in accordance with the requirements of the s106 legal agreement
attached to the outline permission.

During the course of the planning application amendments have been submitted in response
to comments received from the Crime Prevention Officer. In this regard the Applicant has
altered the design of the boundary treatment along the access to the rear of Plots 102-107 to
improve natural surveillance.

The private rear gardens of properties proposed on the northern side of the central area of
woodland would be secured by 1.8m high railings and woodland edge planting. The
Applicant has also agreed to install additional metal railings on top of the retaining wall which
runs along the woodland boundary with the proposed properties and parking areas directly to
the south of the woodland. There are no proposals to completely enclose the woodland
areas, as it is not intended to prohibit access. Notwithstanding this, the development has not
been designed to actively encourage access into the wooded areas.

A Noise Assessment was submitted with the Reserved Matters Application in accordance
with the requirements of Condition 4 of the Outline Planning Permission. The Council’s
Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the report and has confirmed no objection to the
noise mitigation measures proposed in order to meet the Council’s internal noise criteria for
the new dwellings. These measures include double-glazing with alternative ventilation and
the report identifies certain units in the apartments blocks facing Hospital Road, which would
be more sensitive to external noise and would require a higher level of glazing specification.
The report also confirms that all external areas would achieve a satisfactory level of acoustic
comfort.

It is considered that the proposals would provide a satisfactory living environment for future
residents, in accordance with Core Strategy Policies CP5, CP6 and Rushmoor Local Plan
Review saved policy ENV16 and the Council’s ‘Housing Density and Design’ SPD.

Pollution & Remediation -
Lighting

A Lighting Assessment (and Outdoor Lighting Report) was submitted with the Reserved
Matters Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the Outline
Planning Permission. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the report
and the proposals for street lighting within the scheme and accepts the report's conclusions
and recommended mitigation measures. It is therefore considered that the proposed lighting
scheme would adequately limit the impact of light pollution on nearby sensitive receptors and
ecology in accordance with Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policy ENV52.

Pack Page 52
42



Contaminated Land

A Phase 1 Desktop Study, Site Reconnaissance report was submitted with the Reserved
Matters Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the Outline
Planning Permission. The Council's Environmental Health Officer accepts the
recommendations of the report that a Phase Il intrusive site investigation should be
undertaken. The Environment Agency has confirmed that there is no objection to drainage
strategy in relation to contamination and ground water quality.

It should be noted that contamination investigation and remediation measures are secured
by Conditions 14, 15 and 16 of the outline planning permission in respect of each Reserved
Matters Area/ Development Zone. These conditions require further detailed assessments to
be undertaken in relation to each zone and will ensure, if necessary, that suitable remedial
measures be submitted to the Council for approval in accordance with Rushmoor Local Plan
Review saved policy ENV49.

Construction Environmental Management Plan

A Construction Environmental Management Plan strategy (CEMP) was submitted with the
Reserved Matters Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the
Outline Planning Permission. The purpose of the CEMP is to reduce the risk of adverse
impacts resulting from the construction of the development on sensitive environmental
resources and to minimise disturbance to local residents and other sensitive receptors. The
Council’s Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the strategy and is satisfied with the
measures set out within the CEMP, in accordance with the relevant policies of the
Development Plan.

Air quality and noise

There would be no significant air quality impact as a result of this residential phase of the
development. Therefore, no Air Quality Assessment is required under Condition 4 of the
Outline Planning Permission in respect of Guhhill Zone E. Given the residential nature of the
proposals, no issues have been identified in relation to noise generation from the
development. The residential use would be compatible with the character of the area. The
proposals are consistent with Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policy ENV48.

Nature Conservation & Trees -

The Design & Access Statement submitted with the Reserved Matters Application
summarises the ecological proposals for the Gunhill Development Zone in the context of the
Landscape Masterplan and the approved Design Codes. This statement together with a Tree
Survey, Reptile Habitat Suitability Assessment, Phase 1 Bat Survey, Construction
Environmental Management Plan Strategy and Arboricultural Development Statement has
been submitted with the Reserved Matters Application in accordance with the requirements
of Condition 4 of the Outline Planning Permission.

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

The Wellesley development includes Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG)
approved as part of the Hybrid Outline Planning Permission (ref: 12/00958/OUT), secured
and delivered by s106 legal agreement together with Strategic Access and Monitoring
(SAMM) contributions. Natural England has confirmed that given the SANG and SAMM

Pack Page 53
43



requirements are fully met under the wider AUE application, the Local Planning Authority is
not required to undertake an Appropriate Assessment to assess the implications of this
proposal on the site’s conservation objectives. Taking into account these mitigation
measures, the proposals are not likely to have a significant effect, alone or in combination
upon the nature conservation interest and objectives of the Thames Basin Heath Special
Protection Area (SPA), in accordance with saved South East Plan Policy NRM6, Core
Strategy Policy CP13 and Rushmoor’s AMS (2011).

Ecology

The retention of the existing woodland and the enhancement of the ground flora is the main
focus of the ecological strategy for the Gunhill Development Zone. The Design & Access
Statement submitted with the current application identifies new opportunities for the creation
of additional habitat creation through the incorporation of bat/bird boxes and wildflower
planting throughout the zone together with ground enhancements within the existing
woodland. The Council’s Ecological Officer has confirmed that there is no record of any
protected species relating directly to the Gunhill Development Zone and that detailed
ecological work was carried out and approved as part of the outline planning permission. The
Council’s Ecological Officer has raised no objection to the proposals on the grounds of
biodiversity or in relation to the findings and recommendations of the bat, tree and reptile
surveys. Mitigation measures are proposed to ensure that nesting birds are not harmed
during the course of the development. As such it is considered that the proposals are
consistent with Core Strategy Policy CP15.

Trees

Gunhill Development Zone is set within a wooded ridge and a large area of existing
woodland would be retained across the site, together with retention of key existing trees and
groups of trees. Replacement tree planting is also proposed consisting up approximately 87
trees to be incorporated as part of the detailed landscaping proposals for this zone. This is
significantly greater than the tree planting proposed for the previous scheme.

An Arboricultural Development Statement (ADS) was submitted with the application that
builds on the Arboricultural Method Statement approved under Condition 3 of the outline
planning permission. The ADS outlines the methodology for protection measures for retained
trees during and post development. The ADS also includes tree retention plans, a tree
survey and justification for those trees that will require removal in order to facilitate the
development.

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has reviewed the ADS and has raised no objections to
the proposals. As with the previous scheme, the proposed tree removal is justified and key
trees would be retained within the development. It is noted that some category B trees would
be removed but this is acceptable on balance given the masterplan requirements for the
development zone and taking into account the level of replacement planting proposed.
Furthermore, the tree root zone protection areas have been adequately taken into
consideration together with tree protection and construction methods and the tree pit details
provided for replacement trees are designed to a good standard. As such it is considered
that the proposal is consistent with Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policy ENV13.

Flood Risk & Drainage —

Policy CP4 of the Council’s Core Strategy seeks to ensure that run-off rates and volumes are
returned to original greenfield discharge rates to prevent flooding and safeguard local water

Pack Page 54
44



quality. A Drainage Layout Plan and Drainage Statement were submitted with the Reserved
Matters Application as stipulated by Condition 4 of the Outline Planning Permission. The
Design and Access Statement and drawing GTASHOT_GH/DR/01 provides further details of
surface-water and foul-water arrangements.

The Planning Statement maintains that the drainage strategy has been designed to meet and
exceed the objectives of the Site Wide Drainage Strategy approved with the outline planning
permission. The strategy is dealt with on a catchment wide basis as agreed with the
Environment Agency. The Drainage Statement concludes that “the strategy for Gunhill has
been designed to current best practice for both piped drainage and sustainable drainage.
SuDs (Sustainable Urban Drainage Strategy) provision is predominantly through the use of
pervious pavements and below ground attenuation.”

The Environment Agency (EA) and Hampshire County Council’'s (HCC) Flood and Water
Management Team have been consulted. During the course of the application, HCC
requested further calculations relating to water discharge rates and volumes. Further
technical information was submitted in the form of a Drainage Statement.

HCC’s Flood and Water Management Team have since reviewed the Drainage Statement
and have confirmed no objection to the proposals. This is because it has been demonstrated
that the revised scheme would not result in any flood risk and satisfactory information has
been provided in relation to future maintenance.

The EA confirmed no objection to the proposals commenting in relation to contamination
“risks to controlled waters are low and further investigation and remediation are not required
for the protection of groundwater”.

It should also be noted that condition 13 of the outline permission requires that development
shall not commence on any reserved matters area until a detailed surface water drainage
scheme for that reserved matter area, based on sustainable drainage principles and an
assessment of the hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, consistent
with the Site-wide Drainage Strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The Applicant has confirmed that a details application will be
submitted in respect of Condition 13 prior to commencement.

Sustainable Development -

A Site Wide Sustainability Strategy and Energy Statement were approved as part of the
outline planning permission for Wellesley in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Council’s
Core Strategy. Section 3.11 of the Design & Access Statement provides a summary of
sustainability principles considered in the design of the Gunhill development in relation to
layout, building design, construction and materials, water conservation, access and
movement.

Archaeology -

A Written Scheme of Investigation for an Archaeological Watching Brief was submitted with
the Reserved Matters Application in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4 of the
Outline Planning Permission. The brief provides a methodology for monitoring and measures
for removal and recording in consultation with Hampshire County Council’'s Archaeological
Advisor. Hampshire County Council’'s Archaeological Advisor was consulted in relation to the
application and has confirmed no objection. A condition is proposed to ensure that the
development of the site is carried out in accordance with the Archaeological Watching Brief

Pack Page 55
45



as approved, in accordance with Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policies ENV30 and
ENV31.

Conclusion

The Reserved Matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E sufficiently reflects the terms of the outline
planning permission for the Aldershot Urban Extension, including the parameter plans and
the principles of the approved Design Codes. The revised scheme would have no harmful
impact upon the character and appearance of the area, on nature conservation or adjoining
heritage assets. The accommodation would provide an acceptable living environment for
future occupiers and there would be no adverse impact on neighbouring amenity or uses.
The proposals would be acceptable in highway terms.

It is therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions and a deed
of variation to the outline planning permission s106 legal agreement; taking into account the
provisions of the Development Plan and all other material planning considerations, the
proposal is acceptable. This also includes a consideration of whether the decision to grant
permission is compatible with the Human Rights Act 1998.

Full Recommendation
It is recommended that:

1. The Head of Planning in consultation with the Head of Housing be authorised to
approve an Affordable Housing Development Zone Strategy for Gunhill Development
Zone E under the terms of the outline planning permission section 106 agreement.

2. SUBJECT to the completion of a Deed of Variation (to vary the terms of the legal
agreement relating to the Outline Planning Permission) under Section 106A of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure:

a) An appropriate restriction upon occupation of dwellings (across the AUE site) to
ensure that the units identified for affordable housing on drawing number 2243.1-C-
1006-A-AH are transferred to a registered provider (in accordance with the terms of
the outline section 106 legal agreement) in the following phases:

e The transfer of 12 units within 10 years of first occupation within Gunhill or
occupation of 3200 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever
is earlier.

e The transfer of 14 units within 11 years of first occupation within Gunhill or
occupation of 3350 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever
is earlier.

e The transfer of 9 units within 13 years of first occupation within Gunhill or
occupation of 3500 residential units on the Development as a whole, whichever
is earlier.

b) The updating of the Affordable Housing Strategy by a replacement of Table 3 of
Schedule 15 of the section 106 agreement, demonstrating how Affordable Housing is
to be provided for the whole development, which is to be approved as part of the
Affordable Housing Development Zone Strategy for Gunhill Development Zone E;

the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to GRANT
planning permission subject to the conditions and informatives set out below:

Pack Page 56
46



1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

. Unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the permission hereby

granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved drawings and
documents:

Drawings: 2243.1-A-1001-a (LOCATION PLAN); 2243.1-C-1005-J (SITE LAYOUT),
2243.1-C-1006-C (PARKING PLAN); 2243.1-C-1006-A-AH (AFFORDABLE
HOUSING PLAN); 2243.1-C-1010-D (SITE SECTIONS); 2243.1-A-3000-D (FLOOR
PLANS AND SECTION BLOCK A PLOTS 1-28); 2243.1-C-3001-D (ELEVATIONS
BLOCK A PLOTS 1-28); 2243.1-A-3010-E (FLOOR PLANS AND SECTION BLOCK B
PLOTS 29-56); 2243.1-C-3011-E (ELEVATIONS BLOCK B PLOTS 29-56); 2243.1-A-
3020-F (FLOOR PLANS AND SECTION BLOCK C PLOTS 57-78); 2243.1-A-3021-F
(ELEVATIONS BLOCK C PLOTS 57-78); 2243.1-C-3030-D (FLOOR PLANS AND
ELEVATIONS BLOCK D PLOTS 93-101); 2243.1-C-3040-E (FLOOR PLANS AND
ELEVATIONS PLOTS 79, 80, 83, 84, 87, 88, 91, 92); 2243.1-C-3050-C (FLOOR
PLANS AND ELEVATIONS PLOTS 105-107); 2243.1-C-3060-D (FLOOR PLANS
AND ELEVATIONS PLOTS 102-104); 2243.1-C-3070-F (FLOOR PLANS AND
ELEVATIONS PLOTS 81, 82, 85, 86, 89, 90); 2243.1-A-3100-A (FLOOR PLANS AND
ELEVATIONS GARAGES); SHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION (OMEGA, 16™
MARCH 2016); 2519-GH-GMP-01 P4 (ILLUSTRATIVE LANDSCAPE
MASTERPLAN); 2519-GH-DT01 P2 (TREE PIT DETAIL); 2519-GH-DT-02 P3
(TYPICAL PERGOLA DETAIL); 519-GH-DT-03 P2 (TYPICAL LANDSCAPE
SECTIONS); 2519-GH-DT-04 P3 (TYPICAL BOUNDARY DETAILS); 2519-GH-DT-05
P2 (BIN STORE PERGOLA DETAIL); 2519-GH-DT-04 P2 (TYPICAL BOUNDARY
DETAILS); 2519-GH-LA-04 P5 (GENERAL ARRANGEMENT SHEET 1 OF 4); 2519-
GH-LA-05 P4 (GENERAL ARRANGEMENT SHEET 2 OF 4); 2519-GH-LA-06 P6
(GENERAL ARRANGEMENT SHEET 3 OF 4); 2519-GH-LA-07 P4 (GENERAL
ARRANGEMENT SHEET 4 OF 4); 2519-GH-LA-08 P3 (LONG TERM
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES); GTASHOT_GH/DR/01B (PROPOSED
DRAINAGE LAYOUT); GTASHOT_GH/GA/01C (GENERAL ARRANGEMENT &
TRAFFIC SIGNS & ROAD MARKINGS); GTASHOT_GH/GA/02B (ENGINEERING
LAYOUT, SPOT LEVELS & FINSIHED FLOOR LEVELS); GTASHOT_GH/RD/01B
(PROPOSED ROAD LABELS AND CHAINAGES); GTASHOT_GH/RD/02A (ROAD
LONGITUDINAL SECTIONS); GTASHOT_GH/RD/20D (PROPOSED STREET
LIGHTING); AND, GTASHOT_GH/VT/01B (VEHICLE TRACKING DIAGRAMS FOR A
PHOENIX 2 REFUSE & ESTATE CAR VEHICLES).

Documents: Planning Statement (Savills, February 2016); Gunhill Compliance
Schedule; Arboricultural Development Statement CBA9004 v3 (CBA Trees, February
2016 ); Tree Survey (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, October 2014);
Phase 1 Bat Survey (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, November 2014);
Reptile Habitat Suitability Assessment (Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd,
October 2014); Archaeological Watching Brief ref: 79182.01 (Wessex Archaeology,
January 2016); Construction Traffic Management Plan ref: ZGTASHOT.2 (Mayer
Brown, February 2016); Construction Environmental Management Plan ref:
WGTASHOT.9 (Mayer Brown, March 2016); Design & Access Statement (Omega
Partnership, February 2016); Phase 1 Desk Study Site Reconnaissance Report ref:

Pack Page 57
47



LP00846 (Leap Environmental, 04/12/2014); Landscape Management and
Maintenance Proposals ref: 2519-GH-RE-01 P4 (Allen Pyke Associates, February
2016); Lighting Assessment ref: A088927 (WYG, February 2016); Outdoor Lighting
Report (Mayer Brown, 12" February 2016); Noise Assessment ref: A088927 (WYG,
February 2016), and Drainage Statement (Mayer Brown, April 2016).

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted.

3. Details (including samples where appropriate) of the materials to be used for the
external surfaces of the dwellings hereby approved shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, before the relevant part of the
development to which they relate is commenced (excluding preparatory ground
works), and this condition shall apply notwithstanding any indications to these matters
which have been given in this application. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. *

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance for the development and to
safeguard the character and appearance of the conservation area and the setting of
heritage assets in the vicinity.

4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Construction Traffic Management Plan (Mayer Brown - February 2016) submitted with
the application and no development shall take place until a ‘Programme of
Construction Works’ is submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with Hampshire County Council’s Highways Officers. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction Traffic Management
Plan and Programme of Construction Works. *

Reason - To prevent any adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the
vicinity.

5. The proposed refuse and recycling storage for the development shall be provided in
accordance with the details shown on the approved drawings prior to the first
occupation of any part of the development to which they relate, and shall be retained
thereafter for the life of the development. *

Reason — To safeguard the amenities and character of the area and to meet the
functional needs of the development.

6. The residents’ and visitors’ parking spaces (including disabled bays) shall be laid out
and allocated in accordance with details provided on site layout plan 2243.1-C-1006-C
prior to first occupation of the development to which they relate, and shall be used
only for the parking of vehicles ancillary and incidental to the residential use of the
Gunhill Development Zone. *

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of adequate off-street parking and to
safeguard residential amenity.

7. The cycle parking spaces shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the
first occupation of any part of the development to which they relate and kept available
at all times thereafter for the parking of bicycles. *

Pack Page 58
48



Reason — To ensure that a sufficient level of cycle parking is available for the
development to meet its operational needs and in the interests of highway safety.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 1995, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no
vehicular or pedestrian entrance shall be formed onto a highway other than those
shown on the approved plans, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To prevent any adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the
vicinity.

9. All wild birds and their nests are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended). If any trees are to be removed or structures demolished during
the bird breeding season (March-September inclusive) they should first be inspected
by an experienced ecologist and the development should be carried out in accordance
with the methodology and recommendations contained within the Tree Survey
(Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, October 2014) hereby approved, to
ensure that no active nests are present. If an active nest is discovered it should be left
in situ until the young have fledged.

Reason - To prevent harm to breeding birds

10.The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
methodology and recommendations contained within the Written Scheme of
Investigation for an Archaeological Watching Brief (Wessex Archaeology - ref:
79182.01, January 2016), unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To secure the protection of archaeological assets if they are discovered.

11.The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
methodology and recommendations contained within the Arboricultural Development
Statement (CBA Trees ref: CBA9004v2, February 2016), unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard existing and replacement trees within the site, in the interests
of biodiversity and the character and appearance of the area.

12.Construction or demolition work of any sort within the area covered by the application
shall only take place between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays and
0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

Pack Page 59
49



INFORMATIVES

1. INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because:-

The proposal has been assessed against The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF March 2012) and the following policies of the Council’s Development Plan:

Rushmoor Plan (Core Strategy) Adopted October 2011

SP1 (Aldershot Urban Extension); CP1 (Sustainable Development Principles); CP2
(Design and Heritage); CP3 (Renewable Energy and Sustainable Construction); CP4
(Surface Water Flooding); CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and Housing Mix); CP6
(Affordable Housing); CP13 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area); CP15
(Biodiversity); CP16 (Reducing and Managing Travel Demand)

Rushmoor Local Plan Review saved policies (August 2007):

ENV13 (Trees); ENV16 (Major Sites); ENV19 (Comprehensive Landscape Plans);
ENV23 (Works to Listed Buildings); ENV26 (Adjoining Development); ENV30
(Archaeology); ENV31 (Recording of Remains); ENV34 (Preserve or Enhance
Character); ENV36 (Materials); ENV42 (Flood Risk Protection Measures); ENV48
(Damage to the Environment — noise, smoke gases etc.); ENV49 (Development on
Contaminated Land); ENV50 (Amenities Of Local Residents While Sites Are Being
Developed); ENV51 (Development of Sites Affected by Air Pollution or Noise); ENV52
(Light Pollution); OR4 (Public Open Space Required for New Development); H14
(Amenity Space).

In addition, the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)
"Housing Density and Design" adopted in April 2006, “Parking Standards” adopted in
2012 and the Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as updated February 2011 are applicable.

The Reserved Matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E sufficiently reflects the terms of the
outline planning permission for the Aldershot Urban Extension, including the
parameter plans and the principles of the approved Design Codes.

The development would have no harmful impact upon the character and appearance
of the area, on nature conservation or adjoining heritage assets. The accommodation
would provide an acceptable living environment for future occupiers and there would
be no adverse impact on neighbouring amenity or uses. The proposals are acceptable
in highway terms.

It is therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions and
a deed of variation to the outline planning permission s106 legal agreement; taking
into account the provisions of the Development Plan and all other material planning
considerations, the proposal is acceptable. This also includes a consideration of
whether the decision to grant permission is compatible with the Human Rights Act
1998.

2. INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These condition(s) require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be

Pack Page 60
50



carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Failure to meet these requirements is in contravention of the terms of the
permission and the Council may take enforcement action to secure compliance. As of
April 2008 submissions seeking to discharge conditions or requests for confirmation
that conditions have been complied with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

. INFORMATIVE -The applicant is reminded that there are a number of conditions
attached to the original outline planning permission (ref:12/00958/OUT) which remain
applicable to this Development Zone and may require details to be approved prior to
the commencement of development.

. INFORMATIVE - The applicant is reminded that this permission and the original
outline planning permission (ref:12/00958/OUT) is subject to a planning obligation
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

. INFORMATIVE - In the UK all species of bats are protected under Schedule 5 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and under Schedule 2 of the
conservation (Natural Habitats & c¢) Regulations 2004. The grant of planning
permission does not supersede the requirements of this legislation and any
unauthorised works would constitute an offence. If bats or signs of bats are
encountered at any point during development then all works must stop immediately
and you should contact Natural England.

. INFORMATIVE — The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pack Page 61
51



[-600L-D-L'Evee

NN

9LOT AA¥YNRBI v @ oos

T 001D veez
1IN0V S

SIHSAINLEYY

L B

WOV SLITNI S0 WO 31 1MW T8

— — — TON

2(d s8buresb

Pack Page 62

52



aolor-o-rerzz T s v A u_n,h;mm.m_mhm

DD NOILDIS 08 i i

G0 NOIDIS 0 o7 wavn

V¥ NOILD3S 27l

Wil

Pack Page 63

53



Q-0€0€-D-L'EVLT

DNINNY

tv®eot
F10C Anvrwv Ly ®ooLy

a oo erez
 svssiowenon 8 .
10126 $10' "0 300N
SHOUVAZH ONY SNV 300N .

NV 3 LOHSEOTY A31SITEM

INOT INIRAONEAID TN
Ol 0RO
£ - 2
HHEINLEYE
0 NOUYATTI 305
“srel
. eUTS
wes A
W I R e m s Ses
oy [T IR
Wt wu o | vl
8 NOUVAZI 308
— 2510 weles

ST WS

WS SR S

J|d 13buieib

¥ NOUYATII INCES

Pack Page 64

54



30¥0E-D"L'EPZL
v
F10T awvnesad m«” “aﬁ"
3 oroi> e

TA16 RS LR YR TS 08 64 SAOW
SNOUYATIS ONY SNYI4 1007

NY 31 JONSIROTY ADSETRW

D% BRONIYED

2|d 1abuielb

O NOUVAITE 3015

-

@ NOUYAZIS 308

-

D NOUVATII ¥vId

W NOUVAII INOXS

Pack Page 65

H0OH ONNOHO

55

#0014 ONOD3IS




Q-090€-2-L°evee e SO0M

e y v -
et et — T
a osotd oLt ¥

9

a
01 et S50
SNOUYATE ONV SNYIE 100 J|.

NV 31 LONSIOW AFISITEM
INOT INIRAOTBAIE TIHND

FNSEINLEYS JOOT ONNOED

O NOILVAZTS 2015

2 NOUVAZI ¥v3d
wsieo were
Ll ] Yaam L2 Youm
e s w1 D1 |
- e e =
= o e wov | i e wyy
#0014 15414
9 NCULYAZ 301 ¥ NOILYATE INOYd
werasT
CE7S Yo
wyg S =
7 Jabuiesb

56

Pack Page 66



N4 J00¥
D-0S0€-D-L'EFZT -

DN

[ rm

O WL
F10T Ay S

a - a
2 05082 Lizad |

£01°501 S4O0W

SNOUYATS GHY SN¥14 $00 |

Y 3§ “AOHSIRATY ATISITRM )
FHOT INTWIO TR TIHNTD

I RONIVED

o ks b4 %0 O NOUYAIE 3015
iy ..l‘ — e e I NOUWVAI dv3d
SIHSEINLNV

J0OM L5414

B NOUYAZE 3a18 ¥ NOILYAZE INOHd

weleT

LTS Yn

LS P

2d saburelb

Pack Page 67

S7



Development Management Committee Item 7
27th April 2016 Report No.PLN1613
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Sarita Jones
Application No. 16/00007/FULPP
Date Valid 4th January 2016
Expiry date of 6th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Development of 14,489sgm (GIA) of industrial/warehouse units with
ancillary offices within B1c/B2 and/or B8 Use Classes with
associated car/cycle parking, service areas and landscaping

Address Land At Dingley Way Farnborough Hampshire
Ward St Mark's

Applicant Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limited
Agent Mr Ashley Chambers

Recommendation GRANT subiject to section 106 agreement
Description

The site, of 3.28 hectares, lies on the north side of Aerospace Boulevard, to the west of
Dingley Way, a private road. It currently comprises concrete/tarmac taxiways and open rough
grassland area. There is an existing pumping station within the applicants’ control but which
is excluded from the application site. The majority of the site is in use for the storage of cars
and vans. A separate car hire facility is located in the south-east corner of the site. There is
a difference in levels across the site with the southern site boundary being over three metres
higher than the northern site boundary with the western site boundary being between some
0.6 -1.1 metres higher than the eastern boundary. Vehicular access into the site is from
Dingley Way, which leads from a roundabout on Aerospace Boulevard, a dual carriageway to
the east of the site which bisects the business park.

Aerospace Boulevard leads into Government House Road which forms part of the Queens
roundabout/gyratory system on the A325 Farnborough Road. Dingley Way also provides
emergency access to Farnborough Airport to the north. There are defined sites of importance
for nature conservation within the airport boundary. The Aerospace Boulevard frontage is
characterised by an existing linear belt of semi mature trees and shrubs which is
characteristic of the business park as a whole. There is an established landscape bund
along the western site boundary which screens the motorcycle testing area (some 125
metres by 40 metres) at 35 Hercules Way and is operated as a driving/motorcycle rider
testing centre operated by the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA). This area is

Pack Page 68
58



enclosed by a 2.4m high mesh fence except where the site has a common boundary with the
airfield where the existing 3m high fence is retained. To the west there is a two storey
industrial/commercial development which has access onto/from Hercules Way via Aerospace
Boulevard. To the east there is a three storey building, the Park Centre, which is in use as
offices and providing ancillary facilities to the wider Farnborough Aerospace Centre which
consists of substantial office buildings set in established landscaped grounds.

The site is part of what was formerly the Civil Enclave. In October 2005 outline planning
permission was granted for demolition and redevelopment to provide up to 32,515 sqgm of
Class use B1 floorspace and associated access, internal roads and landscaping (showing
details of phase 1), 05/00426/OUT. Phase 1 has now been completed. The outline part of
this planning permission has now lapsed but established the principle of employment use on
the application site.

In January 2008 planning permission, 07/00791/FUL, was granted for the change of use of
building/land at 35 Hercules Way to provide a driving/motorcycle rider testing centre. This
has been implemented and included the creation of a large area of hardsurfacing for use as
a motorcycle testing area and the landscaped bund along the eastern site boundary with the
application site.

In 2009 planning permission , 09/00211/TEMP, was granted for the continued use of part of
the application site for rental car parking, retention of a temporary portable office building and
formation of new pedestrian access/gate. This permission was renewed in 2012,
12/00285/TEMPP, for a further period of three years.

The current application seeks permission for the redevelopment of the site to provide 14,489
sq m of floor space (GIA) in B1(c)/B2/B8 use comprising five units of varying sizes all with
their own ancillary offices and car parking. Each unit has its own service yard apart from
units 3 and 4 which have a shared service yard. Three points of vehicular access are
proposed from an upgraded and extended Dingley Way. The development comprises two
detached units (units 1 and 2) and a terrace of three units (units 3, 4 and 5). Unit 1 is the
largest individual unit and occupies the northern part of the site. It is located to the east of
the DVSA motorcycle testing area. The proposed building is generally rectangular in
footprint and has a floor area of 5,469 square metres (GIA) including 1,033 square metres of
ancillary offices provided at first and second floor level on the eastern side of the building. It
has a low pitched roof with a maximum ridge height of 15.5 metres. External materials
comprising a combination of glass and profiled/flat panel metal cladding are proposed with
the predominant colour palette comprising various shades of grey. Full height glazing would
be incorporated into the entrance in east elevation and floors above. On the northern
elevation there are two dock levellers and 3 level access points for HGVs. The proposed
service yard which is also located to the north of the building accommodates two HGV
parking spaces. Although the plan states 71 car parking spaces, including 4 for use by
disabled drivers are proposed to serve unit 1, the layout shows 80 spaces including 4 for use
by disabled drivers. They are located to the east of the proposed building and take access
from the north via an extension to Dingley Way. 22 cycle spaces are sited immediately to the
north of the building. The existing landscaping bund along the western boundary is to be
removed with new landscaping is proposed to the north, east and south unit boundaries. A
new substation is proposed adjacent to Dingley Way.

Unit 2 is the second individual unit and occupies the south east part of the site. It is located
to the west of the Park Centre. The proposed building is rectangular in footprint and has a
floor area of 3,985 square metres (GIA) including 848 square metres of ancillary offices also
provided at first and second floor level on the eastern side of the building. It has a low

Pack Page 69
59



pitched roof with a maximum ridge height of 15.3 metres. The external materials are
generally the same as proposed for unit 1. Full height glazing would also be incorporated
into the entrance in south elevation and floors above. On the northern elevation there are
two dock levellers and 3 level access points for HGVs. The proposed service yard, which is
also located to the north of the building, takes access from the new internal road leading from
Dingley Way some 100 metres north of its junction with Aerospace Boulevard which also
serves units 3, 4 and 5. 51 car parking spaces, including 3 for use by disabled drivers are
proposed to serve unit 2. They are located to the south of the proposed building and take
access from the east via Dingley Way, some 15 metres north of its junction with Aerospace
Boulevard. 16 cycle spaces are sited immediately to the north of the building. The existing
landscaping along the southern boundary is to be retained with new landscaping proposed to
the east unit boundary. A new substation is proposed next to the retained pumping station
located on Dingley Way.

Unit 3, 4 and 5 comprises a terrace of three units which occupies the south west part of the
site. It is located to the west of proposed unit 2 and to the east of an area of vacant
undeveloped land. The proposed building is rectangular in footprint and has a total floor area
of 5035 square metres (GIA) including 161 square metres of ancillary offices provided at first
and second floor level for unit 3 and 162 square metres for both units 4 and 5. It has a low
pitched roof with a maximum ridge height of 12.8 metres. The external materials are
generally the same as proposed for units 1 and 2. Full height glazing would also be
incorporated into the entrance in south elevation and floors above. On the eastern elevation
there are 5 level access points for HGVs, one for unit 3 and two each for units 4 and 5. The
proposed service yard and parking area, which is located to the east of the building, takes
access from the new internal road leading from Dingley Way which also serves unit 2. 18 car
parking spaces including 2 for use by disabled drivers are proposed to serve unit 3. 14 car
parking spaces including 2 for use by disabled drivers are proposed to serve unit 4. 20 car
parking spaces, including 2 for use by disabled drivers are proposed to serve unit 5. They
are located to the south of the proposed building and take access from the east via Dingley
Way. 6 cycle spaces per unit are sited within the car parking area. A new substation is
proposed to the east of unit 4. The existing landscaping bund along the western boundary is
to be removed with new landscaping proposed to the south and within the car parking areas.
Galvanised steel paladin fence and gates, 2.4 metres in height in a black finish are proposed
to secure the service areas and the west, north (in part) and south (in part) boundaries with
timber hit and miss fencing and gate 2.4 metres high shown around the existing pumping
station.

Dingley Way, which runs parallel to the east site boundary, is to be upgraded to serve the
development from its junction with Aerospace Boulevard to provide a carriageway width of
7.3 metres. A 2 metre footway will also be provided on the western side of the carriageway
to provide improved pedestrian access. Three new access points would be created from this
upgraded highway. The sloping site and drainage constraints result in engineering works in
the form of cut and fill in order that the existing drainage network has capacity to
accommodate the difference in levels. The site is divided into three development areas one
for each unit. The proposed floor levels of 68.20 for unit 1, 68.90 for unit 2 and 69.20 for
units 3-5 require a retaining wall between units 1 and 3 and at the south west corner of the
site to accommodate the difference in levels. It is also noted that proposed floor levels and
maximum ridge heights serve to keep the proposed building heights below the aviation
maximum levels across the site in relation to Farnborough Airport.

The application included a planning statement, a transport statement/travel plan, a flood risk
assessment, an arboricultural survey, a flood risk assessment and drainage strategy, a
landscape strategy, a design and access statement, an energy strategy report, a BREEAM

Pack Page 70
60



pre-assessment and a ground investigation report.

In January 2016 the Council formally confirmed that the proposed development is not EIA
development within the meaning of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999. This was on the basis of the
conclusion that the proposed development would not be likely to have significant effects
on the environment by virtue of factors such as its nature, size or location,

16/00012/SCREEN
Consultee Responses

Natural England

Environment Agency

Hampshire Fire & Rescue
Service

Environmental Health

Planning Policy

Crime Prevention Design
Advisor

Surface Water Drainage
Consultations

TAG

Transportation Strategy Officer

Highways Agency

Arboricultural Officer

raises no objection to the proposal, offers standing
advice and recommends biodiversity enhancements.

advises that the environmental risks associated with
this proposal relate to groundwater protection as the
site lies in a secondary aquifer and pollution protection.
It also advises that if infiltration drainage is proposed
then it must be demonstrated that it will not pose a risk
to groundwater quality.

advises that the development should be undertaken in
accordance with Approved Document B5 and section
12 of the Hampshire Act 1983. It makes
recommendations about access for high reach
appliances, water supplies, sprinklers, fire fighting and
the environment and the use of timber framed
buildings.

raises no objection to the proposal subject to
conditions.

raise no objection to the proposal.

makes recommendations relating to boundary
treatment and landscaping

raises no objection in principle subject to a detailed
SUDS strategy.

raises no objection to the proposal as long as the
maximum height of the building does not exceed 17m
including any chimneys, aerials etc.

raises no objection to the proposal.

raises no objection to the proposal but recommends
that opportunities are sought to reduce trips during
peak periods to minimise any potential impacts on the
Strategic Road Network, likely to be through the
proposed travel plan to support the development

raises no objection to the proposal subject to the

Pack Page 71

61



development taking place in accordance with the
submitted details.

HCC Highways Development raises no objection subject to securing a financial

Planning contribution towards transport and the
submission/implementation/monitoring of a travel plan
to include monitoring and provision of a surety
mechanism to ensure implementation of the travel plan
and the imposition of a condition requiring the
submission of a construction method statement.

Thames Water Views awaited
Ecologist Officer Views awaited
Neighbours notified

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 193 individual letters of
notification were sent to addresses in Aerospace Boulevard, Centrifuge Way, Farnborough
Road including Farnborough Airport, Gladiator Way, Hercules Way, Honington Mews, Kenley
Place and Lakeside Road Farnborough

Neighbour comments

Representations have been received from Helios 29 Hercules Way, 3 Hornchurch Square
and 17 Merrill House, Kenley Place objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

- the surrounding roads and area in general not suitable for any increase in HGV traffic;

- flawed Queens roundabout scheme makes no allowance for increase in HGV traffic;

- Lynchford Road not capable of sustaining any increase in HGV traffic;

- HGVs will not be able to manoeuvre around the mini roundabout between Aerospace
Boulevard and Dingley Way;

Objection has also been raised by the Fleet and Church Crookham Society on the basis that
Rushmoor has failed to consider housing on this site contrary to the duty to co-operate with
Hart District Council in the context of the recent Hart Housing Consultation where Hart are
having to consider housing shortfall from Hart because "Rushmoor claim that they do not
have the sites available to provide their share of the housing to meet the SHMAA demand"

Policy and determining issues

This Key Employment site lies within Farnborough adjacent to Farnborough Airport in an
area known as the Civil Enclave. As such policies SS1 (The Spatial Strategy), CP1
(Sustainable Development Principles), CP2 (Design and Heritage), CP3 (Renewable Energy
and Sustainable Construction), CP4 (Surface Water Flooding), CP8 (Supporting Economic
Development), CP10 (Infrastructure Provision), CP15 (Biodiversity), CP16 (Reducing and
Managing Travel Demand) and CP17 (Investing in Transport) and "saved" policies ENV13
(Trees), ENV16 (Development on Major sites), ENV19-19.4 (Comprehensive landscape
plans and long term maintenance), ENV21-22 (Adequate access and facilities/external
areas), ENV43 (flood risk), ENV48 and ENV49 (Environmental Pollution and Noise), ENV52
(Light pollution), TR10 (transport and development) FA2 (Business Aerodrome Operational
Area) and FA2.5(i) (Alternative land uses in the Business Aerodrome Operational Areaare

Pack Page 72
62



relevant. The Council's supplementary documents on Car and Cycle parking standards
(2012), Planning Contributions: Transport and Sustainable Design and Construction and the
guidance contained in the National Planning Policy Framework/Practice Guidance are also
relevant to the consideration of this proposal

The main determining issues are:

. The principle of development;

. Visual impact;

. Impact on neighbours;

. Flood risk and the water environment;

. Nature conservation;

. Transport and parking issues; and

. Sustainable construction and renewable energy.

NOoO O, WN =

Commentary
1. The principle of the development -

The site is located within a defined Key Employment Area and has a long history of being
identified as appropriate for employment development. The Head of Planning Policy and
Conservation has been consulted on this application and advises that:

"The site falls within the settlement boundary, and is therefore subject to Policy SS1 (Spatial
Strategy) of the Core Strategy, which directs new development to urban areas, whilst limiting
strictly new development in the countryside. Policy SS1 sets out a list of "Key Employment
Sites" (KES), within one of which (Farnborough Aerospace Park and Civil Enclave) the site
the subject of this proposal falls. Policy SS1 directs major employment uses to town centres
and KES, and sets out that the employment function of these sites will be protected and
supported.

By virtue of the designation of the site as a KES, Policy CP8 (Supporting Economic
Development) of the Core Strategy is relevant. This seeks to protect the KES for traditional
B-class employment uses (falling within Classes B1, B2 and B8 of the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)).

An assessment of Policy SS1 of the Core Strategy has concluded that it has a high level of
consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), and remains relevant for
decision making purposes. Policy CP8 has medium consistency with the NPPF, but this is
by virtue of the second part of the Policy relating to employment sites outside the KES, and
hence this part of the Policy is not relevant to this proposal. The first part of Policy CP8 is
considered to have high consistency with the NPPF.

The Rushmoor Local Plan Review contains saved Policy FA2.5, which supports the use of
the Civil Enclave for Business Use (Class B1) where the Council is satisfied that the site is
no longer required for business aerodrome operational use.

Since the adoption of the Core Strategy, the Government has published the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, March 2012). This sets out a presumption in favour of
"sustainable development", to which there are three dimensions: economic, social and
environmental. In terms of the economic role that the planning system must perform,
paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that it should be:

Pack Page 73
63



"...contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by ensuring that
sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and at the right time to support
growth and innovation."

Following the publication of the NPPF, the Council commissioned a Key Employment Sites
Study (2012) to look in more detail at the function and operation of each of the Key
Employment Sites, to help implement Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy. Importantly, this
responds to paragraphs 7 and 22 of the NPPF by offering a qualitative analysis of the KES
(rather than just the quantitative analysis provided by the ELR), and helps to ensure that the
right employment sites with the right mix of uses are protected in the right locations to meet
future economic growth needs over the Plan period.

It concludes that the highest level of protection against the loss of land at Farnborough
Aerospace Park and the Civil Enclave to other, non-employment uses, should be sought
through planning policy.

The Employment Land Review 2015 (ELR) (prepared jointly with Hart and Surrey Heath
Councils, which together with Rushmoor Borough, form a Functional Economic Area (FEA))
identifies at Chapter 8 that in quantitative terms there is sufficient employment land to meet
the needs of the FEA authorities up to 2032, for both industrial and office accommodation.
However, this land supply position is considered to be the maximum case as over 90% of
this supply originates from planning permissions that have not yet commenced and there is
no guarantee that these permissions will be implemented. In the Borough, a significant
proportion of the potential employment land is located on sites currently allocated as Key
Employment Sites in the Core Strategy.

The ELR recommends the identification of Strategic and Locally Important Employment Sites
through emerging Local Plans. Strategic Employment Sites are defined in the ELR as;

"Sites that are considered to fulfil a strategic function within the FEA and that have the
greatest alignment to the Enterprise M3 priority sectors. In addition, sites that support or
could support the FEA's core sectors such as business services and industrial and
distribution sectors located along the A331/M3 corridor."

The ELR highlights that the supply of both development land for industrial uses and vacant
industrial floorspace is in tight supply, with demand for units of all types and sizes. It notes
the importance of protecting existing industrial sites, and encourages the development of
suitable cleared land at established employment sites such as the Civil Enclave to help meet
the needs of industrial sectors.

In June 2015, the Council published a Preferred Approach Local Plan. The draft planning
policies contained in this Plan are based on the evidence provided by the joint Employment
Land Review (2015).

Preferred Approach Policy PC1 - Economic Growth and Investment

Draft Policy PC1 sets out an approach that seeks to enable growth and retention of existing
businesses within the Borough through the protection and regeneration of Strategic
Employment Sites for B-class uses, and support for the delivery of infrastructure to contribute
to the improvement of skills and education. The policies in the draft Local Plan seek to
protect the majority of these sites to ensure a portfolio of employment sites and premises to
meet future needs.

Preferred Approach Policy PC2 - Safeguarding the Strategic Employment Sites to support

Pack Page 74
64



core economic sectors

Draft Policy PC2 contributes towards meeting the future economic growth needs of the
Borough and the wider Functional Economic Area by protecting and safeguarding Strategic
Employment Sites against their loss to other, non B-class uses. Small scale proposals for
changes of use to non-employment uses will be supported where they would provide
complementary uses(s) (such as cafes and sandwich bars) that are not detrimental to the
function and operation of the Strategic Employment Site. Farnborough Aerospace Park
(including the Civil Enclave) is identified as a Strategic Employment Site mindful of the key
role that it plays in the Borough's existing and future supply of employment land.

The site falls within the Farnborough Aerospace Park and Civil Enclave Key Employment
Site. The saved RLPR Policy FA2.5 states that the redevelopment of the site for
employment use would be acceptable provided the Council is satisfied that it is no longer
required to support the operation of the Airport. Since the adoption of the RLPR, the Airport
has transferred into private ownership, and the land at the Civil Enclave is not part of the
operational area of the airfield. There is no objection in principle therefore to the use of the
site for B-class activities.

Whilst Policy FA2.5 specifically refers to the use of the site for B1 use class, the more up to
date planning policy context provided by the Core Strategy supports the protection and
redevelopment of the site for B-class employment uses. Moreover, evidence prepared since
its adoption in 2011, and in the national policy context provided by the NPPF, has
demonstrated that the site continues to have a key role in the future supply of employment
land in the Borough. Whilst a very early draft, this position is reflected in Preferred Approach
Policies PC1 and PC2 of the draft Local Plan.

In this context, the mix of B-class uses proposed on the site, supported by ancillary office
space provision, and the mix of size of units, is supported as it provides choice and flexibility
for future occupiers. This application for the redevelopment of the Civil Enclave site for B-
class uses is wholly supported. The proposal will make a valuable contribution to the supply
of future employment floorspace in the Borough, and will support the provision of a mix of
type and size of units to support future economic growth. As such the principle of
development is considered to be acceptable subject to the consideration of the matters as
set out below.

It is noted that the Fleet and Church Crookham Society have objected to the proposal on the
basis that Rushmoor has failed to consider housing on this site contrary to the duty to co-
operate with Hart District Council in the context of the recent Hart Housing Consultation
where Hart are having to consider housing shortfall from Hart because "Rushmoor claim that
they do not have the sites available to provide their share of the housing to meet the SHMAA
demand".

In response to this objection the Planning Policy and Conservation Manager has advised that

"The site has a long history of being identified as appropriate for employment development,
and this is now coming to fruition as reflected through the submission of this planning
application for B-class uses. Saved policy FA2.5 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
identifies the land as appropriate for an extension to the business use on Aerospace Park.
The Rushmoor Core Strategy allocates the site as a Key Employment Site, reflecting its
future role in the supply of land to meet the economic growth needs of the Borough over the
Plan period to 2027. Postdating the adoption of the Core Strategy, the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that one of the core planning principles is that planning

Pack Page 75
65



should, "...Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the
homes, business and industrial units...that the country needs. Every effort should be made
objectively to identify and then meet the housing, business and other development needs of
an area...Plans should take account of market signals, such as land prices and housing
affordability, and set out a clear strategy for allocating sufficient land..." (paragraph 17) It is
absolutely clear from this statement that it remains an important objective in achieving
sustainable development that Local Plans allocate a mix of sites for not only housing, but
also employment, retail, leisure and cultural activities, to provide a rich and balanced future
community.

In order to respond to paragraph 22 of the NPPF, which requires that planning policies
should avoid the long term protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is no
reasonable prospect of them being used for that purpose, the Council commissioned a Key
Employment Sites (KES) Study. This looked in more detail at the "function" and "operation"
of each of the KES, to factor in not only quantitative but also qualitative considerations. In
November 2012, the KES Study concluded that the Civil Enclave provides a vital supply of
new, small business orientated space in the north of the Borough... As such, the area should
be protected..." (paragraph 6.74) This policy position was corroborated by the publication in
April 2013 of the Enterprise M3 Local Economic Partnership's Commercial Property Market
Study (CPMS), which identified land at "The Enclave" as a "prime market ready site".
Moreover, during 2014, agents acting on behalf of the site's owners engaged with the
Council in pre-application discussions for B-class employment uses on the site. Having
regard to national planning policy and guidance, and informed by these market signals, the
update to the Employment Land Review published in June 2015 concluded that the site was
considered to fulfil a strategic role in the future supply of employment land in the Borough.
This was reflected in the Preferred Approach Rushmoor Local Plan, whereby the Civil
Enclave is proposed to be safeguarded as a Strategic Employment Site to support core
economic sectors.

In this context, the strategy to continue to protect the site for employment use is firmly rooted
in evidence, and the protection of the site has resulted in a policy compliant application for B-
class development on the site."

2. Visual impact

The outline planning permission granted on this site in 2005 introduced a different pattern
and form of development to the existing business park. It is recognised that the current
proposal will be different in visual terms to both the large office buildings within Farnborough
Aerospace Centre and the generally two storey buildings provided in Hercules Way in terms
of footprint, appearance, height, width, depth and use of materials. In overall design terms
they introduce buildings of a different scale and massing and materials which will alter the
existing character of this part of the business park. The contemporary design of the buildings
with the use of modern materials are proposed and demonstrate how the business park is
evolving to meet the functional and practical requirements of the proposed B class uses
whilst making a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area. The
constraints of the site in relation to site levels and the provision of drainage, will mean that,
generally, buildings will be built at a higher level than natural ground level. Given the
undeveloped nature of the site, which means any new building will have an impact on the
character of the area, and the retention of structural landscaping on Aerospace Boulevard it
is considered that the proposed site levels are acceptable. However as the SUDS scheme
for this site has yet to be determined in detail, it is considered appropriate to impose
conditions relating to levels to ensure a consistency of approach across the
site/development. Subject to the imposition of conditions as set out above the proposal is

Pack Page 76
66



considered to be an acceptable design solution for this site and the wider business park
area.

The established tree and shrub planting along the Aerospace Boulevard frontage is to be
retained. When the hardsurfacing was created to serve the driving test centre, there was
uncertainty when the adjoining land comprising the current application site would be
developed. Given its large area and to safeguard the visual amenity of the area, a
landscaped bund was created and planted to screen the testing area, although it is noted
that the planting on the bund has struggled to establish. The proposal will result in the
removal of this bund. Given its purpose was to mitigate the impact of the hardsurfaced area
before redevelopment of the application site and as this area will now be screened by the
proposed buildings, no objection is raised to the removal of this bund. The Arboricultural
Officer has been consulted on this application. He confirms that the proposal would result in
the loss of ten Lime trees, a semi mature Scots Pine and six groups of scrub trees of no
merit. He is satisfied that these losses are to be mitigated by a scheme of replacement and
landscape planting which may be secured by way of condition and as such raises no
objection to the proposal on landscape grounds.

3. Impact on neighbours -

There are no residential occupiers in proximity to the development site. The proposed uses
are not considered to give rise to unacceptable impacts in terms of noise and disturbance to
adjoining commercial occupiers. It is noted that there are residential properties at the
Queensgate development at the exit to the business park as vehicles would use either the
Southern Access Road or the reconfigured Queens roundabout. Objection has been raised
by residents on grounds of inappropriate development, additional noise and pollution caused
by increased HGV traffic and the capacity of the local road network to cope. As set out
above, the site has been identified for employment purposes for many years. However the
potential impact from HGV traffic particularly at night is unclear. To ensure appropriate levels
of amenity are retained for existing residents, it is considered appropriate to impose a
condition precluding night time deliveries. It is noted that the County Highway Authority does
not raise an objection in terms of capacity or ability to accommodate traffic generation
associated with the development. Subject to the condition as set out above, no objection is
raised to the proposal on residential amenity grounds.

4. Flood risk and the water environment -

The application has been considered by Hampshire as the Local Lead Flood Authority, the
Head of Planning Policy and Conservation, the Environment Agency and Thames Water.

Hampshire advise that they have reviewed the following information in relation to the
planning application:

- Flood Risk Assessment
- Ground Investigation report
- Site layout Plan

The proposals for the surface water drainage do show that a Sustainable Urban Drainage
System (SuDS) could be installed. The general principles for the surface water drainage
proposals are therefore acceptable but, they would recommend that further information on
the proposals be submitted as part of a more detailed design phase.

Although the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) discussed infiltration drainage as a possibility for

Pack Page 77
67



the site it is also mentioned that pollution exists in the ground and the ground investigation
report states that the levels of pollution could cause harm to any water supply. Also the
Council's Strategic FRA reports that, in Rushmoor, the majority of soils in the Borough are
very permeable and the underlying geology is relatively impermeable leading to
unacceptable ground water levels. It would therefore appear that soakaways cannot be used
on this site without the consent of the Environment Agency and local Council engineer.

It is noted that the applicant has determined that the existing surface water drainage runs to
the east into a private 1200mm diameter main under Dingley Way via two number 375mm
spurs and to the north via a 225mm and 300mm spurs which discharges into the sewer
infrastructure below the airport to the north of the site. The intention is to reuse these
connections. Depending on local flood issues it may be prudent to direct the proposed flows
to one, the other or both. The local Council should be able to advise if flooding is an issue.
The final details should be clear on the directions of flow and recommend that a check
should also be made to determine if any permissions are required for reconnection to any of
the systems referred to.

With regard to water quality the applicant should consider the sensitivity of the receiving
watercourse and system downstream and the number of treatment stages that may be
required. Highway drainage, for instance, is likely to carry some pollution. CIRIA C753 -
Chapter 4 Designing for water quality. The possible use of permeable paving and suitably
sized petrol interceptors as discussed and if maintained appropriately will contribute to the
cleaning of the water.

Previously developed sites should be designed so that the flows are close to the previous
greenfield rate. Where this is not possible it should not exceed the existing runoff rate for the
1in 1 year as well as the 1 in 100 year. Calculations demonstrating the runoff volume from
the development in the 1 in 100 year, 6 hour rainfall should also be provided as a
comparison with the existing and not exceed it.

Full details of the finalised site layout including the Sustainable Urban Drainage System
storage location and construction details and the items referred to above should be
submitted for approval by planning prior to commencement of construction on site.

The Planning Policy and Conservation Manager confirms that policy CP4 requires all new
buildings, and the development of car parking and hard standing, to incorporate Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SUDS) with the aim of returning runoff rates and volumes back to the
original greenfield discharge to prevent flooding and to ensure the quality of local water.

The site area is 3.28 hectares, of which 50% of the existing site consists of grassed or
planted areas, leaving 50% or 1.64 hectares of impermeable brownfield land. Due to the
nature of the development works consisting of five number industrial units along with
associated hard standing areas and limited green areas, there will be an increase in
impermeable areas following completion of the development works.

An order of preference exists for drainage receptors. Infiltration drainage should be used
where possible. Where this is not possible, or does not provide sufficient capacity, attenuated
discharge to watercourses should be sought. Only where neither of these two options is
available should discharge to sewers be considered, subject to approvals from the sewerage
undertaker.

The report states that infiltration drainage will not be suitable on the site or will not provide a
sufficient discharge rate. The investigations on site along with existing site drainage drawings

Pack Page 78
68



and CCTV surveys of the existing drainage confirm that the existing site discharges to offsite
main carrier pipes which lie directly to the east in Dingley Way and to the north, into the
sewer network and attenuation ponds within the Airport. It is proposed to reuse these outfall
points. It is noted that the supporting Drainage Strategy recommends approaches rather
than firmly committing to a scheme. As such, it is recommended that a full drainage strategy
and associated plans are submitted for consideration prior to commencement of works.

The Environment Agency advises that advises that the environmental risks associated with
this proposal relate to groundwater protection as the site lies in a secondary aquifer and
pollution protection. It also advises that if infiltration drainage is proposed then it must be
demonstrated that it will not pose a risk to groundwater quality.

Having regard to the above comments, the imposition of an appropriate drainage condition
and subject to the views of Thames Water the proposal is considered to be acceptable in
flood risk and drainage terms.

5. Nature conservation -

The site is adjacent to Farnborough Airport, areas of which are designated as Sites of
Importance for Nature Conservation. Natural England and the Council's Ecologist have been
consulted on this application. Natural England raises no objection to the proposal, refers to
standing advice and notes the development may provide opportunities which are beneficial to
wildlife. The Council's Ecologist has been consulted on this application and his views are
awaited. Subiject to the receipt of his views, no objection is raised to the proposal on nature
conservation grounds.

6. Transport and parking issues -

A Transport Assessment (TA) has been submitted with this application which considers the
likely trip generation associated with the proposed development and the likely impact of the
development on the surrounding road network. It also discusses the availability of other
modes of transport including public transport and pedestrian/cycle facilities. The County
Highway Authority has been consulted on this application and sought further information of
the potential impact of the proposal on the Government House Road/Queensgate Road
signalised junction upon Queens roundabout and the Lynchford Road/Alexandra
Road/Queens Avenue roundabout and the daily increase in heavy commercial vehicles
(HCVs) using Government House Road. The applicant has provided the requested
information and the County Highway Authority were satisfied that the approved development
would not have a materially detrimental impact on the operation of the local highway network
within Hampshire.

A transport contribution of £175,000 has been agreed with the applicant towards the
following measures:

- maintaining bus services;

- road safety improvement measures for cyclists along the A325 and

- pedestrian and cycle link improvements to North Camp Railway Station via Lynchford
Road.

A Staff Framework Travel Plan was submitted in support of the application which was
subsequently updated. Subject to securing the transport contribution as set out above and
the submission of a full travel plan together with approval and monitoring fees and provision
of a surety mechanism to ensure implementation of the Travel Plan by way of legal

Pack Page 79
69



agreement, the County Highway Authority raise no objection to the proposal. The applicant
is in the process of completing the requisite agreement.

The Council's Transportation Strategy Officer has been consulted on this application and
confirms that the application is supported by a full transport assessment ) which includes
details of car parking, vehicle swept paths and layout considerations. The TA refers to the
Hampshire County Council Parking standards which are consistent with the parking standard
for Rushmoor which require a maximum of 1 space for 45m2 for B1/B2 use (1 space for
30m2 of B1 office), 1 space for 90m2 of B8 use. It is understood that the proposal is for a
flexible use of the 5 units and the TA includes at Table 3.1 an analysis of the parking
requirements for each of the units with a mix of uses. For each of the units which are of
different sizes the TA states that it is proposed to provide parking as follows; Unit 1 (5469m2)
71 spaces including 4 disabled (although the site layout shows 80 spaces for this unit), Unit 2
(3985m2) 51 spaces including 3 disabled, Unit 3 (1472m2) 18 spaces including 2 disabled,
Unit 4 (1609m2) 14 spaces including 2 disabled and Unit 5 (1954m2) 20 spaces including 2
disabled. These parking numbers are all less than the maximum standard that would be
required for B1/B2 use but are in excess of that required for B8 use; in view of the proposed
flexible use of the units all of which will include an element of B8 storage floor space he is
satisfied that this meets our maximum parking standard.

It is proposed to provide cycle parking to meet Rushmoor standards, the accommodation will
be secure and covered. It is noted that no particular allowance has been made for
motorcycle parking however there is capacity in car spaces if there was a need.

Looking at the parking layout he advises that the parking spaces meet the minimum size
dimensions (2.4m x 4.8m with 6m aisles). The site layout has kept separation between the
loading areas and the parking areas, which will be important if the expected uses include
trips from external customers. The TA includes a swept path analysis for a 16.5m length
articulated vehicle which demonstrates access to the loading areas and that there is space
for turning and accessing such vehicles.

The vehicular access into the site from Dingley Way uses one existing access point to Unit 1
and the formation of two further access points to serve the other units, the central access
providing the service access to all of the other units. It is understood from the submitted
drawings that this section of Dingley Way will be constructed to provide a full 6m carriageway
as this is within the red line of the submitted drawings (this road is not adopted highway).
The TA includes confirmation of the sight lines that will be available for the vehicular
accesses into the new development which are in accordance with the requirements of DTp
Manual for Streets.

Having regard to the above and subject to the completion of the requisite legal agreement
and imposition of appropriate conditions relating to the provision of access/parking and a
construction method statement no objection is raised to the proposal on highway or
transportation grounds.

7. Sustainable Construction and Renewable Energy -

Policy CP3 states that all major development should demonstrate how they will be completed
in accordance with the BREEAM "Very Good" standard unless it can be demonstrated that it
would not be technically feasible or financially viable. The Head of Planning Policy has been
consulted on this issue and advises that:

"The Pre-Assessment report provided in support of the planning application is focused on a

Pack Page 80
70



Shell and Core Assessment, where areas of the development are not fully-fitted. In such
situations, the performance of the building and compliance with BREEAM is verified based
on the developer's scope of works only.

The Pre-Assessment provided states that a score of 55.05% could be attained for the Shell
and Core, equivalent to a rating of Very Good . This BREEAM ACHIEVABLE scheme is
defined as what the Baseline project could most likely achieve under the current design
proposals taking into account minor modifications to the design/specification. However, this
would not provide a safe buffer margin over the Very Good threshold (55%) of at least 5%
and may result in the scheme, once built, failing to achieve the appropriate rating.

Moderate improvements to the performance of the building show that there is scope to
achieve further credits and attain a score of 67.57%, comfortably above the Very Good
threshold of 55% and allowing for a safe buffer margin in excess of 5%.

In light of the above information, Planning Policy would expect the planning permission to
include a condition that reflects the fact that a Very Good rating has been demonstrated to be
achievable, as set out in the Pre-Assessment report, and the Council will require evidence of
attainment e.g. a compliance report/certificate, prior to the occupation of the units. Subject to
this condition no objection is raised to the proposal in terms of policy CP3.

In conclusion it is considered that the proposal will be a benefit to the business community,
support the ongoing development of the business park and reflect the objectives of the
development plan to encourage and guide development within the Borough.

Extension of Time

Due to the time required to complete the additional work for the transport assessment a
request has been received from the applicant to extend the time for the determination of this
application to 6 May 2016 to enable the legal agreement to be completed. This has been
agreed.

FULL RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that SUBJECT to the views of Thames Water and the Council's Ecologist
raising issues not previously considered and the completion of a satisfactory legal agreement
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure a transport
contribution of £175,000 as set out above and the submission, approval and future operation
of a travel plan to include appropriate provision for further monitoring of the plan the Head of
Planning in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to GRANT planning permission
subject to the conditions and informatives set out below

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 Notwithstanding any information submitted with the application, no works shall start on
site until a schedule and/or samples of the external materials to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority.

Pack Page 81
71



Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance.*

3 Notwithstanding any information submitted with the application no works shall start on
site until a schedule and/or samples of surfacing materials, including those to access
driveways/forecourts to be used in the development have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance and drainage arrangements.*

4 Notwithstanding any details submitted with the application no works shall start on site
until plans showing details of the existing and proposed ground levels, proposed
finished floor levels, levels of any paths, roads and parking areas and the height of
any retaining walls within the application site have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be completed and
retained in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory form of development in relation to neighbouring
property and the provision of an acceptable drainage strategy for the site.*

5 Before first occupation of the development the boundary treatment for the
development hereby approved shall be carried out and retained in accordance with
the details as shown on drawing number 30272-PL-108 B.

Reason - In the interests of amenity.*

6 Construction or demolition work of any sort within the area covered by the application
shall only take place between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays and
0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

7 No works shall start on site until a construction method statement has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall include:

i) programme of construction work;

ii) the provision of long term facilities for contractor parking;

iii) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works;

iv) methods and phasing of construction works;

V) access and egress for plant and deliveries;

vi) protection of pedestrian routes during construction;

vii)  location of temporary site buildings, site compounds, construction materials and
plant storage areas;

viii)  controls over dust, noise and vibration during the construction period;

iX) provision for storage, collection and disposal of rubbish from the development
during the construction period

(x) lorry routing; and

Xi) provision for the on-site parking and turning of construction vehicles

Construction shall only take place in accordance with the approved method statement.

Pack Page 82
72



10

11

12

13

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring, to prevent pollution and to prevent
adverse impact on highway conditions in the vicinity.*

The landscaping scheme as shown on drawing number 03 shall be implemented in full
prior to the first use of any part of the development or the first available planting
season whichever is the sooner and thereafter maintained in accordance with the soft
landscape works, maintenance and management statement prepared by Barry Chinn
Associates dated 12 November 2015. Any tree/shrub removed, dying or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees/shrubs of
similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

Reason - To ensure the development makes an adequate contribution to visual
amenity and in the interests of biodiversity

No unit shall be occupied until the car parking facilities shown on the approved plans
relevant to that unit have been completed and made ready for use by the occupiers.
The parking facilities shall be thereafter retained solely for parking purposes (to be
used by the occupiers of, and visitors to, the development). *

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of adequate off-street parking

No display or storage of goods, materials, plant, or equipment shall take place other
than within the buildings.

Reason - In the interests of amenity.

In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or materials which suggest potential or
actual contamination are revealed at any time during implementation of the approved
development it must be reported, in writing, immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. A competent person must undertake a risk assessment and assess the
level and extent of the problem and, where necessary, prepare a report identifying
remedial action which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the measures are implemented.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared and is subject to approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention

All wild birds and their nests are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended). If any part of the building is to be demolished during the bird
breeding season (March-September inclusive) it should first be inspected by an
experienced ecologist to ensure that no active nests are present. If an active nest is
discovered it should be left in situ until the young have fledged.

Reason - to prevent harm to breeding birds
No part of the development hereby approved shall be used or occupied until the

revised access arrangements as shown on the approved plans have been completed
and made available for use.

Pack Page 83
73



14

15

16

17

18

Reason - To ensure adequate means of access is available to the development

Prior to the occupation of the unit to which they relate, cycle parking shall be provided
and made available as shown on drawing number 30272-PI-101 C and as set out in
paragraph 3.3.5 of the Transport Assessment by WSP dated December 2015 and
thereafter retained for their designated purpose.

Reason - To promote alternative modes of transport

Notwithstanding any details submitted with the application prior to the commencement
of development details of a lighting strategy for the site shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved the lighting strategy shall
be implemented prior to the first use of any part of the development to which it relates
and thereafter retained unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and having regard to the
proximity of Farnborough Airport

Within 6 months of the date of completion of the development a verification report
shall be submitted which demonstrates that the development has achieved BREEAM
"Very Good" standard

Reason - To promote sustainable development in accordance with policy CP3 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy.

Prior to the commencement of development, and notwithstanding any details
submitted with the application, a detailed Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS)
strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to the first
occupation of that part of the development to which they relate and retained in
perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy

No works pursuant to this permission shall commence until there has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: -

i. a desk top study carried out by a competent person documenting all previous and
existing uses of the site and adjoining land, and potential for contamination, with
information on the environmental setting including known geology and hydrogeology.
This report should contain a conceptual model, identifying potential contaminant
pollutant linkages.

ii. if identified as necessary; a site investigation report documenting the extent, scale
and nature of contamination, ground conditions of the site and incorporating chemical
and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the desk top study.

iii. if identified as necessary; a detailed scheme for remedial works and measures
shall be undertaken to avoid risk from contaminants/or gas identified by the site
investigation when the site is developed and proposals for future maintenance and
monitoring, along with verification methodology. Such scheme to include nomination
of a competent person to oversee and implement the works.

Pack Page 84

74



19

20

21

22

Where step iii) above is implemented, following completion of the measures identified
in the approved remediation scheme a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention.”

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987 as amended and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development (England) Order 2015 as amended or as subsequently re-enacted, the
office accommodation within the development shall not exceed the following areas
(GIA) without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority:

Unit 1 1033 sqm
Unit 2 848 sq m
Unit 3 161 sqm
Unit 4 162 sqg m and
Unit 5162 sqm

Reason - To ensure an appropriate mix of development on the site and to ensure
satisfactory car parking provision is available to serve the development

There shall be no deliveries to, or collections from, the development between the
hours of 11pm and 7am.

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of residents within the Queensgate development

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987 as amended and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development (England) Order 2015 as amended or as subsequently re-enacted, the
uses within the development shall be for Use Class B1(b) or (c), B2 or B8 purposes
only.

Reason - To safeguard the site's designation as a Key Employment site, in the
interests of visual and residential amenity and nature conservation and to ensure
satisfactory parking provision is made available to serve the development

The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings - 30272-PL-100 A, 101 C102 D, 103 B, 104 B, 105 B, 106 C, 107
C, 108 B, 15-121/352 rev P1, 15023 OGL rev 1, 02, 03, 04 and 05

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted

Informatives

INFORMATIVE — The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pack Page 85
75



2 INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because it is considered that the proposal will be a benefit to the business community,
support the ongoing development of the Business Park and reflect the objectives of
the development plan to encourage and guide development within the Borough. It is
therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, and
taking into account all other material planning considerations, including the provisions
of the development plan, the proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a
consideration of whether the decision to grant permission is compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

3 INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These conditions require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Development started, carried out or occupied without first meeting the
requirements of these conditions is effectively development carried out WITHOUT
PLANNING PERMISSION. The Council will consider the expediency of taking
enforcement action against any such development and may refer to any such breach
of planning control when responding to local searches. Submissions seeking to
discharge conditions or requests for confirmation that conditions have been complied
with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

4 INFORMATIVE - This permission is subject to a planning obligation under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

5 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is recommended to achieve maximum energy
efficiency and reduction of Carbon Dioxide emissions by: a) ensuring the design and
materials to be used in the construction of the building are consistent with these aims;
and b)using renewable energy sources for the production of electricity and heat using
efficient and technologically advanced equipment for the production of electricity and
heat.

6 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to follow good practice in the demolition of
the existing buildings on site including the re-use of all material arising from demolition
as part of the redevelopment wherever practicable. Please contact Les Murrell,
Strategy Co-ordinator (Sustainability) at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398538
for further information.

7 INFORMATIVE - The planning permission hereby granted does not authorise the
applicant, or his agents, to construct a new/altered access to, or other work within, the
public highway. A separate consent for works within the highway must first be
obtained from the highway authority who may be contacted at the following address:-
Hampshire County Council Highways Sub Unit, M3 Motorway Compound, Hook,
Hampshire, RG27 9AA.

8 INFORMATIVE - Measures should be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the
site during construction works being deposited on the public highway throughout the
construction period.

Pack Page 86
76



10

11

12

13

14

15

INFORMATIVE - No materials produced as a result of site preparation, clearance, or
development should be burnt on site. Please contact the Head of Environmental
Health for advice.

INFORMATIVE - Future occupiers of the development should be made aware that
aircraft approaching and departing TAG Farnborough Airport could be seen, and
(dependent on weather conditions and ambient noise from other sources) heard from
the application site.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that there may be a need to comply with the
requirements of the Party Wall (etc.) Act 1996 before starting works on site. The Party
Wall (etc.) Act is not enforced or administered by the Council but further information
can be obtained from the Chief Building Control Officer.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that during the demolition and construction
phases of the development measures should be employed to contain and minimise
dust emissions, to prevent their escape from the development site onto adjoining
properties. For further information, please contact the Head of Environmental Health.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is reminded that the premises should be made
accessible to all disabled people, not just wheelchair users, in accordance with the
duties imposed by the Equality Act 2010. This may be achieved by following
recommendations set out in British Standard BS 8300: 2009 "Design of buildings and
their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people - Code of Practice". Where
Building Regulations apply, provision of access for disabled people to the premises
will be required in accordance with Approved Document M to the Building Regulations
2000 "Access to and use of buildings". The Rushmoor Access Group would welcome
the opportunity to give further advice and guidance.

INFORMATIVE - It is a legal requirement to notify Thames Water of any proposed
connection to a public sewer. In many parts of its sewerage area, Thames Water
provides separate public sewers for foul water and surface water. Within these areas
a dwelling should have separate connections: a) to the public foul sewer to carry
waste from toilets, sinks and washing machines, etc, and b) to public surface water
sewer for rainwater from roofs and surface drains. Mis-connections can have serious
effects: i) If a foul sewage outlet is connected to a public surface water sewer this
may result in pollution of a watercourse. i) If a surface water outlet is connected to a
public foul sewer, when a separate surface water system or soakaway exists, this may
cause overloading of the public foul sewer at times of heavy rain. This can lead to
sewer flooding of properties within the locality. In both instances it is an offence to
make the wrong connection. Thames Water can help identify the location of the
nearest appropriate public sewer and can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is requested to bring the conditions attached to this
permission to the attention of all contractors working or delivering to the site, in
particular any relating to the permitted hours of construction and demolition; and
where practicable to have these conditions on display at the site entrance(s) for the
duration of the works.

Pack Page 87
77






O L0L-1d-¢.c0o€

- MM ONINNY1d
HY E@moam.\_m— 5102 4380100
P¥1 SININJOTIATA SOONNVO
NV1d LNOAVT 31IS
IODON_Om_ZM_G\M_
ddvA31NOg 30VdSOd3av

ANOIS}RYYPID— DS MM
968C 92/L 020 Xv4
2019 9¢/L 020 INOHTTAL

NLy 9MS NOONOT
V0N SINOIT'LS
30VId OLVId i

SLOIUHONY QIAILHVHO

SAVIDOSSY

MOHO | mMvya 310N 3iwva A3y
N | W ansst yoiq sloziiol | -
¥ W0 0y Joop Buspooy
OV | Hv | louowppo ‘pajopdn saai ‘pappo ajou adoospun SlozLITL | v
v | Hv |2100 g jun pasmas yns o} pajopdn anpayds oaly g
papuaw Bupyind
¥ ® £ Wun ‘Z 3un 0} pappo 2)0b uowjsapad
15-Qns G-£ yun 'pjopdn anpayds
N | W 49 0} UNOYS }oIosapUN BSNOYAION SL0zZL80 | O

S3IONVAIMOSIA ANY 4O SILVIOOSSY SHVdS TIVHOIN
AJILON ONV 3ON303034d 3¥vL SNOISNIWIG a3UNOId
ONIMYHA SIHL 4O NOISHIA DINOHLOZ T3 NY ONISN 41

S3LVIOOSSY SHVAS T3VHOIW A8 0ISIHOHLNY
ATIVOIHI03dS SSITNN SNOISNIWIA ININYILIa
OL ONIMVHA SIHL 40 SNOISY3A OINO¥10313 38N LON 0Q

NMOYO (9) 301440 AYVNOILYLS WH 40 ¥ITIOMLNOD
4O NOISSINY3d A8 3ONAOYAIY dYI SO NO a3sva

Q3AYISTYH LHOINAOD

LHOINAOD

A3A¥NS OL 103raNs N

SINISNOD AMOLNLYLS OL 1O3raNns

‘S31ON

wogs

uog

'SVS0dOdd a31ivi3a
G ) Y04 SONIMVYA S1OFLIHOYY IdVOSANYT IHL OL ¥343y

ASV3Td 'FAILLVYOIIANI SI ONIdVOSANYT LVHL 3LON 3SV3d

008:4
NV1d LNOAVT ALIS

1012

N

Dm<>m.50m mo<mw0mm<

Pack Page 89

'S30VdS
3 “ou 91

\ O . vioL
: S30vdS ¥y 1S
e @ TR ¢

puog : ] O,

sy

340
ane?

-

3301
o~
=
z
o]

%

O
o@f{
= \\}“AO/O_‘:!

©
pieA WOY

\

\

-
|
LG

qvloL
ga0vds WO VL

zo:@

1

- S
=
| / wLloL
| SovdS WY 0C
3 el

=\ / . N
1 \/ , mdmwo,,m@ \ - ) N
= / VoL | ,,,,
= LI mﬁémw - pLUNO , : o :
Bk N f \

0¥s ans 13

VLol
Saovds uvd 8L
4 °u?
S30Y4S E

10807049

79

—

S—
L—

[

' séOl:!:\O
4OO14 ONC B A8

-
= i
Z
=)

L
1
|
1
3

A\ |
/\\%@%ﬂ ‘ —

A x . /

—— 1 @Al

sz«zn_,
ADHONZ|

L

sga00v 1A ON €

— z
aTana1 %000 oN

\

/

4A8m

@v0¥ Nopzq



ld

¢se/ 1el-Gl

Aoy

‘ou Buimelg

LV © 005:1

VS Gl0¢cllo

pax)oayD 9|eos umelq ayeq . O O ON o o m F w
Q Adoppiooey Q uoponusuog Q) sepusl  erouddy O Aeuwneid @  uonewlop

g ) YA

anss| Jo asoding . OO F OOO F

[ ] 000°} 0050 9
1NOAVT 1114 ANV 1LND

N 0050 0000 g

HONOYOSNYYA . .

Q¥v¥AI N0 30VdSOY3Y . 000°0 00S°0- v
a3 qor

[ ] 005°0- 000"}- €
aL7 SIN3JANdOT13AIA HOOWNYD

N 000"}- 006" }- Z
Jeyep ‘leqnQ ‘uopuoT ‘uoysbury|

v_cc._n_—_m._m sieauibug eanjonys R |IAID . 00G°L- 000°¢- 3
wo2 BulNsuooy00IgpPEIq MMM (G

woo'BuinsuoosyooIgpelq@osul (jlew
insueoto0IapE DL 1213 JO|0D | uoneAs|g WNWIXe\ | UOIBAS|T wnwWIuIlN | Jaquuinn
O e s o 3|qe ] suoneAs|]
A0 Joj0

GOl 9240
8snoH yos8q

200 teang

uonduosag

sleg | uoal | ney

NOILYWYOANI 404

GL'LLOZ| VS | Id

(4loduw)) wigt's = 76/l + 620'F

UeZe't = padinbas jousipw zy9 % | odhy |pjo

mctw@m“m = JUswedinbaJ |[pLUBIDW ZJg [P10]
MGG = juswialdinbal |pusypw | odAy |pjo]

MG/6CL =

SWIN[OA |DIUISIDW UONONIISUOD Jodwl |p1o]

(9)z + (9)1 = >pomypps podwi/podxe JoN (0

(4oduw)) wzst', = G/6°C|

'2WN[OA |[DLIBIDW Jodwl |D10]

— [CL'Y]

— |II}/1n0 1aN = pomyuos podwi/uodx3 (g

() WzzL% = 0267 + 00¢°C + [I3/I0 38N = (|} %® N2 |pul

Itk 84y 0} pappp 8q 0} (swnjoa diys jlos do} Jo wwgog)

0Z6y IN0gD pup (sWnjoA paysijowsp) WOOS‘E 4O |14 Jusjpainbe uy

(1114) ¢ £0S‘9 = N
¢W /€98 = 14
¢W 0€0'C =

|1'4 pue 1)

|9A3] 80DJINS paysiul SA

(paJinbay juoduwy)

HL4ON

UeZ0 = 00C°C -

s0puNs punoib bunsixe buisn paypinojpo useq soby (|14 B N (D

SHIOM UMeT 'z

605,

oWN|OA |DUBIDW popoib % paysnuy — 749 % | adAy Jo)
IDLISIDW |DIO] =

paJinbal

[pLSW 749 % | 8dAy 0y wodxe /uodwr jeN (g

‘sJeAp| uonDpPUNO} JOJ S|DLBIDW

219 % | odAy sp esinn 01 peppib ¥ paysnio S|pLIBIDW paysljowsp dy]

000 = WWQOZ 40 yydop pawnsse UD

0} (,WQOY'9gl) bulpupis ppy }240U00 bunsixe Jo uonijowsqg (b

s|eusjew paysijowaq °|

LWg/ /¢ = paID s|gpawiadw |pjo]

LWQ08Z'C = 8Ys Jo DauD [pJo]

8178 S0 G881 duined
L (sw)awn|oA| (w)ssauxdiyl|  (,w)eauy way
buinpd o|gqpaullad
978T S0 |e101
8vS ST0 C99°e 49
8vS ST'0 4K T adAL
0¢L 0¢0 4R oV
L (sw)awn|oA| (w) ssauxdiyl (;w)eary way|
pDOJ SS800y
LV8 Sv0 |e101
€8¢ ST0 88T ¢i9
9L€ 0C'0 88T T adAL
881 0To 88T oV
L (sw)awn|oA| (w) ssauxdiyl (;w)eary way|
bunod Up)
T0T'E 0 |e101
LSOT ST0 0L ¢i9
SoL 0T'0 90, T adAL
6EET 610 90, ge|s 91a4ouo)
L (sw)awn|oA| (w) ssauxdiyl (;w)eary way|
PIDA 80IAJBS
€9€9 0s0 |e101
906T ST0 LOLTT ¢i9
906'T ST'0 LOL'TT TadAL
TS T 0¢0 LOLTT ge|s 91a40uo)
L (sw)awn|oA| (w) ssauxdiyl (;w)eary way|
bupiing

Sawn|oA UOoI1oNJISU0) Jodw|

ll\ll\l,..*%,

007799

00889

008 8Y

,..S..&..k.

00589

006 89

00, L3
008 LI
006 LY
000 89
00} 83
00¢ 89
005 89
007 89

005 89

s@&a |

005 289

00¢ 89
00189

00089
0006 /9

V0879
00/°/9

_Q#.VA._

00989

000 63
00¢ 6%

00/ 89
008 8%
006 239

00R 8%

, 00¢ 89
00¢ 8% )
006 99
000 L3
- 001 [
001 %9 Aa.aih_
00% LY
s.mi-r«
ariranele 005 LY
abﬁ-fn, ‘Eﬁ‘:ﬁm
WOVATAS
00579

006 /9

80

A4

IAVA




d G0l-1d-¢.20¢€

YIGANN ONIMYHA w ON OF m O OON _\ mo _\
. ONINNY1d NOILVAT T3 1SIM \r0/
SN1VIS
HY LV®002Z: 1 G10¢ ¥43d0100
NMVYA ER\0Y 31va

"PYT SLNIINJOT1dATA HOOWNNVO ~ A
IN3MND \? 0000 49
SNOILVATTE - L 1INN

HONOHOYNdVA
ddvAa1NOd 30VdSOdIV

J

AN*02°S$}08} YD —DSW MMM = —— -+ - ——————————— =
968¢ 9¢// 020 Xv4
2919 9¢// 020 3INOH4ITIL

Nly 9MS NOGNOT .
avo¥ SINOIT'LS woog L L+
30V1d OWd }i ¢ > HONAVH

SLO3LHOYY QIILYVHO | ] \\\

S3LVIOOSSY

SAHVAS
— TIVHIIW G} @ @ @ @ @ © o

00¢-1L SOl
NOILVAT 13 HLHON \.g0/

MOHO | Mvdd 310N 31va A3 — I 1 I 1 —
i I < A
v HY anss! }pJ( glozolse | - i L N .
-U = nU, = A OO0 O o0 0O O 0O 0000 49
a|npayos s|pLd}pw uo pabubys 1nojod r i FI
v HY |+ Buipppjo ‘buizp|b uondadal oy pappp [i8jos ssug Gloz'zl'80 | v : ] : o
w HY pebubyo unojod  Buippoiy slozel’LL | 4 06/ €+ nm

A

A
00G°L+ 4S

| P—

9006 TV JOAIIS SlI[EISI :N0JOD 180D JopMOd Jajsak|od :ysiid

abpa 8s0U|INg YIIM [1I8]0S 8S1Ig WNUIWN(E Pa]e0d J8pMOd |1I8]0S 8sug e
® @ @ @ o @ o o ® @ ® e
8£0/ vy 819 Buimesoos :nojod 00Z2SdH BLel ysiuld OON _\
SIBI00s 4YD Unm Bupiosp jood |983s paoid HZE X 0001 J00y mo _\

NOILVAI13 1Sv3 \20/

9006 VY 2ll[EISI JOA|IS BWSLId }E02IN0J0D BB 1IN0j0D
1yos pue Buiyse|y eblea/seAes wWniUIWN(E P8}E0D JI8PMOd Buiyseyy sbion/seneq

9006 VY MBI JOAIIS ‘eslid Je02IN0joD Bl .| [ysiuld

®@ e © ©

Sawlel} pue sI00p |99)S sloo( |uuoslad
9006 VY JllEIBIN JBAIS ‘ewslid 1802IN0J0D el k] ysiul4 . M
SI00p [BUOND8S 81ISOdWOd Pade) WNIUIWLN|Y sjooq Buipeo i i i i i i i i i 0000 49
9006 VY JoAIIS Dll[EIBIN INOJ0D) }0D Japmod Jelseh|od ysiuld | — B
abpa asou|ng yym Adoueo soueljus wniuiwnje pajeod Japmod Adouen @ ﬁ - M
| | 0S.°€+ 44
‘(papop umoys) sauoz Jooyj} 0} Buize|b paxyoeq olwela) B
210/ v Aa19 ae|s 1unojo) "welsAs Buijjem ulepns wniuiwne —
pajeod Jepmod Jayshjod ui Buize|b sjgnop ung-nuy Jes|d SMOPpUIpA / Buljiepn uleun) Q m | —_— M
ik — .
006+ dS
Buippe|o jusoelpe yosyew o0} :unojoH — ._ = 1
apIm wwQz Juiol [eolan passaoay JUIOf [BOIHB/\ POSS909Y
9006 TV 2llEI9IA JOA|IS :BwSlid }802IN0J0) BB :4N0j0D) 7
yb1ly WwoQ9 pueq ainies} [BJUOZIIOY PaSSaday pueg ainjea |BlUOZIOH 7 7

(Aa19 yieq@ 2ljE}BN ) SNSZ :IN0J0D BWSLH }B0210|0D BB YSIUl4
sjoued Buippejo a)sodwod paoe} |ejdaw jej4 Buippe|D |lep [aued iel4

(epoeIUIUY ) 910/ TVY NOJOD BWSLIH JBO0I0[0D B1E ySiUld
sjeued Buippe|o sysodwoo peoey |elaw ie|4 BuippeD |lep [eued 1el4

(®-
00Z: 4

GOl
NOILYATT13 HLNOS \Jo/

9006 TV Ol[EIOIN JOAIIS Tewslid J802IN0j0) B .| :ysiul4 ‘Buippelo
[esls pajyoid [epiozadey) (umelp se) pie| A|jeoiuen / A||BIUOZIOY MZE X 0001 ¢ Buippe |lepm pajoid

/006 TV wniuiwnjy AalS) :ewsld }e02.noj0) el e :ysiul4
Buippeyo [99)s payoid [eplosnuis pie| A|lejuozLioH Z Buippero llem pajyoid

9006 TV Oll[EIBIN JOAIIS ewslid 1800InojoD el e] ysiuld
Buippeo [99)s pajyoid [epiosnuis ple| A|jejuozyoH | BuippelO llem palyold

© ® ® ® ® ® ©
®
Q
©
®
@
©
S
©
©
S
©
S
©
S
®
©
@

STVIMALYW ONIOV4 40 IINAIHOS { o0 do

S3IONVdIHOSIA ANV 4O SILVIOOSSY SHIVS TIVHIIN
AdILON ANV 30N3A303dd 3IMVL SNOISNIWIA d3d4nold
ONIMVYHA SIHL 40 NOISH3IA JINOHLO313 NV ONISN 4l

SALVIOOSSY SMHVdS T13aVHOIN A9 A3SIHOHLNY
ATIVOIHID3dS SS3TINN SNOISNIWIA ININYTLIA
O1 ONIMVYA SIHL 40 SNOISH3IA JINOY1O3173 3SN LON Od

Q3IAYISTY LHOIYALOD \ A
—
w )

LHORIALOD 005b1+
NMOXO (9) 301440 AMYNOILYLS IWH 40 ¥ITIOHLNOD ¢ D HONNVH

40 NOISSINYId A @IONA0YITY dVIN SO NO d3sve | —

—
A3AYNS OL 103rans

SINISNOOD AYOLNLVLS Ol 103rans

‘S31O0N

Pack Page 91

81



O 901-11d-¢L20¢€

Y3GNNN ONIMVHA

w 0c

v ONINNV1d

a3403HO Snuvis
HY LV®00zZ:1 G10Z 4390100
NIV TS va

"PYT SLNIINJOT1dATA HOOWNNVO

IN3MND

SNOILVATTE - ¢ 1INN

ONIMVYA

HONOHOANHVYA
ddvAa1NOd 30VdSOd3aV

J

3N°02°S}08)IYOID—DSW MMM
968¢ 9¢/L 020 Xv4
2919 9¢// 020 3INOHJITIL

N1y 9MS NOONO1
avoy SINOIa'Ls
30V1d OvVid LI

SLO3LHOYY J343LVHO

S3LVIOOSSY

SAHVAS
13VHOIN

MOHO | Mvdd 310N 3iva A3y
v HY anss| Yoiq Gloz'hli'e0 | -
v Hv |8400 pasines yins oy payopdn Buizp|b uoiipAsje 3sp3 Gl0Z' L8l v

3|npayds s|plSlpW uo pabubyd Jnojod
v HY |+ Buppojo ‘buizoib uondadas o} pappo |isjos ssug G102°C180 g
v HY pabupyo unojod ¢ Buippoj) Glozel il J

9006 TV JOAIIS SlI[EISI :N0JOD 180D JopMOd Jajsak|od :ysiuid
abpa asou|Ng Yjim |19]0S 8S1Ig WNUIWN[E Pajeod Japmod

8€0. VY Ao19 BuImesoos :unojo) 00ZSdH BLEL :ysiuld
S)UBII00I JHD Yim Buposp Joou [a8)s pajyoid HZE X 0001

9006 VY 2ll[BISI JA|IS BWSLId }E02IN0J0D BB 1IN0J0D
1yos pue Buiyse|y eblea/seAes wWniUIWN(E P8}E0D JI8PMOd

9006 VY OlI[e}9N JOAIIS (BWSld 1B02INOJ0D B1E] ySiuld
SelWel) pue s1oop [99)S

9006 vYH 9ll[eI9N JBAJIS ‘ewslid J802JN0j0D Bl B ysiuld
SI00p [euoN08s 8}1S0dWOoD Paoe) WNjUIWN|Y

9006 TV J9AIS Dll[EI9IN :N0J0D) 180D JOPMOd JalSSAI0d :ysiuld
abpa asou|ing yum Adoued eoueljus WNIUIWN(E Pa}eod JI9pMOd

‘(papop umoys) sauoz Jooyj} 0} Buize|b paxyoeq olwela)
210/ v Aa19 ae|s 1unojo) "welsAs Buijjem ulepns wniuiwne
pajeod Jepmod Jayshjod ui Buize|b sjgnop ung-nuy Jes|d

Buippe|o juadelpe ydjew o} :1nojo)
apIM WWQQZ JuIof |EDILBA passaday

9006 VY Oll[EISI JOA|IS :BWSLId JE02IN0J0)) BB 1IN0j0D
ybIy WW9 pueq ainjes) |BJUOZIIOY PESSa0ay

(Aa19 yieq@ oljjeI8 ) SN8Z :Inoj0D BuISld 1B02I0j0) BB (YSiUl

sjoued Buippejo a)sodwod paoe} |ejdaw jej4

(epoeIUYIUY ) 910/ TVY HNOJOD BWSld }B02I0[0D BB ySiuld
sjoued Buippejo a)sodwod paoe} |elaw 1ej4

9006 VY OlI[BIBIAl JBA|IS ‘Bwslid }e02Inojo) el .] :ysiuld “Buippe|d
[983s pajjoid [epiozadel; (umelp se) pie| Ajjesiusna / Ajjeyuozuoy ApAZE X 0001

/006 TV wniujwn)y A319 :Bwslid }e02Inojo) el ] :ysiul4
Buippelo |199)s pajioid |epiosnuls pie| AjjejuoziioH

9006 WY Ol[eJoN JOAIIS (BlWSId 1B02INOJ0D B1E] (ySiul4
Buippelo |98)s pajiyo.d |epiosnuls pie| AjjeluozLioH

lI9]0S osug

jooy

Buiyseyy abian/seneq

$100(] [8UUOSIad

sloo( Buipeo

Adouen

SMOPUIA / Buljle utepnd

IO [BO118/\ PoSSeoay

pueg ainjes- |BJUOZIIOH

Buippel) |1em 18ued 1eld

Buipped (lepm 1sued 1eld

€ BuippelD llep pajyoid

Z Buippe|D |lep pe|yoid

| BuippelD llepm pajyold

®©® ® @ 6 © @ O

© 0 ®© 0 © © ©

SIVIH31LVIA ONIOVH 40

341NAd34HOS

S3AIONVJIHOSIA ANV 4O STLVIOOSSY SHYVS TIVHOIN

AdILON ANV 30N3A303dd 3IMVL SNOISNIWIA d3d4nold
ONIMVHA SIHL 40 NOISH3A OINOYLO373 NV ONISN 4l

SALVIOOSSY SMHVdS T13aVHOIN A9 A3SIHOHLNY
ATIVOIHID3dS SS3TINN SNOISNIWIA ININYTLIA

O1 ONIMVYA SIHL 40 SNOISH3IA JINOY1O3173 3SN LON Od

A3AY3ASTY LHOIMALOD

LHOIYALOD

NMOHYO (9) 301440 AYVYNOILYLS WH 40 ¥3TTOYLNOD
40 NOISSINY3d A9 A3ONA0YdIY dVIN SO NO d3sve
AJAYNS OL 103rans

SINISNOOD AYOLNLVLS Ol 103rans

‘S31O0N

0

I

00c:1L

NOILVATTd LSV

]

L1 [

L1 L1

— i —

Lentl

00¢-1

A
0G2°€+ 44

A
006+ 4S

A
woos' L L+
HONNVH

NOILVAT 13 LSAM

00¢Z:1

c0

(o]
o
—

A
0000 49

- A
woos L L+
HONNVH

NOILVAT1d HLHON

o

o

00¢-1

901
\g0/
A
0000 49

A
0G.°€+ 44

A
00G°L+ 4S

A
woos'L L+
HONNVH

NOILVAT1d HLNOS

e
0000 49

R————
0G/.°¢+ 44

K————
006+ 4S

J

90l
\¥0/
A
0000 49

A
woos' 1 L+
HONNVH

Pack Page 92

82



O L01-1d-¢420¢€

4IENNN ONIMYIA

v ONINNV1d

a3403HO snvis
HY LY@00Z'L G10¢ ¥390.100
NMV VS ava

"PYT SININJOTIAIA HOOWNNVO

IN3MO

SNOILVAT 13 - G-€ S1INN

ONIMYYA

HONOHOANYVY
ddvAd1N04g 30VdSOd3aVv

I

3N°09°$}09}YOID—DSW’ MMM
968¢ 9¢// 0TO Xv4
2919 9¢// 0ZO 3INOHJIT3L

NLy 9MS NOGNO1
Qvod SINOIT'LS
30V1d Olvid L1

SL1O31IHOYY (3Y¥3L4VHO

SIIVIOOSSY

AHVCS
- 1IVHIIN

MOHD | Mvid 310N 3lva AN
) HY anss! yoiq qslocolee | —
v HY umoys toop Buipoo| |puoppy GLoz’LLCl v
v HY pabupyo unojod  Buippojy GlozT' Ll g
v 79 PoppD SuolpAS|s uimal § pudb ¢ Jun 9102°10'%0 J

80/ VY A819 Buimasoos :anojo) 00ZSdH B1EL :ysiul4
SIYBIoOI 4D ynm Buyoep joou [99)s pajiold HzZe X 0001

9006 VY ll[BIeIN JeA|IS ‘BwSLd 1802IN0j0D B]B] IN0j0D
1yos pue Buiyse)} abioa/seAee wNjuiWNe pe}eod Jepmod

9006 TV Ol[E}O| JOAIIS Telstid 1e00In0jo) B1. ] (ysiuld
saulel) pue SI00p |98]S

9006 TV Ol[EJO|\ JOA|IS Telslid 1e00IN0j0) B1. ] (ysiul
SI00p [euoNoas 8)Isodwod pade) Wniuwn)y

9006 VY JOAIIS SIS :IN0J0D 180D JapMOd Ja)sah|od ysiuld
abpa asou|ing yum Adoueo eouelius WnUIWN(E Paleod JI8pMOod

‘(papop umoys) sauoz ooy 0y Buize|b payoeq olwels)
210/ VY A819 8je|S :1nojo) ‘wa)sAs Bujjlem uieund wnjujwnie
pajeod sapmod JaysAjod ul Buize|b ajgnop ung-nuy Jes|n

Buippe|o uaoelpe yosjew o} :unojod
SpIM WIWQQZ UIOf [eOILBA passaday

9006 VY Oll[BIoIN JOA|IS (BwSLd 1202IN0j0D B]E] IN0j0D
ybily WwQ9 pueq ainjes) [BJUOZIIOY PaSSe0aYy

(Aalo) yueq ol||_18|N ) SN8Z :1N0j0D) BWSLH }B02I0|0D Bl .] :ysSIuld
sjaued Buippe|o aysodwod paoe) [ejew 1e|4

(epoeIUIUY ) 910/ TVY HNOJOD BUISld }e00I0[0D BB ysiul]
sjoued Buippe|d a)1sodwod padey [ejaw je|q

9006 v OlI[BISIN JOA|IS (BWSHd }800N0J0D BB (Ysiuld "Buipped
|1991s pajyoud |epiozadel; (umelp se) pie| Aj[edIuanA / Ajlejuozioy pZE X 0001

/006 VY wniuiwny Aalo) :ewslid }202In0jo) BB :ysiul4
Buippelo |98)s pajiyold |epiosnuis pie| Aj|ejuoziioH

9006 TV Ol[EIO| JOA|IS Telstid 1e00In0jo) B1e ] (ysiuld
Buippeo |98s pajyo.d jepiosnuis pie| AjjejuoziioH

Jooy

Buiysey)s abion/sone]

$100( |8UUOSIOd

sJoo(q Buipeo]

Adouen

SMOPUIAN / Buljlep ureund

JUIO[ [BOIUBA Passaday

pueg ainjea |EJUOZIIOH

BuippelO IleM [Bued 1el4

BuippelD IleM [oued 1el4

€ BuippelD llepm paiyold

Z BuippelD |lepm pajyold

| BuippelD llepm payold

® @ 60 6 © @

© ® @ © © © ©

SIVIH31LVIN ONIOVH 40 F1NAIHDOS

SIIONVJIHOSIA ANV 40 STLVIDOSSY SHIVIS TIVHOIN
AdILON ANV 3ON3IAI03™d IMVL SNOISNIWIA a3dNold
ONIMVYHA SIHL 40 NOISHIA DINOYLOF T3 NV ONISN I
SILVIDOSSY SHYVCS TIVHOIW A9 AISIHOHLNY
ATIVOI4103dS SSTTINN SNOISNIWIA ANINYFLIA

01 ONIMYHA SIHL 40 SNOISHIA OINOY1D373 3SN LON Od
A3AY3ISTY LHOIMALOD

1HOIMALOD

NMOHYO (9) 301440 AYVYNOILYLS IWH 40 H3T104LNOD

40 NOISSINY3d A9 A30NA0YdIY dVIN SO NO a3svd
AIAYNS OL 103rans

SINISNOD AHOLNLVLS Ol 103rans

‘S310N

— L

w 0c

’ m o 00¢Z 1 m
NOILVAIT3 1Sv3 \Jo/

/ v ’ |

' ¢ 1INN A A S 1INN )
o | _
0000 49 oOl0 O = - = _LL 00070 49

00L€+dd [ ::_
A
_ wo00' 6+
HONNVH
® ® oo o o &

G @ @ @ ® © O

00¢c:1L /01
NOILVYAI13 LSIM \20/
A G 1INN /\A /\A ¢ 1INN v

N
! 0000 49

_ _ | _ — | _ _ — —— _ | _ _ | = | _ _ L
w006+
HONNVH
® @ @ ® @ @ ® o
00Z:1 L0} 00¢-1 L0l
NOILYAT T3 HLNOS \g0/ NOILVAI 13 H1LNOS \.g0/
A v G LINN v
AN AN AN
0000 49 0000 49 0000 49
||||| T -
AN AN
002'¢+ 44 002'¢+ 44
S A
w00’ 6+
HONNVYH
& e ®" @ - ® ®
00¢c-1 /01 00c-1 /01
NOILVYAT T3 HLHON \90/ NOILVYAT T3 HLHON N
A ¥ LINN v € 1INN v
AN AN A
! ! 0000 49 0000 49 0000 49
- ———x U_,l AN
002'¢+ 44 002'¢+ 44
AT T T T r\“w
HONNWH —— = ——— |

Pack Page 93

83



d ¢ol-1d-¢Lc0¢€

Y3GNNN ONIMVIA

w 0c¢ ol g 0
0} ONINNV1d
a3403HO Snuvis
HY LV®00zZ:1 G10Z 4390100
NIV 7IV0S va

‘P¥1 SININJOT3AIA HOOINNVD

IN3MO

SNV'1d 400714 - L 1INN

ONIMVYQ

HONOHOANHVA
ddvAa1NOd 30VdSOd3aV 00¢:-1 20l 00¢-1 20l 00c:1 20l

NV1d 0014 ANOD3S  \&0/ NV1d ¥OOTd LSHId  \2&/ NYTd ¥OOT4 ONNO¥D 10/

3N°02°S}08}IY2ID—DSW MMM
968¢ 92/, 020 XV4
2919 9¢// 020 3INOHJITIL

Nl 9MS NOGNO1
avoy SINOIT'LS

30V1d OLV1d L1
SLOALIHOYY IWILYVHO
SA1VIOOSSY | | | | | | | | |
, , 7
SHYVS = I - — : = —
Py C OML N N i
(- I | [ Ht—— ) i
S — TAVHIIN | omd i o (. !
AV | wivis | omL _ T L i
ﬁ S FHAHH A+ = E
LSM. Sy S Ry
I
- -fj - - — - - = h - — — — — — — — — il
1] — | _— —_—t — — +HH
MOHD | Mvda 310N 3iva A3y i i i §
)4 HY anss! Yoiq Glocol¢e -
v HY Jooy punoib 0} umoys 22140 G10¢°01'8¢ v L I i
_ = =8 - - — - - - - - - — - — - - - H
umoys wuofpd jupid L — L — — A
v HY ‘suojpAsjd Jins o} pejopdn buizoib Jooy pug G10C' 1190 g i
)4 HY umoys ainjiuiny uoidedsy GIOZ L8l J L L
o'} HY Buizo|b uondsoss o} umoys Adoupd/|isjos ssug G10Z°Z1°80 a L L I
I
I I I
I
" — e — e — +HH
— - o - - - — - - - - - - — - - - - - — — i
I I
L L Il
i i , 14040¥3ANN |
L 301440 NV1d N3do i 301440 NV1d N3dO 3ISNOHIYYM i 1INN
i — i - e — — — — — 4 — — — - — 4 - b o <
o " [e0]
_ - B - - - - - - - - - - — - - - - E
L u
I
I I I
I
L - L - - Nl
ol | ol | | il
- .v . - ,F | || B | B | —
aion i & Eﬂﬂ_ oM
i 3 i ”r}} HNT] i » ” | MHS % >>I& JIVIN
i i a M sIa j
B
| WHOLLY1d W W o : j
" 301440 ﬁ INVd I | | S 3 W m /L | V
@ | @ | , ” ” ; - | z ” | L Nl
e [ & [ T @w I , o S
2t a2 T o , ]
2 2 41 om 2 W wan {f - o
g ww3H 2 ERVAE] 2 W dSE MERTZE
g [ 3NO g | INO o | 3o AH\\L W,
dIvLs yIVLS g RIS T
. o I _ _ o il _ _ o_
wl i P | wl i P | ) 2 P | i
7 7 7
| | |
H— H— H— +HH
T R . R e I - | —] -
| 7 7 7 | 7 4 | 7 \
J L J r ] L ]
| 7 | 7 | |
— | — | — |
STIONVAIHOSIA ANV 40 STLYIOOSSY SHUVIS TIVHOIN
AdILON ANV 3ONIA3I0Td IHV.L SNOISNIWIA aIUNOI
ONIMVHA SIHL 40 NOISYIA JINOYLOTTI NV ONISN 4l
S3LVIOOSSY SHYVAS TIVHOIN AS AISIHOHLNY
ATTVOIHI03dS SSTTNN SNOISNIWIA ININYILIA
OL ONIMV¥A SIHL 40 SNOISHIA OINOYLOF 13 3SN LON Od
Q3IAYISTY LHOIALOD N
N 1

1HOIHAJOD

NMOHYOD (9) 301440 AYVNOILYLS WH 40 ¥3TT0HLNOD

40 NOISSINY3d A d30NA0HdIY dVIN SO NO a3svd
AIALNS OL 103rdns %

SINISNOOD AHOLNLVLS Ol 103arans

‘S310N

Pack Page 94



d €01-1d-¢120¢

YIGANN ONIMYHA

v ONINNY1d

A3IXNO3IHD SNIVIS
HY LY®00Z:1 G102 ¥390100
NMVYQ J1VOS 3lva

‘PYT SLNIINJOT1dA3d HOOINNVO

IN3MD

SNV'1d 40014 - ¢ 1INN

ONIMVYHA

HONOHOGNdVA
ddvAa1NOg 30VdSOd3dv

L

3N*00°§}08)1YOID—DS W MMM

968¢ 9¢/L 020 Xv4

€919 9¢// 0¢0 3INOHd3IT3L

N1y 9MS NOANOT
avoy SINOIT'LS
30V1d Ovid L1

S103LIHOYY Q3Y3LYVHO

SALVIOOSSY

SAHVS
TIVHIIW

Pack Page 95

00¢-1L €Ol
NV1d 40074 ANNOYD Lo/

MOHO | Mvdd 310N 3lva AT
v HY anss| Yoiq GloC'LL90 | —
v HY pajopdn SMOpUIM puUD 8109 B3I GloC 118l
o HY buizo|b uondsoas 0} umoys Adouoo/|isjos esig 61027180

S3AIONVJIHOSIA ANV 40 STLVIOOSSY SHHVCS T3VHOIN
AdILON ANV 3ON3d303dd IMV.L SNOISNINIA a3dnold
ONIMVHA SIHL 40 NOISH3AA JDINOYLO313 NV ONISN 4l

SALVIOOSSY SMHVCS TaVHOIN A8 dISIHOHLNY
ATIVOIHIDAdS SSTTINN SNOISNINIA ININGTLIA

OL ONIMVHA SIHL 40 SNOISH3IA JINOJ10313 3SN LON Od

A3AY3IS3Y LHOIIAJOD

1HOIHAJOD

NMOHYD (9) 301440 AYVYNOILYLS WH 40 ¥3T10H1INOD
40 NOISSINY3d A9 3ONA0YdTY dVIN SO NO d3sve

AIALNS OL 103rans

SIN3ISNOO AHOLNLVLS Ol 103rdns

‘S310N

w 0c ol g
00¢:-1 00¢Z:1 €0l
NV1d ¥0014 ANOD3S &0/ NV1d 80014 1SHI4 20/
JBA0 |IB]|0S Gw_\_m. 7 JBAO |I8]0s Qw_._m-
LH ... .n__(o> _H_ h I LH ... .D_0> E : i
-_.n w -_.n wwwwwwww dN10
NHO41v1d 1417 W A9901 u
INV1d 7 MHS B
aNo \, OM SId
MIVLS (.
I eeel
] B om m._wxuu\
JIVIA
I
. . N
- = l‘m — | L _ | —
301440 NV1d N3dO 1 I 301440 NV1d N3dO 1
L im _ A | _ ]
i
— 4 — A ) |
| omL | omL
[ wivis H avis \\

1910 Adoue _ Fﬂ.
- LI L] L= .
L Nouwdzos S
| bl
| MHS 2
3NO OM SId
dIvLS R
I |
) eea
— ] om I,
oM ERTIER
ERVL
7 H :J
|
__ I
Tl I
I |
I
o — , —
_n__ : 1INN %V
__ 14049243ANN :
- m_wDOIm_N_<3 o H H‘ B B ..“.. ) ..“.. ) ‘
I
I
o T —h
l I
M I
| i
I I
o ‘ —h
I
il I
I
I
I |
y I
o — — k-
mL I
FH+H+H+H—— | "
F oML L
—| dIVLS :ru,um W E
==
A n
?_ | o 1 . q ! |
_n 3 1C
o L - :
o o

85



d ¥0l-1d-¢L20¢

Y3EANNN ONIMYHA

v ONINNVY1d

aH03HO SNIVLS
HY IV@00zZ: 1 G10¢ 4390100
NMVAQ EJLON 3lva

‘PFT SLNIINJOT3AIA JOONNYD

IN3IM0

SNV'1d 40014 - G-€ SLINN

ONIMVYQ

HONOHOENHV4
ddvA31NOg I0VdSOdHIVY

JuL

00c:1

v0l

%N*00°'S}O8HYOID—DSW MMM
968¢ 9¢/L 020 Xv4
2919 9¢// 02O 3INOH4IT3L

N1y 9MS NOANO1
Qavod SINOIT'LS
30vid Ovid LI

S1031IHOYY Q3Y¥314VHI

SAIVIJO0SSY

SAHVS

- TIVHIIN

MOHO | mvdd 310N 3lvad A3y

N | HY anss| ypiq slozoles | -
% un 0} Joop

OV | Hv | DBuippoj |puonippp ‘0100 0} umoys Op 0ol jSiij SlzLlTE | v

N | HY doop buipooj Mou o} pawwiy Buippoly 5l0zzL'80 | 8

S3AIONVJIHOSIA ANY 4O SILVIOOSSY SHHIVJS T3VHOIN
AdILON ANV 3ON3d303dd IMV.L SNOISNINIA a3dnold
ONIMVHA SIHL 40 NOISH3A JINOYHLO317d NV ONISN 4l

SALVIOOSSY SMHVdS 13VHOIN A8 d3SIHOHLNY
ATIVOIdID3dS SSTTINN SNOISNINIA ININGTL3A

OL ONIMVHAQ SIHL 40 SNOISH3IA JINOYJ10313 3sn LON Od

J3AY3STY LHOIHAJOD

1HOIJAJOD N

NMOYD (9) 301440 AYVYNOILYLS WH 40 ¥3T110HLNOD
40 NOISSINY3d A9 A30NA0YdTY dVYIN SO NO d3sve

AIALNS OL 103rans

SINISNOD AHOLNLVLS Ol 103rdns

‘S310N

NV'1d 40014 dANNOHO

N,

14049¥3aNN 1404043aNN 1404043aNN
ISNOHIUVM 3ISNOKIYYM 3ISNOHIUVM
MHS =
sSida
[
o o
W Hi - = — % — , k — LHT
4
mtfz:
141"
NV1d 40014 1S¥I4  \2/
301440 201440 201440
_ni LE | [ &
) o) g
D /| G ol |
L _ I . |

Pack Page 96

86



Development Management Committee Item 8
27th April 2016 Report No.PLN1613
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Chris Jones
Application No. 16/00165/FULPP
Date Valid 11th March 2016
Expiry date of 13th April 2016

consultations

Proposal Demolition of existing shop and erection of new building comprising
1 x studio flat, 2 x one bedroom flats and 1 x two bedroom flat with
associated car parking

Address 10 Queens Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6DN
Ward St Mark's

Applicant Mr & Mrs A K Sahni

Agent Mr Nigel Rose

Recommendation Refuse

Description

The application site is a single-storey retail unit on the northern side of Queens Road and
which was formerly used as a car showroom before permission was granted for retail use in
2009. The unit has a floor area of 145 sgm and has a low, pitched roof, concealed at the
front by a parapet wall. It is currently occupied by a company selling decorating products to
tradesmen and DIY customers.

The proposal is to demolish the existing building and to erect a new three-storey building on
the site, which would contain a studio flat and a service area at ground floor level (including
access and car parking, bin storage and cycle parking), one one-bedroom flat and one two-
bedroom flat at first floor level and one one-bedroom flat at second-floor level, contained
within the roof-space. The building would be constructed with brickwork walls and a concrete
tiled roof, with white uPVC framed windows.

Consultee Responses

Transportation Strategy Officer Highways Objection on grounds of inadequate parking
and turning

Planning Policy No Obijection

Pack Page 97
87



Environmental Health No Obijection subject to conditions.

Community - Contracts No Obijection.
Manager
Parks Development Officer No objection, subject to a financial contribution towards

off-site public open space works.

Thames Water No comments received.
Hampshire Fire & Rescue No Objection.
Service

Neighbours notified

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 7 individual letters of notification
were sent to properties in Queens Road and Church Path.

Neighbour comments

A petition containing 57 signatures has been received, which raises objection to the
proposals on grounds of the impact of the proposed building on adjoining residents through
loss of light, outlook and privacy; that the proposal would remove at least two parking bays
on the road, in an area with high demand for on-street parking; that the number of parking
spaces is insufficient and there is also insufficient room for manoeuvring within the site; the
submitted plans do not show an existing telephone pole within the property boundary, that
they do not show the development in relation to existing properties, that there is no elevation
drawing for the rear of the building and no means of escape is shown for the first and second
floor units; that the proposal would result in the closure of a vibrant, small, specialist
business, which, with no suitable alternative premises in the area, will result in the
unemployment of the staff and to their customers going outside the North Camp area, thus
affecting other business in the area and thus undermining the vitality and viability of the North
Camp village; that recent residential developments in North Camp have been taking place at
the expense of commercial premises and that there are sufficient flats to meet demand; and
that the proposal contains no information about proposed demolition or decontamination of
the site.

Individual letters of objection have been received from the occupiers of 8, 8A, 10, 12, 14, 19,
73 and 79 Camp Road, 2 and 3 Church Path, a property in Woodlands Walk, Aldershot and
20 Deanside, Camberley on similar grounds to those set out in the petition. In addition, the
owner of 12 Queens Road considers that the proposed flats would result in increased noise
and disturbance to the occupants of the flat above his premises. Other issues raised are
that the proposed flats would result in increased traffic and danger to highway users and
would also reduce the amount of on-street parking available for residents and visitors to the
area; increased pollution: that the proposal is unacceptable in size and design; Concern is
also raised about lack of capacity in schools and local doctors’ surgeries.

Ward Councillor Liz Corps has also raised objection to the proposal on the grounds that the
proposal would result in the loss of an existing, occupied retail unit containing a large and
relatively new business and that permitting this development would set a precedent for the
further loss of retail and commercial premises in North Camp village. She also raises
concern about the height of the building and the impact that this would have on adjoining
residents.

Pack Page 98
88



Policy and determining issues

The site is located within the built-up area as defined in the Rushmoor Core Strategy and
Policies SS1 (The Spatial Strategy), CP1 (Sustainable Development Principles), CP2
(Design and Heritage), CP3 (Renewable Energy and Sustainable Construction), CP4
(Surface Water Flooding), CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and Housing Mix),CP8 (Supporting
Employment Development), CP10 (Infrastructure Provision), CP12 (Open Space, Sport and
Recreation), CP13 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area), CP16 (Reducing and
Managing Travel Demand) and CP17 (Investing in Transport) of the Rushmoor Core
Strategy together with. saved Policies ENV17 and OR4/0R4.1 of the Rushmoor Local Plan
Review are relevant.

The advice contained in the Car and Cycle Parking Standards Supplementary Planning
Document and the Planning Contributions: Transport Supplementary Planning Document is
also relevant.

The main determining issues will be the principle of the proposed development, impact upon
the character of the area and visual amenity, impact upon residential amenity, amenities of
occupiers, highways considerations, impact upon the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area and off-site provision of public open space.

Commentary
Principle -

Whilst the site is located within what may be described as the North Camp area, it is not
located within either the North Camp District Centre or the Shopping Core as defined in the
Rushmoor Core Strategy and therefore Policy SP5 - which resists the loss of retail units -
does not apply. Therefore, while the comments of the objectors and petitioners that the
proposal would result in the closure of an existing business is noted, it is considered that
there is no planning policy basis for refusing the application on this ground. Accordingly,
there is no objection in principle for the redevelopment of this site for residential purposes,
subject to normal development control criteria.

Impact upon visual amenity and the character of the area -

The proposed building would be substantially higher than the existing single-storey building
but would be only marginally higher than the adjacent two-storey building, despite having
three-stories. It would be broadly comparable with other flat developments that have recently
been permitted in this area and it is considered that it would not be over-dominant in the
street scene. The design and proposed materials are considered to be acceptable and the
proposal maintains an active frontage at ground-floor level. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would not adversely affect visual amenity or the character of the area.

Impact upon residential amenity -

The site is adjoined by residential properties on three sides, with residential accommodation
at 8a Queens Road to the west, a residential flat at 12 Queens Road to the east, a bungalow
- 14 Queens Road to the north-east and the rear gardens of 1 and 2 Church Path to the
north. The proposed building would be significantly higher than the existing building and
would thus be more visible from the windows that face towards it in the side elevation of 8a

Pack Page 99
89



Queens Road. However, there would be a separation of approximately 9m between the two
buildings and it is considered that while there may be some loss of direct sunlight at certain
times when the sun is low, there would be little impact upon natural daylight or ventilation
overall and an adequate separation would be maintained to protect residential amenity at this
property. It is also considered that the proposed building would have an acceptable
relationship with the flat at 12 Queens Road and that the use of the flats is unlikely to create
disturbance to the occupants of this flat. It is considered that the separation and orientation of
the proposed building relative to the properties in Church Path is such that there would be
little impact upon the light, outlook and amenity of these properties. There would be some
additional overlooking of their rear gardens, but the arrangement would not be unusual for
the area. The residential property that would be most affected by the proposal is No.14
Queens Road, a bungalow that lies to the rear of 12 Queens Road. The outlook from the
front (south-facing) windows on this bungalow is dominated by the rear elevation of 12
Queens Road, which is not particularly attractive. The proposed building at No.10 would be
substantially taller than the existing building and would be much more visible from the closest
of the front facing windows but much less so from the other window. There would be a
separation of at least 5m from the nearest window to the closest corner of the building and it
is considered that whilst the outlook from this window would be affected, the relationship
would not be unacceptable and adequate spacing between the buildings would be retained.
The building could result in the loss of some direct sunlight at certain times to the closest
window and to the amenity area to the front of the property, but it is considered that any
impact upon residential amenity would not be so great as to warrant refusal of planning
permission on this ground.

Amenity of occupiers -

The internal layout of each unit is considered appropriate with each unit comfortably meeting
the nationally prescribed minimum space standards. This will make for a comfortable living
environment. It is noted that there is no outdoor amenity space provided to the units.
However, the additional space created over and above the minimum space standard will go
some way to addressing this. It is considered that they would provide a satisfactory living
environment in terms of light, outlook and natural ventilation.

The Head of Environmental Health has raised some concern regarding the potential for noise
and disturbance from the neighbouring hot food takeaway, including its customers entering
and leaving the premises, and the impact it could have on the future occupants of the
development. The planning permission for the takeaway stipulates opening hours of 09:30 to
23:00 hours Monday to Saturday, and 09:30 to 22:30 on Sundays. The permission also
allows a home delivery service, which increases the potential for nuisance further as this can
only be undertaken from the front of the premises. In addition, there is seating within, so
noise from raised voices and amplified music (if played) could all potentially impact on
amenity. Without adequate mitigation in place then there is an increased risk that once
occupied, noise from the takeaway activiies may cause disturbance to residents.
Environmental Health would therefore recommend that a condition requiring details of a
sound insulation scheme to be submitted for approval before commencement of works and
to be fully implanted to protect residents from noise arising from the takeaway. This would
also have the benefit of ensuring that the proposed residential use would not prejudice the
operation of the takeaway.

Environmental Health also recommend a condition requiring the submission and approval of
a site construction method statement that stipulates the measures to be employed to
minimise noise, vibration and dust from the works and also the standard condition regarding
Construction hours.

Pack Page 100
90



The objectors have raised the issue of potential ground contamination in respect of the
former use of the site as a garage. Environmental Health has responded that their records
indicate that the site was occupied by a Garage/Motor Engineers from at least the late 1960s
and then latterly a car show room. There may have been spillages of fuel oil on site over the
years but as the site is to be cleared this should be removed as part of the demolition and
redevelopment process. The proposal does not make any provision for private gardens or
landscaping so the site will effectively be capped by hardstanding. Environmental Health
considers that the risks are therefore minimal and that no special measures are required.

Highway Considerations -

The proposal is for the demolition of an existing retail premises and its replacement with the
construction of a new residential development comprising 3 x one-bedroom flats and 1 x two-
bedroom flat. The Council's parking standard as set out in the Car and Cycle Parking
Standards Supplementary Planning Document would require 1 parking space for each one-
bedroom flat and two parking spaces for a two bedroom property. In this location with good
accessibility to public transport and to local shops and facilities and with appeal history
nearby which prejudices one space for a flat, the Transportation Strategy Officer advises
that he considers 4 parking spaces would be sufficient for this development. He considers
that visitors to the development could be expected to use existing public parking facilities in
the area. The proposal would require a small reduction in the length of the parking bay
outside the premises but this would not result in a significant loss of provision in the area.

A cycle store for 4 cycles is included which does meet our standard.

The application includes a site layout which shows vehicular access through the building to
the rear where there are 4 parking spaces of suitable dimensions (2.4m x 4.8m). The
Transportation Strategy Officer is concerned that while there is a 6m space between the
front of the parking spaces and the main part of the building there are structural walls
projecting into this space which will make accessing parking spaces a problem and may
make it impossible to turn in this area. Having vehicles reversing out onto the highway would
not be acceptable in this busy area. In consequence, he considers that the proposals would
not provide adequate facilities for parking and turning within the site and that the proposal is
contrary to Policy CP16

A refuse store is shown on the site layout which is within the maximum 25m haul distance for
collection from Queens Road.

For the proposed vehicular access through the building which measures over the minimum
3.2m there will need to be a restriction on the opening of windows from the ground floor flat.
The application includes confirmation that there is a suitable sight line for vehicles emerging
onto the highway. The existing frontage of the property onto the highway has a dropped kerb
across the entire frontage. For this development the footway and kerb will need to be
reinstated to its full height other than where the new vehicular access is planned. Informative
to be included to advise that planning consent does not authorise the applicant, or their
agents, to work within the public highway.

In view of the cramped nature of the site and the busy nature of this neighbourhood the
Transportation Strategy Officer recommends that there should be a Condition requiring the
submission of a Construction Method Statement (CMS)which makes adequate provision for
construction contractors staff parking on site and suitably considers arrangements for
servicing and delivery and storage of materials that will not cause an adverse impact on the

Pack Page 101
91



highway access to the development. The CMS should also consider facilities that will be
required to enable wheel washing of delivery vehicles and to reduce the likelihood of mud
and debris onto the highway and surrounding roads.

The Transportation Strategy Officer considers that the proposed development is not
expected to generate more multi-modal trips than the existing use therefore an transport
contribution pursuant to the Planning Contributions: Transport Supplementary Planning
Document is not required.

Impact upon the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

The Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy is now in place. This comprises two elements. Firstly the provision of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) at Hawley Meadows in order to divert
additional recreational pressure away from the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area (TBHSPA) and secondly the provision of a range of-Strategic Access Management and
Monitoring Measures to avoid displacing visitors from one part of the TBHSPA to another
and to minimize the impact of visitors on the TBHSPA. A contribution of £17453 (£15730
SANG and £1723) is required to mitigate the impact of the proposal on the TBHSPA. At the
time of writing, a satisfactory Unilateral Undertaking has not been completed to secure this
contribution. Accordingly, the development does not provide mitigation for its impact on the
TBHSPA and is considered to be contrary to Policy CP13.

Provision of Public Open Space

No open space is provided in the development within the terms of saved policy OR4, but this
is a circumstance where a contribution towards off-site provision by way of a planning
obligation would be appropriate. The Parks Development Officer has identified a need for a
financial contribution of £6475 to fund off-site works at Queens Road Recreation Ground.
This contribution would be secured by a Unilateral Undertaking. However, no such
Undertaking has been received at the time of writing and it is considered that the proposal
fails to comply Policies OR4 and OR4.1 .

Drainage -

Policy CP4 requires that developments including buildings and car parks incorporate
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems. The existing building occupies the majority of the
existing site and although the application contains no specific information regarding this, it
appears that this could be dealt with by means of a planning condition.

Energy Efficiency -

Policy CP3 requires that all new residential developments meet the requirements of Code
Level 4 of the Code For Sustainable Homes. However, following the Royal Assent of the
Deregulation Bill 2015 (26 March 2015) the government's current policy position is that
planning permissions should not be granted requiring or subject to conditions requiring,
compliance with any technical housing standards for example the Code for Sustainable
Homes, other than for those areas where authorities have existing policies. In Rushmoor's
case this means that we can require energy performance in accordance with Code Level 4
as set out in policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy. Such measures may be secured by
way of condition and on this basis no objection is raised to the proposal in terms of policy
CPs3.

Pack Page 102
92



Other Matters -

The petition refers to a lack of detail in some of the submitted plans. However, these plans
include an elevation for the sides and rear of the building, with the front elevation also
depicting the adjoining buildings. The site survey drawing shows an existing telephone pole
in the yard to the rear of the building and the proposed ground floor and parking plan show
that it is not to be retained. This pole supports a telephone connection to No.14 Queens
Road and it would be a matter for the developer and the telecomm provider to ensure that
the connection is maintained. No external means of escape is shown for the flats because
none is proposed - this is a matter that would be dealt with under the Building Regulations,
but it is understood that the main staircase could provide a satisfactory means of escape if
constructed to the correct standard.

The occupiers of 8 Queens Road have raised objection to the proposal on the grounds that
the new building would block direct sunlight from reaching some solar panels that they have
recently installed on a south-facing roof slope of a single storey section of their building. It is
possible that the proposed building could have some impact on direct sunlight reaching the
panels and hence the ability to generate electricity, but this would require a detailed analysis
to determine and goes beyond the scope of the current application. Like most other right-to-
light issues, this is essentially a private legal matter between the parties concerned.

Concern has also been raised that the roofing materials of the existing building contain
asbestos and the writer insists that this be dealt with by an authorised removal expert. This
falls within the remit of the Health and Safety Executive, who have the powers to ensure that
the materials are handled in the correct way.

In conclusion, whilst the proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle, and would
have an acceptable impact on the character of the area, would create a satisfactory living
environment for future occupiers and would have an acceptable impact on nearby residents,
it would not make satisfactory provision for the parking and turning of vehicles within the site
and fails to provide adequate mitigation for the impact upon the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area or provision of public open space.

FULL RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:

1 The proposal does not make sufficient provision for off-street car parking and turning
within the site and is therefore likely to result in dangerous reversing manoeuvres out
on to the highway, to on-street parking to the detriment of highway safety or to use of
road-side parking facilities intended for the use of customers of the nearby district
shopping centre. The proposal is contrary to Policy CP16 of the Rushmoor Core
Strategy and the Car and Cycle Parking Standards Supplementary Planning
Document.

2 The proposal fails to provide mitigation for the impact of the development on the
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in accordance with the Council's
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and is therefore contrary to Policy CP13 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy.

3 The proposed development fails to make provision for open space contrary to the
provisions of policy CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and "saved" policy OR4 of
the Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011.

Pack Page 103
93



Informatives

1 INFORMATIVE — The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pack Page 104
94






o
—T1 T

NENE
P

[¥] e |

¥ BAEL

FETE P Ee

= Ry = p o g

=
R T R

HHEYIA

Syl dgm RS ET

PEQ R SUSSND)

CIWERI BN

L L]

+

CoE

+
o i T

LN S

T B LR D R PALTY
s s RN FYSLFPRSS
e

96

Pack Page 106



97

T
=]
¥
'
M ]

i
B
¥
H
) f
i
HRIR
4 E
‘N

n

SERY

SIERE
Pack Pagé:167



wi i 1
¥ B £
P o)

o & ool

L L]
]

LA [ P ),

==

T Ty Ty o ] 8 0 e g g

o VR 3 A s 0 o g g v T g
U g ] o ) P T T T T T LT EE T PR ———————
] T T T e ——— T T ——
THE 7 W LIS o D] L VIS Vi
KYHE W IA
T
RO BN E
_——
i - - - - - - - - - - - I_-
o
I = - - - - - - - - - . eI
u| L
o
i R L
MOILYATTE LY MOLYATE HLHOM B3t
i - - - - - - - - - - || — = = = = = -
- :
| - - - - - - -
S AETh
[2n ] S T O 0 RN R

98

Pack Page 108



WHEFE

FE -]

w8 oo

141k
L

s

=E | Er ] e

i g g ] e g e

[ s

HEO P TS U 00 (U i S BN T )

WHE W N
T

W d HOO T OHCO3E

(J

Saay

I
e
e il

UhE i s
F LNl

UET T —

Wy d HOOM LEH|4

LT £ pog
| POE
Ut 8 J s Sl
Z IV -
—— |
ST ]
)
)
=k
ueg
IFH
=
- Ubre By ) ke g
£ L¥14
peg A S
—— —

M Id HOO T ONNCED

L

ubs 0ip ) wbs oy
WAl

Buiar cipms
14 LAY

W

HIHE

= e

IROUT

YL TS P

Pack Page 109

99



Development Management Committee Item 9
27th April 2016 Report No.PLN1613
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Sarita Jones
Application No. 15/00925/FULPP
Date Valid 15th April 2016
Expiry date of 9th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Redevelopment of existing 'surplus' car park to provide 10
apartments (4 one bed and 6 two bedroom) with associated car and
cycle parking, landscaping, amenity space, bin storage and
vehicular access from Sarah Way.

Address Land Off Sarah Way, To The Rear Of 49-51 Victoria Road
Farnborough Hampshire

Ward Empress

Applicant Farnborough JV LP

Agent Mr James Lloyd

Recommendation GRANT subject to s106 Unilateral Undertaking

The Development Management committee considered this application at its meeting on 30
March 2016 when it was resolved that: subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement
under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by 18 April 2016 to secure financial
contributions towards SPA mitigation and open space, the Head of Planning in consultation
with the Chairman be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the conditions and
informatives as set out in the report.

It was further resolved that, in the event that a satisfactory s106 Agreement was not received
by 18 April 2016 the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to
refuse planning permission on the grounds that the proposal fails to make provision for open
space contrary to the provisions of policy CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and "saved"
policy OR4 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011 and to provide mitigation for the
impact of the development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in
accordance with the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy contrary to Policy CP13 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

In deducing title as part of the legal agreement process, a technical issue has arisen
concerning the lack of appropriate notice being served on all owners of the site. This has

Pack Page 110
100



resulted in the application being made invalid. An amended application form has now been
received with the applicants’ details updated to include all owners of the land. The
application remains as previously approved in principle, however it is considered appropriate
to re-advertise the application given the change of applicant. Authority is therefore sought
from the committee to grant planning permission in similar terms to the resolution of 30
March 2016.

Description

This irregular shaped site is located to the rear of York House 49-51 Victoria Road, a four
storey former office building which has recently been converted into flats. The application
site comprises the residual office parking spaces which were left following the residential
conversion of the frontage building. The site is generally level. The site has two existing
vehicular access points, both of which are from the parking area of York House which is
entered from Sarah Way, an adopted public highway to the south. There are no trees of
amenity value within the site. 35 Clockhouse Road, a detached single storey dwelling, lies to
the north as does one of the car parking areas serving Pipers Patch, a cul-de-sac of flats
which takes access from Clockhouse Road. The existing boundary treatment between the
site and these properties consists of a variety of fencing, parts of which require attention. 39
Clockhouse Road, a detached bungalow, and 7a Elmgrove Road, one half of a pair of semi-
detached houses lie to the west. There are appears to be a strip of unclaimed land between
the application site and these properties. York House 49-51 Victoria Road lies to the south
and contains 23 flats with 23 parking spaces to the rear taking access from Sarah Way. 13-
27 Pipers Patch lie to the east and consists of a three storey block of flats. On-street parking
controls are in operation in Elmgrove Road and Clockhouse Road.  Sarah Way also
provides access to the car parking areas to the rear of 43-45, 55 and 61-65 Victoria Road, all
of which are currently in office use (see reference below to 61-65 Victoria Road).

In July 1988 planning permission, RSH4848/1, was granted for the demolition of the existing
buildings and erection of a four storey office building with car parking to the rear on land at
49-53 Victoria Road. This was implemented and is the building now known as York House,
49-51 Victoria Road. In March 2014 planning permission, 14/00029/COUPP, was granted
for the change of use of this building from office use (Class B1a) to residential use (Class
C3) to comprise 21 one bed and 2 two bed flats with associated car and cycle parking and
refuse facilities. This permission has been implemented. This development would have
been permitted development subject to a prior approval process but required permission as a
result of the Habitats Regulations 2010 in relation to the impact on the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area. This building and its car parking spaces are also owned by the
applicant.

In January 2015 planning permission 14/00651/FULPP, was granted for the erection of third-
floor extension and three-storey rear extension; and conversion of existing and new upper
floors into 10 x 2 bedroom flats, with retention of 266m2 of B1(a) office floorspace at ground
floor at 61-65 Victoria Road. This permission is extant but has not been implemented at time
of writing.

As originally submitted the proposal was for 11 apartments (1 studio, 5 one bed flats and 5
two bedroom flats). However concerns about internal space standards resulted in the
applicant amending the internal layout to address this concern. The current proposal
therefore seeks permission to erect a part single part three storey building with a pitched roof
containing of 10 apartments (4 one bed flats and 6 two bedroom flats) with associated car
and cycle parking, landscaping, amenity space, bin storage taking vehicular access from

Pack Page 111
101



Sarah Way. The building would have its front elevation facing Sarah Way. Separation
distances of some 4.5 metres are retained between the building and the common boundaries
with 39 Clockhouse Road and 7a Elmgrove Road to the west, some 2.5 metres to the
common boundary with 13-27 Pipers Patch, some 5 metres to the common boundary with 35
Clockhouse Road to the north and between 7.5 and 9.5 metres from the parking area that
serves York House. Windows in the side elevations above ground levels are shown to be
high level and clear glazed. The building would have pitched roofs with flat central areas.
The general height of the main part of the development is approximately 11.8 metres with
gabled details to the front and rear elevations. The single storey element is on the western
side of the building and has a maximum ridge height of some 4.5 metres. The proposed
materials include a mixture of brickwork panels, render, metal cladding, sliding timber
screens, UPVc windows and clay roof tiles. The existing vehicular entrance points from
Sarah Way will be retained leading to a parking area of 11 spaces at the rear. An enclosed
communal bin store is proposed to the west of the building with secure cycle storage (8
hoops to accommodate 16 cycles) proposed to the east of the building. Communal amenity
space is proposed to the rear of the building with "Juliet" balconies proposed to the front and
rear of the majority of the first and second floor flats.

The application is supported by a design and access statement, a transport statement, a
flood risk assessment including a conceptual drainage strategy, a tree report comprising a
tree survey and constraint advice and an ecological appraisal.

Consultee Responses

Transportation Strategy Officer raises no objection to the proposal

Planning Policy raises no objection to the proposal.

Community - Contracts raises no objection to the proposal.

Manager

Parks Development Officer raises no objection to the proposal subject to a

financial contribution towards open space.

Ecologist Officer raises no objection to the proposal subject to the
recommendations in the ecological report being
implemented in full.

Hampshire Fire & Rescue advises that the development should be undertaken in

Service accordance with Approved Document B5 of the
Building Regulations and section 12 of the Hampshire
Act 1983. Comments are also made in relation to
access for high reach appliances, water supplies,
sprinklers, fire fighting and the environment and timber
framed buildings.

Environmental Health raises no objection subject to an hours of construction
condition.
Surface Water Drainage has no comment to make on the application.

Consultations

TAG raises no objection to the proposal.

Pack Page 112
102



Arboricultural Officer no adverse comments received

Thames Water raises no objection to the proposal on grounds of
sewerage infrastructure capacity. It recommends the
imposition of a condition to secure a piling method
statement to safeguard the sewerage infrastructure. It
confirms that it is the developer's responsibility to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses
or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is
recommended that the applicant should ensure that
storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the
receiving public network through on or off site storage.
When it is proposed to connect to a combined public
sewer, the site drainage should be separate and
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary.
Connections are not permitted for the removal of
groundwater. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from
Thames Water Developer Services will be required.

Neighbours notified

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 78 individual letters of
notification were sent to addressed in Clockhouse Road Elm Grove Road and Victoria Road,

Neighbour comments

Representations have been received from 43 Victoria Road and 16, 17 and 20 York House
49 Victoria Road raising the following concerns:

- it would be better if the proposal followed the type of development in neighbouring
Clockhouse Road rather than yet more flats;

- potential for loss of privacy as a result of increased overlooking;

- loss of visitor parking to York House;

- the area has lots of double and single lines and the increase in flats with a limited
number of parking spaces will cause issues;

- impact from construction vehicles on the safe operation of access and parking into the
site and that associated with the existing flats at York House;

- potential impact on adjoining residents from the amount of dust and dirt associated
with the construction process; and

- potential damage to residents vehicles by construction vehicles.

A representation has been received from a resident of EIm Grove Road who advises that
whilst the proposal is generally a positive development plan, he enquires how unauthorised
parking will be handled, given existing parking restrictions in the area. He comments that he
has never seen any vehicle issued with a PCN on Sarah Way or the business parking areas
and notes that traffic wardens only ever issue parking tickets along the vicinity of EIm Grove
Road.

Policy and determining issues

The application site is located within the built up area of Farnborough to the north of

Pack Page 113
103



Farnborough town centre. As such Policies SS1 (The Spatial Strategy), CP1 (Sustainable
Development Principles), CP2 (Design and Heritage), CP3 (Renewable Energy and
Sustainable Construction), CP4 (Surface Water Flooding), CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and
Housing Mix), CP8 (Supporting Economic Development), CP10 (Infrastructure Provision),
CP12 (Open Space, Sport and Recreation), CP13 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area), CP15 (Biodiversity), CP16 (Reducing and Managing Travel Demand) and CP17
(Investing in Transport) of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and "saved" Local Plan Policies
ENV16 (Development Characteristics), ENV19 (New Landscaping Requirements), ENV41-44
(Flood Risk), ENV48, ENV49, ENV50 and ENV51 (Environmental Pollution and Noise), H14
(amenity space), TR10 (Contributions for Local Transport Infrastructure), and OR4/OR4.1
(Open Space) are relevant to the consideration of this proposal. The Council's adopted
planning documents (SPD) on 'Housing Density and Design' (May 2006), 'Planning
Contributions - Transport' 2008; and 'Car and Cycle Parking Standards', 2012, the Rushmoor
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as
updated July 2014 and the advice contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework/Planning Practice Guidance are also relevant.

The main determining issues are the principle of development, the effect on the character of
the area, the impact on neighbours, the living environment created, flood risk and drainage
issues, highway considerations, open space provision, nature conservation and renewable
energy and construction.

Commentary
The principle of development

The site is located within the defined built up area. Planning Policy has confirmed that there
are no site specific policies related to this area. Subsequently, the principle of introducing
residential development in this location is acceptable. Having regard to this there is no
objection in principle to residential redevelopment of the site subject to consideration of the
following matters.

The effect on the character of the area

As existing the site is surrounded by existing development, with purpose built housing to the
north, east and west with offices/converted offices to the south. The site is seen in the
context of existing development with limited views seen from Elmgrove Road and
Clockhouse Road. As such the site makes little visual contribution to the surrounding street
scenes. Due to the height of development on Victoria Road no views are seen of the site
from Victoria Road. As development of surrounding land has taken place on a piecemeal
basis the visual character of the area is eclectic with buildings of varying heights, designs
and use of materials. The application site is different to the typical pattern of development in
the area in that does not comprise conventional frontage development.

It is recognised that the proposed development will have a different impact on the character
of the area in terms of both built form and land use particularly by virtue of the introduction of
a three storey element, accommodation within the roofspace and the overall height.
However given its location surrounded by existing development it is not considered to have a
detrimental impact on the character of the area. It reflects the objectives set out in the NPPF
to make best use of brownfield land in sustainable locations and brings vacant land back into
beneficial use. The increase in height and amount of development is different but is not
considered to be unacceptable in this location. Having regard to the above no objection is
raised to the proposal in visual amenity terms.

Pack Page 114
104



The impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact on 35 Clockhouse Road, this property is to the north of the
application site and comprises a bungalow and its garden. There is established Leyland
Cypress evergreen screening along the common boundary with the application site which is
in excess of 6.5 metres in height. It is acknowledged that the upper floors of the proposed
building will be visible from this property and there will be a degree of overlooking and
overshadowing to the lower part of the rear garden. However given a minimum separation
distance of just under 25 metres being retained, the boundary screening within the control of
35 Clockhouse Road and the general pattern of existing building relationships in the area, no
material overbearing or overshadowing impacts nor a material loss of privacy are considered
to result.

39 Clockhouse Road is a detached bungalow to the west of the application site. The building
has been designed such that the closest part of the building to this property is single storey
with this element having a height of some 4.5 metres with a separation distance of some 4.5
metres to the site boundary. The building then increases in height to 3 storey retaining a
separation of distance of some 9 metres. This means that given the orientation of
development there is potential for some overshadowing impact in the first half of the morning.
However given the single storey design of the building closest to this property and the
separation distances retained, this impact is not considered to be materially harmful such
that permission should be refused on this basis. Furthermore it is not considered that the
proposal would result in unacceptable overbearing impact. Given the siting of the building
the windows in the rear elevation of the building would result in indirect overlooking of the
front of 39 Clockhouse Road. This is not considered to result in a material loss of privacy.
High level windows are proposed at second floor level in the side (west) elevation. They
have the potential to directly overlook 39 Clockhouse Road. These windows are shown to
serve a bedroom and kitchen/living room with a minimum cill height of 1.7 metres from floor
level. It is therefore considered that an appropriate level of occupational privacy would be
retained and no objection is raised to the proposal in this regard. The proposed
refuse/recycling enclosure is located between the proposed building and the boundary with
39 Clockhouse Road. This is would be 2 metres high and of timber construction. Having
regard to existing boundary fencing and the height of the enclosure these factors are
considered to be sufficient to screen the storage area from view and as such no objection is
raised to the proposal in this regard.

13-27 Pipers Patch lies to the east of the proposed development. This comprises a three
storey block of flats. The primary windows in this building face to the front and rear with
secondary windows in the side elevation at ground, first and second floor levels. Communal
amenity space lies to the north of the building with individual front garden areas to the south.
This site benefits from established landscaping.  Four high level windows are proposed in
first and second floor side elevations (two per floor) to serve bedrooms at second floor and
secondary bedroom windows at first floor which have the potential to directly overlook these
adjoining residents. Information has been submitted in respect of the second floor windows
which demonstrate that with a minimum cill height of 1.7 metres from floor level, an
appropriate level of occupational privacy would be retained. In the absence of information
relating to the cill height of the first floor windows it is considered appropriate to impose a
condition seeking the use of obscure glazing in these windows. Subject to this no material
loss of privacy is considered to result from this proposal. Given the location of 13-27 Pipers
Patch to the east of the site, there is the potential for a degree of overshadowing in the latter
part of the day. However given the separation distance retained, the secondary nature of the
windows in the existing flats (serving bedrooms and living rooms), the location of Lawson

Pack Page 115
105



Cypress and Yew trees adjacent to the common boundary, the semi-public nature of front
gardens and the siting of the proposed building, no material overshadowing impacts are
considered to result. Furthermore it is not considered that the proposal would result in
unacceptable overbearing impacts.

With regard to the occupiers of York House, it is noted that, in terms of direct overlooking, a
separation distance in excess of 40 metres will be retained between the front elevation of the
proposed development and the rear elevation of York House. The proposed separation
distance is considered to be sufficient to retain appropriate levels of privacy for these
occupiers and as such no material loss of privacy to these occupiers is considered to result.
Given the orientation of the development and the separation distances proposed, no material
overshadowing or overbearing impacts are considered to result from the proposal. The
proposed car parking area for the development is proposed adjacent to the parking spaces
that serves York House. This relationship is considered to be acceptable.

The living environment created

In space terms the proposed dwellings would provide an acceptable living environment for its
future occupants. The development benefits from communal amenity space to the rear with
the majority of the flats having juliet balconies. Having regard to the proximity of the Queen
Elizabeth Park and the amenity space provided for flat residents at Pipers Patch to the east,
it is considered that an acceptable level of usable amenity space commensurate with the
type of development proposed would be provided. Communal refuse/recycling bin and cycle
storage would be provided which may be secured by way of condition. Subject to the
imposition of this condition, it is considered that the proposal would create a satisfactory
living environment for future residents and is acceptable.

Flood risk and drainage issues

Policy CP4 relates to surface water flooding and seeks details of sustainable drainage
systems that will be incorporated into the development. It is noted that there are no
permeable areas within the existing site. The introduction of garden/landscaped areas and
the use of permeable hard surfaces will be a positive benefit to surface water drainage.
Notwithstanding this the application is supported by an outline SUDS drainage design. This
information has been considered in detail by Hampshire County Council, in its role as Lead
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and Thames Water. The LLFA and Thames Water raise no
objection to the submitted information. Furthermore Thames Water raise no objection to the
proposal in terms of sewerage infrastructure. Whilst feasible SUDS techniques for the site
have been provided within the Flood Risk Assessment, no detailed SUDS strategy has been
submitted. These details may be secured by way of condition. Subject to the imposition of
a condition as set out above no objection is raised to the proposal in terms of policy CP4.

Highway considerations

The proposal is for a development of 10 apartments which comprise of 4 x one bedroom flats
and 6 x two bedroom flats on a site to the rear of York House. The proposed site layout
shows 11 car parking spaces to serve the development. The Council's Transportation
Strategy Officer has been consulted on this application. In view of the relatively accessible
location of the development in proximity to the town centre and to the rail station he is
satisfied that this level of parking provision is acceptable. Further to this while our full
parking standard would require 3 visitors parking spaces it is his view that it can be
reasonably expected that visitors to this site could park in town centre car parks. The site
layout shows the 11 parking spaces the space marked N10 is not 6m in length which would

Pack Page 116
106



normally be needed to be accessible in the orientation shown however as it is adjacent a
hatched area in front of the cycle store entrance he is satisfied that this hatched area does
give the manoeuvring space that is required. The location of the refuse store appears to be
accessible from the point of collection while the swept path tracking diagram uses a slightly
different site layout he is satisfied that this demonstrates how a refuse freighter will turn at
the end of Sarah Way to access the store from within 256m. Cycle parking provision is
considered to be acceptable.

The Transportation Strategy Officer is also satisfied that as there is no increase in multi
modal trips arising from the development when compared to the former use of this site, there
is no requirement for a financial contribution in respect of the Council's SPD on Planning
Contributions - Transport. Subject to the imposition of conditions as set out above, no
objection is raised to the proposal on highway grounds.

Open space provision

The Local Plan seeks to ensure that adequate open space provision is made to cater for
future residents in connection with new residential developments. Policies OR4 and OR4.1
allow provision to be made on the site, or in appropriate circumstances a contribution to be
made towards upgrading facilities nearby. The policy does not set a threshold of a particular
number of dwellings or size of site above which the provision is required.

The site is not big enough to accommodate anything other than the development proposed
and any associated garden/private amenity space. This is a circumstance where a
contribution towards off-site provision, in this case for the improvement of the car park,
footpaths and playground at Queen Elizabeth Park and sport pitches at Farnborough Gate
sports complex by way of a planning obligation may be appropriate. The applicant is in the
process of completing the necessary agreement and subject to this no objection is raised to
the proposal within the terms of Policy OR4.

Nature conservation

The Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy is now in place. This comprises two elements - a Suitable Alternative
Natural Greenspace (SANG) at Hawley Meadows/Blackwater Park to divert additional
recreational pressure away from the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
(TBHSPA) and a range of Strategic Access Management and Monitoring Measures to avoid
displacing visitors from one part of the TBHSPA to another and to minimize the impact of
visitors on the TBHSPA. The proposal meets the criteria against which requests to allocate
capacity at Hawley Meadows/Blackwater Park SANG will be considered. In accordance with
the strategy the applicant has agreed to make the requisite financial contribution. The
applicant is in the process of completing the necessary agreement and subject to this no
objection is raised to the proposal in terms of its impact on the TBHSPA having regard to the
above strategy and development plan policy.

Renewable energy and construction.

Following the Royal Assent of the Deregulation Bill 2015 (26 March 2015) the government's
current policy position is that planning permissions should not be granted requiring or subject
to conditions requiring, compliance with any technical housing standards for example the
Code for Sustainable Homes, other than for those areas where authorities have existing
policies. In Rushmoor's case this means that we can require energy performance in
accordance with Code Level 4 as set out in policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

Pack Page 117
107



Such measures may be secured by way of condition and on this basis no objection is raised
to the proposal in terms of policy CP3.

Conclusion

In conclusion the proposal is acceptable in principle. It would have an acceptable impact on
the character of the area, it will create a satisfactory living environment for future occupiers,
have an acceptable impact on adjoining non-residential and residential occupiers and meet
the functional requirements of the development. The proposal is acceptable in highway
terms, it makes satisfactory provision for public open space and an appropriate contribution
towards SPA mitigation measures and secures appropriate energy efficiency measures. It
complies with development plan policies, the Council's adopted Rushmoor Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and the National
Planning Policy Framework/Planning Practice Guidance and is recommended for approval.

FULL RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that subject to no views being received by 9 May 2016 in response to the
site notice or advertisement relating to this proposal not previously considered and of the
completion of a satisfactory Agreement under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 by 13 July 2016 to secure financial contributions towards SPA mitigation and open
space the Head of Planning in consultation with the Chairman be authorised to GRANT
planning permission subject to the following conditions and informatives:-

However, in the event that a satisfactory s106 Agreement is not received by 13 July 2016
2016 the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to refuse
planning permission on the grounds that the proposal fails to make provision for open space
contrary to the provisions of policy CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and "saved" policy
ORA4 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011 and to provide mitigation for the impact
of the development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in accordance with
the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy contrary to Policy CP13 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of one year
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to reflect
the objectives of the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as amended July 2014 and to accord with the
resolution of Rushmoor's Cabinet on 17 June 2014 in respect of Planning Report no
PLN1420.

2 Notwithstanding any details submitted with the application, no works shall start on site
until @ schedule and/or samples of the external materials to be used in the
development have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The Development shall be completed and retained in accordance with the
details so approved.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance.”

3 No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or samples of surfacing materials,
including those to access driveways/parking areas to be used in the development

Pack Page 118
108



have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed and retained in accordance with the details so
approved

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance and drainage arrangements.*

The development shall be completed and retained in accordance with the levels
shown on the approved plans.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory form of development in relation to neighbouring
property.*

The building shall not be occupied until details of all screen and boundary walls,
fences, hedges or other means of enclosure have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be completed prior to
first occupation and thereafter retained in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring property.*

Construction or demolition work of any sort within the area covered by the application
shall only take place between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays and
0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

No works shall start on site until a construction method statement has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall include:

i) a programme of construction work;

ii) the provision of facilities for contractor parking;

iii) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works;

iv) access and egress for plant and deliveries;

V) protection of pedestrian routes and boundaries with adjoining land/buildings
during construction;

vii)  location of temporary site buildings, site compounds, construction materials and
plant storage areas;

vii)  controls over dust, noise and vibration during the construction period; and

viii)  provision for storage, collection and disposal of rubbish from the development
during the construction period

Construction shall only take place in accordance with the approved method statement.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring, to prevent pollution and to prevent
adverse impact on highway conditions in the vicinity.*

The landscaping scheme as shown on drawing number L800 rev P3 shall be
implemented in full prior to the first occupation of any part of the development or the
first available planting season whichever is the sooner. Any tree/shrub removed,
dying or becoming seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by
trees/shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

Pack Page 119
109



Reason - To ensure the development makes an adequate contribution to visual
amenity and in the interests of biodiversity

9 No dwelling shall be occupied until the off-street parking facilities shown on the
approved plans relevant to that dwelling have been completed and made ready for
use by the occupiers. The parking facilities shall be thereafter retained solely for
parking purposes (to be used by the occupiers of, and visitors to, the development)
and, in the interests of clarity, not used for the storage of caravans, boats or trailers .

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of adequate off-street parking

10 No part of the development hereby approved shall be used or occupied until the
means of vehicular access onto Sarah Way has been made available for use.

Reason - To ensure adequate means of access is available to the development.

11 In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or materials which suggest potential or
actual contamination are revealed at any time during implementation of the approved
development it must be reported, in writing, immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. A competent person must undertake a risk assessment and assess the
level and extent of the problem and, where necessary, prepare a report identifying
remedial action which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the measures are implemented. Following completion of
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be
prepared and is subject to approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention

12 Prior to the commencement of development, and notwithstanding any details
submitted with the application, a detailed Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS)
strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to the first
occupation of that part of the development to which they relate and retained in
perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy

13 Prior to the commencement of development, and notwithstanding any details
submitted with the application, details of measures to achieve the energy performance
standards in accordance with Code Level 4 for Sustainable Homes or equivalent shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details
as may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to the first occupation of the plot
to which they relate and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy

14 Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 9 above, the parking spaces shown on the
approved plans shall be provided in accordance with a plan which shows car parking
spaces allocated to individual properties which shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval prior to first occupation of the development and once
approved shall be retained as such.

Pack Page 120
110



15

16

17

18

Reason - To safeguard residential amenity and ensure the provision and availability of
adequate off-street parking.

No works shall start on site until details of communal aerial/satellite facilities for the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved system shall then be installed and made operational before
the relevant dwellings are occupied. *

Reason - In the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

The refuse and cycle storage areas as shown on the approved plans shall be provided
prior to the occupation of any part of the development and thereafter retained for their
designated purpose.

Reason - To promote sustainable transport choices and to meet the functional
requirements of the development.

The secondary bedroom windows in the side elevation serving flats 6 and 7 shall be
completed in obscure glazing and thereafter retained.

Reason — To safeguard an appropriate level of privacy to adjoining residents at Pipers
Patch

The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings - 4401_A 1522 P4, L523 P3, L530_P6, L531_P5, L100 rev PS5,
L800 rev P3 and A368 rev A

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted

Informatives

INFORMATIVE — The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because the proposal would have an acceptable impact on the character of the area.
It has been satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal that it will create a
satisfactory living environment for future occupiers, have an acceptable impact on
adjoining non-residential occupiers and meet the functional requirements of the
development. The proposal is acceptable in highway terms, it makes satisfactory
provision for public open space and an appropriate contribution towards SPA
mitigation measures. As such it complies with development plan policies, the
Council's adopted SPDs on Car and Cycle Parking Standards and Planning
Contributions - Transport and The Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and the National Planning
Policy Framework/Planning Practice Guidance. It is therefore considered that subject
to compliance with the attached conditions, and taking into account all other material
planning considerations, including the provisions of the development plan, the

Pack Page 121

111



proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a consideration of whether the
decision to grant permission is compatible with the Human Rights Act 1998.

3 INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These conditions require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Development started, carried out or occupied without first meeting the
requirements of these conditions is effectively development carried out WITHOUT
PLANNING PERMISSION. The Council will consider the expediency of taking
enforcement action against any such development and may refer to any such breach
of planning control when responding to local searches. Submissions seeking to
discharge conditions or requests for confirmation that conditions have been complied
with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

4 INFORMATIVE - This permission is subject to a planning obligation under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

5 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is recommended to achieve maximum energy
efficiency and reduction of Carbon Dioxide emissions by: a) ensuring the design and
materials to be used in the construction of the building are consistent with these aims;
and b)using renewable energy sources for the production of electricity and heat using
efficient and technologically advanced equipment for the production of electricity and
heat.

6 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to follow good practice in the removal of the
existing hardstanding on site including the re-use of all material arising from
demolition as part of the redevelopment wherever practicable. Please contact Les
Murrell, Strategy Co-ordinator (Sustainability) at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252
398538 for further information.

7 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to contact the Recycling and Waste
Management section at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398164 with regard to
providing bins for refuse and recycling. The bins should be: 1) provided prior to
the occupation of the properties; 2) compatible with the Council's collection
vehicles, colour scheme and specifications 3) appropriate for the number of
occupants they serve; 4) fit into the development's bin storage facilities.

8 INFORMATIVE - The planning permission hereby granted does not authorise the
applicant, or his agents, to construct a new/altered access to, or other work within, the
public highway. A separate consent for works within the highway must first be
obtained from the highway authority who may be contacted at the following address:-
Hampshire County Council Highways Sub Unit, M3 Motorway Compound, Hook,
Hampshire, RG27 9AA.

9 INFORMATIVE - Measures should be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the
site during construction works being deposited on the public highway throughout the
construction period.

10 INFORMATIVE - No materials produced as a result of site preparation, clearance, or
development should be burnt on site. Please contact the Head of Environmental
Health for advice

Pack Page 122
112



11

12

13

14

15

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that there may be a need to comply with the
requirements of the Party Wall (etc.) Act 1996 before starting works on site. The Party
Wall (etc.) Act is not enforced or administered by the Council but further information
can be obtained from the Chief Building Control Officer.

INFORMATIVE - It is a legal requirement to notify Thames Water of any proposed
connection to a public sewer. In many parts of its sewerage area, Thames Water
provides separate public sewers for foul water and surface water. Within these areas
a dwelling should have separate connections: a) to the public foul sewer to carry
waste from toilets, sinks and washing machines, etc, and b) to public surface water
sewer for rainwater from roofs and surface drains. Mis-connections can have serious
effects: i) If a foul sewage outlet is connected to a public surface water sewer this
may result in pollution of a watercourse. ii) If a surface water outlet is connected to a
public foul sewer, when a separate surface water system or soakaway exists, this may
cause overloading of the public foul sewer at times of heavy rain. This can lead to
sewer flooding of properties within the locality. In both instances it is an offence to
make the wrong connection. Thames Water can help identify the location of the
nearest appropriate public sewer and can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that during the demolition and construction
phases of the development measures should be employed to contain and minimise
dust emissions, to prevent their escape from the development site onto adjoining
properties. For further information, please contact the Head of Environmental Health.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is requested to bring the conditions attached to this
permission to the attention of all contractors working or delivering to the site, in
particular any relating to the permitted hours of construction and demolition; and
where practicable to have these conditions on display at the site entrance(s) for the
duration of the works.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant's attention is drawn to water efficiency and the new
national technical standard i.e. all new homes have to meet the mandatory national
standard set out in the Building Regulations (of 125 litres/person/day).

Pack Page 123

113



]

T0

v
35010 @a1s0™®

8t
]

42
32
T3
w
Tl o %

CLOCKHOUSE ROAD

as ans!

12

- L -
'S
a7 G Ll: 2 oo W g
- o
L = (=] - ™ I rB\ =
) = M e i
A o
(=} o
: &
o
3 T
=S
- o 41 et
3=
(=2}
-
o
[y o
[ 1]
B N
[\
gprA Y Q
Bank
303
Sub Sta
5
Fermleigh Court agt0 5! 4 65.2m
55
Shelter
67 61106 ROPP B
7| T \I'LC""—ORILPL
) 65.5m . 5
46
o5 48
ight. All Rights v

. Rushmoor Borough Gpuncil 100094

avAWHZHON

Pack Page 124

114



w ar eioenom Wl
o -

SNOLLYAZ T3 INIWGOT3A3A
TIVLIN3QIS3Y 03S0d0dd
=]

weuxiojenaq Aem yeses
P

UoSI9pUSYWeyasnoy

[ o] | K]
[l o s ||

I B
!
i

Pack Page 125

115



9d 0£S71 YV LOPY —53

— s e [t
€
- —
we 4 02n0se B ool L
SNYd IN3Wd013A30
IVIIN3QIS3Y 03S0d0¥d
o
!!Se.gonﬁggzm
s!.tan_.!‘tn(!egw
T —
igee iRl e g a0, e S
[moTeeo] @ T e o |
o] W] s d | |
reen] [ meanar | % |

i |

aral ]

sweu[T]

puaba 9y aweyos

X
A\ £

E

Pack Page 126

116



P s s

uosISpUSYWeyesnoy

Pack Page 127

117



Section D

The following applications are reported for INFORMATION purposes only. They relate to
applications, prior approvals, notifications, and consultations that have already been
determined by the Head of Planning and where necessary, in consultation with the
Chairman, in accordance with the Council’s adopted Scheme of Delegation.

If Members wish to have more details about the decision on any of the applications on
this list please contact David Stevens (01252 398738) or John W Thorne (01252 398791)
in advance of the Committee meeting.

Application No 15/00039/FUL Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: W G Property Ltd
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of a three storey building with associated parking comprising
flexible use of either A1, A2 or A3 (coffee shop) use on ground floor,
either A2 or B1 use and a one bedroom flat on first floor and two studio
flats on second floor.

Address 244 Farnborough Road Farnborough Hampshire
Application No 15/00961/FULPP Ward: Wellington
Applicant:

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 29 March 2016

Proposal: Interim infrastructure and engineering works to include provision of road,
temporary car park and drop off point

Address Zone | - School End Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons Road
Aldershot Hampshire

Pack Page 128
118



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

15/00968/FULPP Ward: Wellington
Grainger (Aldershot) Limited And Secretar

Permission Granted

22 March 2016

Infrastructure works associated with Corunna (Zone B) to provide access
and services.

Zone B - Coruna Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot
Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

15/00979/EDCPP Ward: St Mark's

Mr Dennis Smith
Development is Lawful

13 April 2016

Use of land to the rear of 64-66 Alexandra Road for parking for 4 and 4a
Netley Street and for informal parking of vehicles in association with 2
Netley Street

66 Alexandra Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6DD

16/00020/FULPP Ward: St Mark's

The Surrey Design Partnership Limited
Permission Granted

30 March 2016

External alterations to facilitate conversion of existing commercial
buildings to form 14 dwellinghouses (comprising 9 one-bedroom and 5
two-bedroom units) including associated car parking and bin storage.
Change of use of ancillary detached garage outbuilding building for self-
contained use as an office/storage unit (Use Class B1/B8) with retention
of associated tarmac area to be used as a yard and car park

77 Alexandra Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6BN

Pack Page 129
119



Application No 16/00021/FULPP Ward: Knellwood

Applicant: Mr A Grimes
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 23 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of five-bedroom detached house and detached double garage
(revised scheme to that approved with planning permission
14/00148/FULPP dated 23 April 2014)

Address Land Adjacent To 60 Farnborough Road Farnborough Hampshire
Application No 16/00061/TPOPP Ward: Empress

Applicant: Mr Simon Jones

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 21 March 2016

Proposal: Large Willow tree (T1 of TPO 308) in main car park re-pollard back to
previous pollard points

Address La Fosse House 129 Ship Lane Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8BH

Application No 16/00062/TPOPP Ward: Wellington

Applicant: Tesco

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 21 March 2016

Proposal: Six Horse Chestnuts (part of G3 of TPO 178) overhanging service yard,
crown reduce Southern canopy aspect by no more than 2 metres

Address Tesco Stores Ltd 5 Wellington Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU11
1SQ

Application No 16/00064/ADVPP Ward: North Town

Applicant: KFC UKI

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 07 April 2016

Proposal: Display a double sided internally illuminated pole sign (6 metres high) and
one freestanding non illuminated banner sign

Address Land Adjacent To 235 Ash Road Aldershot Hampshire

Pack Page 130
120



Application No 16/00065/COND Ward: Empress
Applicant: Block 88 Ltd

Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 22 March 2016

Proposal: Submission of details pursuant to Conditions 3 (External materials), 4
(sustainability) and 5 (SUDS) of planning permission 15/00663/FULPP

Address Development Land Adjacent To 10 Marrowbrook Close Farnborough
Hampshire

Application No 16/00073/CONDPP Ward: Manor Park

Applicant: Bugler Developments Ltd

Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 05 April 2016

Proposal: Submission of details to comply with condition 15 (contaminated land)
attached to planning permission 15/00194/FULPP dated 25 August 2015
for the erection of a part two, part three storey building to provide 29 one,
3 two and 2 three bedroom residential units (34 in total) for disabled or
vulnerable veterans with their dependents, shared common room, staff
accommodation, car and cycle parking, refuse storage, landscaping and
associated works

Address Chrismas Lodge Evelyn Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3QB
Application No 16/00076/FUL Ward: Empress

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Tony & Penny Cotugno

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 April 2016

Proposal: Change of use of property from dwelling house (C3) to small HMO (C4)

Address 19 Elm Grove Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7RB

Pack Page 131
121



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00078/COND Ward: Cherrywood

Digital Factory Ltd.
Conditions details approved

31 March 2016

Submission of details of the installation of proposed external air-
conditioning units pursuant to Condition No.1 of planning permission
15/00919/REVPP dated 4 January 2016

3 Chancerygate Way Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8FF

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00081/FULPP Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr C Stocchetti
Permission Granted

04 April 2016

Proposed side extension to estate agency

1 Bridge Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OHT

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 132

16/00093/TPO Ward: Empress

Mr Baier
Permission Granted

23 March 2016

Three Sweet Chestnuts (T3,T7 and T8 of TPO 462A) crown lift to no
more than 9 metres. One Sweet Chestnut (T9 of TPO 462A) crown lift to
no more than 9 metres and reduce over extended limb at top on right side
by 3 metres. One Scots Pine (T1 of TPO 462A) reduce crown lower
section by no more than 2 metres and thin upper crown by 20% and
reduce some branches by no more than 1 metre to shape the tree

24 St Michaels Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8NE

122



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00094/REVPP Ward: Cherrywood

Chancerygate (Frimley) Ltd
Permission Granted

01 April 2016

Variation of Condition No.2 of planning permission 14/00572/FUL dated
24 October 2014 to substitute amended plan for Unit 4 showing provision
of two additional roller shutter doors, an increase in height of existing
consented roller shutter doors adjoining, installation of new sectional door
adjacent to main pedestrian entrance of north-west (front elevation); and
relocation of fire exit door on north-east elevation

4 Chancerygate Way Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8FF

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00095/TPO Ward: Empress

Mr John Corkhill
Permission Granted

23 March 2016

One Sweet Chestnut (T10 of TPO 442) reduce back to the previous
reduction points the three lowest primary branches overhanging the rear
gardens of 3 and 5 St Michaels Road

5 St Michaels Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8ND

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00097/FUL Ward: Manor Park

Mr Bill James
Permission Granted

31 March 2016

Erection of detached early years classroom building with toilets and group
rooms

St Josephs Roman Catholic Primary School Bridge Road Aldershot
Hampshire GU11 3DD

Pack Page 133
123



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00100/FUL Ward: Cherrywood

Mr Malcolm Darby
Permission Granted

30 March 2016

Creation of hardstanding

Land Adjacent To 2 Beech Road Farnborough Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00103/REVPP Ward: Cherrywood

Chancerygate (Frimley) Ltd
Permission Granted

01 April 2016

Relaxation of Condition 16 of planning permission 14/00572/FUL dated
24 October 2015 to allow operation of ancillary Trade Counter within Unit
4 comprising no more than 10% of the floorspace of the Unit

4 Chancerygate Way Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8FF

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00108/FULPP Ward: Manor Park
Mr Ravinder Kumar

Permission Granted

07 April 2016

Change of use of ground floor residential accommodation to laundrette
(Sui Generis) with associated works and erection of single storey
side/rear extension

350 High Street Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4LU

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 134

16/00111/FULPP Ward: St Mark's

Mr Tim Sheen
Permission Granted

21 March 2016

Raising the roof and insertion of roof lights to facilitate a loft conversion

38 York Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6NF

124



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00115/FUL Ward: Rowhill

Mr Cosmin Basturea
Permission Granted

29 March 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension

36A York Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3JP

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00116/PDC Ward: Rowhill

Mr Cosmin Basturea
Development is Lawful

29 March 2016

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT: Proposed skylight to side elevation to facilitate loft
conversion to form habitable rooms

36A York Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3JP

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00118/ADVPP Ward: North Town

First Wessex
Permission Granted

08 April 2016

Display of 3 non-illuminated fascia signs

212 North Lane Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4TH

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00120/ADVPP Ward: St Mark's
Lamont Property Acquisition Ltd

Permission Granted

01 April 2016

Display nine non illuminated freestanding car park/direction signs
following removal of existing

Brennan House 2 Aerospace Boulevard Farnborough Hampshire
GU14 6XW

Pack Page 135
125



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00124/COU Ward: St Mark's

Miss Billy Jean Boswell
Permission Granted

07 April 2016

Flexible use as a tanning salon or as a mixed Class A1 /A3 use

Ground Floor 46 Camp Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6EP

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00125/TPOPP Ward: Empress

Fell Reynolds
Permission Granted

07 April 2016

Remedial works to trees T34,752,T53,T54 and T70 and the replacement
of T70 with a extra heavy standard Horse Chestnut tree as specified in
the submitted work schedule (all trees are part of TPO 422A)

Redrow Building Site O'Gorman Avenue Farnborough Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 136

16/00128/TPO Ward: Knellwood

Mr Jon Hewitt
Permission Granted

07 April 2016

One Lime (part of group G8 of TPO 431A) tree T1 on attached plan,
crown reduce by no more than 3 metres, reduce lateral spread by no
more than 3 metres, reduce lowest lateral limb to the east by no more
than 3.5 metres, crown lift by no more than 5 metres from ground level
and remove epicormic growth. One Lime (part of group G8 of TPO 431A)
tree T2 on attached plan, overall crown reduction by no more than 2
metres and crown lift to no more than 5 metres from ground level. One
Horse Chestnut (part of group G8 of TPO 431A) tree T3 on attached
plan, fell and replace with heavy standard Chestnut tree

43 Avenue Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7BJ

126



Application No 16/00131/TPO Ward: Knellwood

Applicant: Mr Eric Carpenter
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 12 April 2016

Proposal: One Cedar (T1 of TPO 287) section fell to ground level

Address 34 Avenue Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7BL

Application No 16/00136/FULPP Ward: Cove And Southwood
Applicant: Mr J Macdonald

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 24 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of an attached garage to side

Address 16 St Christophers Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OAH
Application No 16/00138/FULPP Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 29 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of part two storey and single storey rear extension and front
porch.

Address 4 Cunnington Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6PN

Application No 16/00139/FULPP Ward: Knellwood

Applicant: Mr GAVIN APPLEGATE

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 30 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of part ground floor, part two storey and part first floor rear
extension and new conservatory roof

Address Whitehaven 133 Sycamore Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6RE

Pack Page 137
127



Application No 16/00141/CONDPP Ward: Wellington

Applicant: KFC (GB) Ltd.
Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 14 April 2016

Proposal: Variation of details previously approved under condition 3 of planning
permission 14/00675/CONDPP to allow four windows installed on the
rear elevation of the building to be retained

Address 17 Union Street Aldershot Hampshire GU11 1EP
Application No 16/00145/TPO Ward: St Mark's
Applicant: Mrs Helen Rainsford

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 13 April 2016

Proposal: One Sycamore (T1 of TPO 240) crown thin by 10%, crown lift above
carriageway by no more than 5 metres and over car park by no more than
4 metres

Address Church Of Our Lady Queens Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14
6JR

Application No 16/00153/NMA Ward: Fernhill

Applicant: Bellway Homes

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 23 March 2016

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission 14/00014/FUL allowed
on appeal dated 7 January 2015 in respect of plots 83 and 84 to provide
three full storeys of accommodation with associated changes to the
internal layout.

Address Land At Guillemont Park Sun Park Minley Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Pack Page 138
128



Application No 16/00163/FULPP Ward: Aldershot Park

Applicant: Mr Chris Luck
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 30 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of part first floor and single storey rear extension and single
storey front extension

Address 10 The Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4BJ
Application No 16/00166/FULPP Ward: St John's
Applicant: Mr C Cushing

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 29 March 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension

Address Derwent 139 Fleet Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9SQ
Application No 16/00169/NMAPP Ward: Empress
Applicant: Travis Perkins PLC

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 31 March 2016

Proposal: NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENT : amendments to scheme approved by
planning permission 14/00203/FUL dated 30 June 2014 (and subject to
amendments approved by 15/00563/REVPP dated 28 October 2015)
comprising re-location of proposed new goods and service roller shutter
door for Unit 1 from rear elevation to side elevation; and consequential re-
location of personnel fire escape door on side elevation and position of
external enclosure fence between Outdoor Projects Centre and service
yard

Address 13 Invincible Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7QU

Pack Page 139
129



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00171/FULPP Ward: Fernhill

Mrs Carol Haines
Permission Granted

29 March 2016

Erection of a conservatory to side

59 Blackthorn Crescent Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9AG

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00173/FUL Ward: Empress

Mr & Mrs Pamma
Permission Granted

08 April 2016

Erection of a two storey rear extension and single storey front extension
forming an entrance porch

19 Prospect Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8JT

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00175/REXPD Ward: Manor Park

Mr M Greenslade
Prior Approval Required and Granted
29 March 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension measuring 4 metres deep for
the original rear wall of the house, 3 metres to the eaves and 4 metres
overall height

1 Coronation Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3PY

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 140

16/00178/FUL Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr & Mrs S Cattan
Permission Granted

30 March 2016

Erection of a conservatory to the rear

38 Fowler Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 0BW

130



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00180/NMA Ward: Manor Park
Mr & Mrs S Zebaida

Permission Granted

15 April 2016

Non material amendment to planning application 15/00946/FULPP dated
4th January 2016 to allow a change in design to front porch

100 Church Lane East Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3HN

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00182/FULPP Ward: Manor Park

Mr D Brace
Permission Granted

01 April 2016

Erection of a single storey rear infill extension and part first floor rear
extension

71 St Michaels Road Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4JJ

16/00183/FULPP Ward: Manor Park

Mr & Mrs G McCaul
Permission Granted

01 April 2016

Erection of single storey rear infill extension

73 St Michaels Road Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4JJ

16/00184/NMAPP Ward: Knellwood

Mr Simon Moore
Permission Granted

08 April 2016

Non Material Amendment to application 15/00617/FULPP dated 11th
September 2015 to allow a change in design to the detached garage

50 Church Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7AP

Pack Page 141
131



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00185/PDCPP Ward: North Town

Mr Matt Young
Development is Lawful

31 March 2016

Lawful Development Certificate: Formation of a rear dormer and skylight
to front elevation to facilitate a loft conversion

36 Green Way Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4XA

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00186/COND Ward: Empress
Woodford Stauffer

Split decision

14 April 2016

Confirmation that conditions attached to planning permission
06/00633/FUL dated 29 June 2007 have been complied with

42 Lynx Court Wallis Square Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7GQ

16/00190/HCC Ward: West Heath

County Planning Officer
No Objection
08 April 2016

CONSULTATION FROM HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL:
Decommissioning of existing swimming pool and reinstate with a new
tarmac surface, with retention of existing masonry buildings

Manor Junior School Fernhill Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14
9DX

16/00191/REXPD Ward: Empress
Mr Cotugno

Prior Approval Required and Granted

01 April 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension measuring 5 metres from the
original rear wall of the property x 2.2 metres to the eaves x 3.3 metres
high

19 EIm Grove Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7RB

Pack Page 142

132



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00192/FUL Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr R Dean
Permission Granted

06 April 2016

Erection of a single storey side extension

4 Broadmead Farnborough Hampshire GU14 ORJ

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00196/FUL Ward: Wellington

Mr Lee Evans
Permission Granted

08 April 2016

Erection of closebard fence up to 2.5 metres high along new boundary
line

11 Sheeling Close Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4BU

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00197/FULPP Ward: Empress

Mrs Kelly Condell
Permission Granted

07 April 2016

Erection of a single storey front extension

35 Marrowbrook Lane Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OBB

16/00199/REXPD Ward: Aldershot Park

Mr Konrad Kuc
Prior approval is NOT required

11 April 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension measuring 4.5 metres from the
original dwelling house, 2.5 metre to the eaves and 3.8 metres in overall
height

21 Whyte Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4AD

Pack Page 143
133



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00200/PDC Ward: Cove And Southwood

Ms Gallop And Mr George
Development is Lawful

05 April 2016

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT: Formation of a rear dormer and 3 skylights to front
elevation to facilitate a loft conversion

38 Derwent Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 0JT

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00204/REXPD Ward: North Town

Mr & Mrs Neil Edmonds
Prior approval is NOT required

08 April 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension measuring 6 metres from the
original rear wall x 2.65 metres to the eaves and 3.44 metres overall
height

111 Holly Road Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4SQ

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00205/FULPP Ward: Cherrywood

Mr Dharma Sunuwar
Permission Granted

13 April 2016

Demolition of existing single storey outbuilding and erection of a single
storey side and rear extension

49 Beech Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8EX

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00209/FULPP Ward: Rownhill

Mr Graeme Martin
Permission Granted

12 April 2016

Erection of a two storey and single storey rear extension

26 Cranmore Lane Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3AS

Pack Page 144

134



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00210/FULPP Ward: St Mark's

Mr Drew Foster
Permission Granted

11 April 2016

Erection of part two storey and part single storey rear extension

88 Peabody Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6DY

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00211/FUL Ward: Fernhill

Mrs S Dorning-Mills
Permission Granted

15 April 2016

Retention of an outbuilding to the rear

121 Pinewood Park Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9LE

16/00213/REXPD Ward: Fernhill

Mr Tidy
Prior approval is NOT required

11 April 2016

Erection of single storey rear extension measuring 3.275 metres in length
from the original rear wall, 3.10 metres to the eaves and 3.4 metres in
overall height

9 Cheviot Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9HS

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00214/FUL Ward: Fernhill

Mr & Mrs Rumford
Permission Granted

15 April 2016

Erection of a single storey side extension

11 Ashbury Drive Blackwater Camberley Hampshire GU17 9HH

Pack Page 145
135



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00215/REXPD Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr Plunkett
Prior approval is NOT required

11 April 2016

Erection of a conservatory to rear, measuring 3.4 metres in length from
the original rear wall, 2.4 metres to the eaves and 3.2 metres in overall
height

8 Thirlmere Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OLG

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00216/FULPP Ward: St John's

Mr Peter Hornblower
Permission Granted

14 April 2016

Erection of first floor side extension over existing garage.

15 Brownsover Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9SP

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00217/REXPD Ward: West Heath

Mr Alan Wright
Prior approval is NOT required

11 April 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension, measuring 4 metres in length
from the original rear dwelling, 2.4 metres to the eaves and 3.3 metres in
overall height

16 Avon Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9LN

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00218/NMAPP Ward: Fernhill
Mr T Parker

Permission Granted

24 March 2016

Non material amendement to planning application 15/00491/FULPP
dated 18th September 2015 to allow the reduction in size of the two
storey rear extension, changes to the side windows at ground floor and
change the dormer windows from hip to gable

135 Chapel Lane Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9BH

Pack Page 146

136



Application No 16/00220/NMA Ward: Empress

Applicant: Bride Hall Holdings
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 15 April 2016

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission 13/00024/FULPP dated
25 October 2013 in respect of replacing opaque glass in top section of
ground floor glazing with louvres (east elevation) and provision of feature
lighting to building (north, east and west elevations)

Address 1 -5 Firgrove Parade Farnborough Hampshire
Application No 16/00222/FULPP Ward: Cherrywood
Applicant: Mr & Mrs K Burge

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 13 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of single storey front and rear extensions.

Address 15 Bracklesham Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8LP
Application No 16/00223/COND Ward: Manor Park
Applicant: Cove Construction Ltd.

Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 21 March 2016

Proposal: Submission of details pursuant to Condition No.18 (sustainability rating
certification) of planning permission 12/00527/FULPP dated 16
November 2012 in respect of Plots 7, 8 and 9 (Nos.3, 4 & 5 Albion Mews)

Address Albion Works Church Lane East Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3BT
Application No 16/00224/FUL Ward: Manor Park
Applicant: Mr John Lally

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 13 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension following removal of existing
conservatory (revised application to planning application 16/00143/FUL
granted 16 March 2016) [

Address 32 Highfield Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3BZ

Pack Page 147
137



Application No 16/00227/FULPP Ward: Empress

Applicant: Ms Alexandra Stiell
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 15 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of a part two storey and part single storey rear extension and
conversion of garage to habitable room

Address 39 Pierrefondes Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8PA
Application No 16/00229/FUL Ward: St Mark's
Applicant: Mr And Mrs Shucksmith

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 14 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension

Address 16B Whites Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6PD
Application No 16/00231/FUL Ward: Empress
Applicant: Mr V Welland

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 15 April 2016

Proposal: Erection of a conservatory to rear

Address 90 Ship Lane Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8BH
Application No 16/00251/NMA Ward: St John's
Applicant: C Goodsen

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 April 2016

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning application 13/00298/FUL dated
21.05.13 for the erection of single storey rear extension to allow changes
to the roof from flat to pitched, decrease floor area and design

Address 11 Rindle Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9GX

Pack Page 148
138



Agenda Item 4

Development Management Committee Directorate of Community and
27th April 2016 Environment
Planning Report No. PLN1615

Planning (Development Management) summary report for the quarter
January - March 2016 and for the financial year 2015 - 2016

1. Introduction

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the position with respect
to Performance Indicators for the Development Management Section of
Planning, and the overall workload of the Section. This report covers the
quarter from 1% January to 31 March 2016 and provides summary figures for
the 2015-2016 financial year.

2. Planning Applications

2.1 The three tables below set out figures relating to Major, Minor and ‘Other’
planning applications for the final quarter and the entire year. We are required
to provide the government with these statistics although it should be noted
that they relate solely to the above categories and do not include householder
applications, certificates of lawfulness and other types of application which
constitute around 50% of those determined as part of the Development
Management workload. Analysis of performance regarding Householder
applications is included in the graphs at Section 3 of this report.

Major and small scale major Applications determined within 13 weeks/PPA target
2014/2015 Applications in Jan/Mar 2016 Government 2015/2016
Total quarter Target Total

Minor (Non householder) Applications determined within 8 weeks
2014/2015 Applications in Jan/Mar 2016 Government 2015/2016

Total quarter Target Total
89.5% 26 69.2% 65% 78.5%

‘Other’ Applications determined within 8 weeks
2014/2015 Applications in Jan/Mar 2016 Government 2015/2016

Total quarter Target Total
97.1% 92 80% 80% 84.9%

Pack Page 149
139



2.2  The following table sets out figures relating to appeals allowed against the
authority’s decision to refuse permission.

% of appeals allowed against the authority’s decision to refuse

2014/2015 2015/2016 Government Jan/Mar Appeal
Total Total Target 2015 Decisions

20.66% | 40% max

*Whilst this figure marginally exceeds the Government’s maximum target, it relates to a total of 9 appeal decisions in the financial year,
four of which were allowed.

3. Workload

3.1 This section deals with workload demand on the Development Management
Section in the past three months and the full year.

Departmental Work Demand Jan-Mar 2016

Applications Pre-Application Incoming Applications Appeals
Submitted (All Cases Telephone Calls Determined (All Submitted

types) types)
249 262 2787 180 4

Departmental Work Demand Apr 2015-Mar 2016

Applications Pre-Application Incoming Applications Appeals
Submitted (All Cases Telephone Calls Determined (All Submitted

types) types)
1029 918 11258 865 13

3.2 The following graphs present the time period being taken to determine
different types of application.

Major and Small-scale majors Total 11

Decision in Weeks

O R Kk N N W

Weeks to Decision

3.3 Performance with regard to Major applications remains buoyant with only two
of eleven cases taking longer than the statutory 13 week period. Both of these
were the subject of agreed extensions of time with the applicants and
therefore will be recorded in Government returns as having met the target.

Pack Page 150
140



Householder applications Total 51

Decision in Weeks

Weeks to Decision

3.4 This second graph shows that in the third quarter of this financial year the
majority of householder applicants have continued to receive decisions in the
third and fourth weeks after their validation date.

Minor and Other applications Total 118

Decision in Weeks

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 18 22 32 35 48 51
Weeks to Decision

3.5 This third graph illustrates the determination times for minor and other
applications. The proportion of decisions in weeks 3 to 5 continues to rise.

Pack Page 151
141



3.6

The following graphs represent the determination times for the same
categories of application over the full financial year 2015-16.

Major and Small-scale majors Total 34

10

Decision in Weeks

3 4 5 6 7 9 10 11 12 13 16 18 21 22 25
Weeks to Decision

Householder applications Total 287

150

100

50

Decision in Weeks

4 5 6 7 8 10 11

0 3

13 14
Weeks to Decision

Minor and Other applications Total 562

150

100

50

Decision in Weeks

0123456 7 8910111213141516181920212225272829313235384748495152778896
Weeks to Decision

4.

4.1

Fee Income

The total amount of planning fee income received for the quarter was
£40,192

Pack Page 152

142




4.2 The total amount of planning fee income received for the year was £320,159
against a revised budget estimate of £315,000

5. Section 106 contributions

5.1 Information in this section relates to financial contributions secured by way of

section 106 planning obligations.

Section 106 contributions received

Jan-Mar 2016

Apr 2015- Mar 2016

Contributions received (Rushmoor) ~ £792,657.24 £2,145,820.39
Open Space (specific projects set out in
agreements) £137,801.90 £615,276.86
a) £308,620 a) £513,085.47
SANGS a) Hawley Meadows * b) Southwood Il b) £146,250 b) £469,519
¢) Rowhil c) £65,650 c) £178,100
a) £33,767.37 a) £56.179.57
SAMM* a) Hawley Meadows b) Southwood II | b) £15,986 b) £51,356
c) Rowhill d) Wellesley Woodland c)£7,177 c) £19,492
d) £0 d) £17,955
Transport contributions to HCC (specific £111.543.40 £920 111.86
projects set out in agreements)* T O
Total £904,200.64 £2,365,932.25

~This figure also includes interest and receipts for the Farnborough Airport Community
Environmental Fund.

*Contributions relating to the Hawley Meadows SANG. SAMM contributions and Transport are paid
to Hampshire County Council.

5.2  Five new undertakings/legal agreements were signed in the period January-
March 2016. A total of 39 were signed in the year.

6. Comment on workload for this quarter and year

6.1  This fourth quarter and financial year have seen sustained rises in application
numbers, with over 1000 applications being submitted in the financial year for
the first time since 2004. This has not however been matched by a significant
rise in fee income. Whilst the type and nature of submissions is unpredictable,
as a result of legislative changes we receive increasing numbers of
applications seeking ‘prior approval for certain categories of permitted
development which do not require a fee. Secondly, during the year we
determined 34 Major Applications in contrast with the 54 determined in the
previous year. As individual Major schemes tend to contribute a higher
proportion of fees the reduced receipts can to an extent be attributed to this.
Total income in the form of planning fees has exceeded the yearly estimate of

Pack Page 153
143



6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

£315,000 by just over £5,000.

DCLG have recently announced the New Homes Bonus grants for 2016-17.
Rushmoor stands to receive £1,944,000 having received £1,696,172.00 in
2015-16.

Wellesley

Progress on the first phases of Wellesley continues. Maida Zone A is at an
advanced stage of construction with completed properties fronting Queen’s
Avenue and Hope Grants Road. 16 of the units are now occupied, 28 are
contractually exchanged and 14 are reserved. Corunna Zone B, located to the
west of Maida on the opposite side of Queen’s Avenue is now largely cleared
of buildings. We are currently in pre-application discussion on proposals for
the eastern section of the site. Discussions are also in progress in relation to
McGrigor Zone D, located directly north of the Cambridge Military Hospital
Zone C.

Planning applications received this quarter include details applications relating
to tree removal works required to facilitate the proposed A331 on-slip road
and the submission of contamination validation reports required for Maida
Zone A.

The key planning application currently under consideration is a revised
reserved matters scheme for Gunhill Zone E (16/000133/REMPP). The
scheme comprises 107 residential dwellings with associated parking, access
and amenity space, and a central area of communal open space. A reserved
matters application for 108 units (82 Flats and 26 houses) was previously
approved in relation to this zone on 24™ March 2015 (ref: 14/00900/REMPP).

During this quarter RBC has been consulted in relation to the current
Regulation 3 planning application for the AUE Western School and has raised
no objection to the proposed scheme. The Regulation 3 application will be
determined by HCC.

Recommendation

That the report be NOTED

Keith Holland
Head of Planning
Contact: John W Thorne 01252 398791

BACKGROUND PAPERS: There are no background papers.

Pack Page 154

144



Agenda Item 5

Development Management Committee Directorate of Community
27th April 2016 and Environment
Planning Report No. PLN1616

Appeals Progress Report
1. New appeals
1.1 There are no new appeals to report.

1.2 Following the grant of planning permission in respect of the site at the meeting
of this Committee on 30" March 2016, formal notice has been received that the
appeal in respect of redevelopment of The Queens Head, 97 North Lane,
Aldershot has been withdrawn.

2. Appeal Decisions

2.1 An appeal against a refusal to issue a Certificate of Lawful Existing Use in
respect of occupation of a former outbuilding as a separate residential
dwelling at 35a Camp Road, Farnborough has been determined in the
appellants’ favour. The single storey wooden clad building had history of use
as an annexe for an elderly relative by the occupiers of 35 Camp Road and
subsequent periods of use as a separate rented dwelling. Although there was
evidence that the building was unoccupied and unfurnished in January 2014,
The Inspector determined that, notwithstanding the imprecise evidence
available, on the balance of probability the property had been used as an
independent dwelling between 2005 and 2010 and again between March
2012 and May 2014. On this basis he issued a certificate of Lawful Existing
Use as a single dwellinghouse.

Decision — Appeal ALLOWED

2.2 An appeal against a refusal of planning permission for erection of a pair of semi-
detached dwellings with access and parking on Land Adjacent To 28
Blackthorn Crescent, Farnborough has been determined in the Council's
favour. Planning permission was refused on the grounds that the proposal was
a cramped and contrived development, with very small gardens that would be
out of character with the surrounding area, that it would not provide a
satisfactory living environment by reason of the small gardens and the proximity
to mature trees, that the proposal failed to provide mitigation for the impact
upon the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area or make provision for
appropriate off-site highway improvement works.

The Inspector did not consider that the proposal would have an adverse impact
upon public amenity by reason of the garden sizes alone as he considered that
cramped nature of the development and the awkwardly shaped plots would not

Pack Page 155
145



be visible from the street. Nevertheless, he did accept that the proposal did not
provide a useable garden area of a size commensurate with the properties
proposed and having regard to proximity of the mature trees on the properties
to the rear, he did not consider that a satisfactory outlook and living
environment would be created. He also agreed with the Council that permitting
the development would give rise to pressure from occupants for the significant
pruning of the trees, which would have a detrimental impact upon the amenity
of the area. He agreed that the proposal failed to address the issue of providing
mitigation for the impact of the proposal upon the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area and that the financial contribution sought by the Council in
respect of off-site highway improvement works were justified and complied with
the pooling restrictions of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010
(as amended)..

Decision — Appeal DISMISSED

2.3  An appeal against the decision of the Council in respect of an application to
undertake works to trees the subject of a TPO at 51 Prospect Avenue,
Farnborough has been determined. A split decision was originally issued
permitting the removal of branches from the lower limbs of a sweet Chestnut
tree but refused consent to fell a Beech tree forming part of a group.

The appellants arguments regarding the health of the tree, difficulty with
access to the frontage parking area within which it stands and root
damage to the hardsurfacing were not considered of sufficient merit to
justify its removal. The Inspector agreed with the Council’s view that the
Beech tree makes a positive contribution to the amenity of the area and
the proposed tree felling would cause demonstrable harm.

Decision — Appeal DISMISSED
3. Recommendation
3.1 Itis recommended that the report be NOTED.

Keith Holland
Head of Planning

Pack Page 156
146



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	DMC Agenda 27th April 2016
	Development Management

Committee

Wednesday, 27th April, 2016
	Agenda
	Index to Development Management Committee Agenda
	Minutes of Development Management Committee of 30th March 2016
	Appendix “A”
	Agenda Item 3 - Planning Application Introduction
	Future items for Committee and Petitions
	Zone E – Gunhill, Aldershot Urban Extension, Alison’s Road,Aldershot - 16/00133/REMPP
	Land At Dingley Way Farnborough - 16/00007/FULPP
	10 Queens Road Farnborough  - 16/00165/FULPP
	Land Off Sarah Way, To The Rear Of 49-51 Victoria Road  Farnborough -15/00925/FULPPHampshire
	Section D - Applications already determined
	Planning (Development Management) summary report for the quarter January to March 2016 and for the financial year 2015 to 2016 -PLN1615 
	Appeals Progress Report - PLN1616 





